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VISION

To be recognized as a professional and dependable
business entity committed to play a meaningful
role in the development of insurance industry in
Pakistan and to safeguard the legitimate interests
of all stakeholders, namely policy-holders,
share-holders, reinsurers, employees and all other
business associates / partners.




CODE OF CONDUCT

Reliance Insurance Company Limited (RICL) is engaged in general insurance business with
the objective to achieve sustainable productivity, profitability and high standards of
service The Company solemnly believes in the application of business ethics as have
been embodied in this document.

The credibility, goodwill and repute earned over the
years can be maintained through continued
conviction in our corporate values of honesty, justice,
integrity and respect for people. The Company
strongly promotes trust, openness, teamwork and
professionalism in its entire business activities.

The Company conducts its business in accordance
with all applicable laws and Regulations.

RICL recognizes following obligations, which need
to be discharged with best efforts, commitment and
efficiency:

Safeguarding of shareholders’ interest and a
suitable return on equity.

Service to customers / policyholders by providing
products, which offer value in terms of price, quality,
safety and honest and fair dealing with people and
organization.

Respect human right, provide congenial working
environment, offer competitive terms of employment,
develop human resource and be an equal
opportunity employer.

Seek mutually beneficial business relationship with
policyholders, business development staff / officers,
investment partners and Banks.

The Company believes that profit is essential for
business survival. It is a measure of efficiency and
the value that the customer place on services
provided by the Company.

The Company requires honesty and fairness in all
aspect of its business and in its relationships with all
those with whom it does business. The direct or
indirect offer, payment, soliciting and accepting of
bribe in any form are undesirable.
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The Company requires all its employees to
essentially avoid conflict of interest between private
financial activities and their professional role in the
conduct of Company business.

The Company does not support any political party or
contributes funds to group having political interests.
The Company will however, promote its legitimate
business interests through trade associations.

The Company, consistent with its priority, has the
approach for protecting the health and safety of
employees at the work-place.

All employees are duty-bound to make business
decisions in the best interest of the Company and
not based on their personal interest and are obliged
to protect all the assets including software and use
all such properties for the exclusive benefit of the
Company only.

The Company is committed to observe laws of
Pakistan and is fully aware of its social responsibility.
It would assist the community in activities such as
training programs, skills development and
employment within the parameters of its commercial
objectives.

The Company supports free market system. It seeks
to compete fairly and ethically within the framework
of applicable competition laws in the country. The
Company will not stop others from competing freely
with it.

In view of the critical importance of its business and
impact on national economy, the Company provides
all relevant information about its activities to
legitimate interested parties, subject to any
overriding constraints of confidentiality and cost. The
members of RICL are forbidden to pass on inside
information at any time or to any other person inside
or outside the Company.




COMPANY
PROFILE

Reliance Insurance Company Limited (RICL)
was incorporated in 1981 with a Share Capital
of Rs.2.5 Milion by two prominent
industrialist groups in Pakistan. Al-Noor
Group and Amin Bawany Group. Al-Noor
Group, was led by (Late) Mr. Ismail H. Zakaria
and Amin Bawany Group, founded by (Late)
Mr. Mohammed Amin Ahmed Bawany, were
known for their successful implementation of
numerous industrial and commercial projects.

RICL has earned a strong reputation and is
recognized as one of the most reputable and
distinguished names in the sector. Its Head
Office is in Karachi, Pakistan, and boasts an
extensive and dynamic branch network
covering major cities and towns throughout
the country. This widespread presence
ensures that the company can provide
prompt service to its customers, no matter
where they are located.

Reliance Insurance underwrites all classes of
General Insurance / Takaful and enjoys
reputation second to none. Apart from the
traditional covers such as Fire, Marine (Import
& Exports), Motor Vehicles, Personal & Group
Accident, Workmen's Compensation,
Burglary, Cash-in-Safe or in Transit etc., it
also transacts non-traditional covers such as
Machinery Breakdown, Terrorism &

Sabotage, Contractors All Risks, Erection All
Risks, Bonds, Products liability, Director’'s &
Officer’s Liability, Aviation and the like.

The Company's results are consistently
improving and yielding profits. The Present
Authorised Capital of the Company is
Rs.1,000 Million while Paid-up Capital
increased to Rs.665.379 million. General
Reserve to Rs.400 million & the Shareholders'
equity to Rs.1,572.431 million.

Since its establishment Reliance has
progressed smoothly and steadily. Its Gross
Premium Income has increased from Rs. One
Million in 1983 to Rs.1,217.148 million
(inclusive of Takaful Contribution) at the end
of the year 2024 and the Technical Reserves
increased to Rs.866.699 million.

RICL has an excellent Treaty Reinsurance
arrangements under the lead of world's
renowned reinsurer namely Swiss Re.

VIS Credit Rating Company Ltd & Pakistan
Credit Rating Agency Ltd - both the rating
agencies have assigned Financial Strength
Rating (IFSR) of the Company at “A+” (Single
A+) and outlook on the assigned Rating is
"Stable".




PROFILE OF THE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Irfan Zakaria Bawany
Chairman

Mr. Irfan Zakaria Bawany was
unanimously elected Chairman
of Reliance Insurance Co. Ltd. In
the Board of Directors meeting
held on 28th July 2020. Mr.
Bawany is associated with
Reliance Insurance since 1991. He
is CEO of Anam Fabrics (Pvt.) Ltd.
and Director of Faran Sugar Mills
Ltd. Since August-2023, he is also
serving as an independent
Director on the Board of Pakistan
Aluminium Beverage  Cans
Limited. He has been on the
Board of Pioneer Cables Ltd.
from 1983 to 1991. Mr. Bawany
has diversified experience in
Electrical Cable Manufacturing
and Textile made ups business.
After receiving a B.BA.
(accounting) from The University
of Houston, USA, he was certified
as a Fellow Member of the Texas
Society of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a certified
Director from Pakistan Institute
of Corporate Governance
(PILC.G)).

Muhammad Omar Bawany

Director

Mr. Muhammad Omar Bawany is
a Non-Executive Director of
Reliance Insurance Company
Limited since 1995. He acquired
his early education from Karachi
American School and then went
to American College of
Switzerland and obtained
Associate Degree in Business
Administration. He has extensive
experience in textile and sugar
Industry and under his wise
management, Annoor Textile
Mills operated successfully. He is
on the Board of Directors of
Faran Sugar Mills Limited since
1984. Become Vice Chairman in
2000 and is Chairman of the
Company from 2016. He is also
Chief Executive of B.F. Modaraba
managed by EA Management
and also Director in Unicol Ltd.
He is a managing and trustee in
Aisha Bawany Talimul Quran
Trust and Chairman of World
Memon Foundation.
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Ahmed Ali Bawany
Director

Mr. Ahmed Ali Bawany is a
Non-Executive Director of
Reliance Insurance Company
Limited since 2001. He got his
schooling from CAS, Karachi. He
persued his higher education
from USC ( University of Southern
California) USA and got his
Bachelor of Science degree in
the field of business
entrepreneurship. He is serving
as CEO of Faran Sugar Mills since
2007. He has also served as
Chairman of Pakistan Sugar Mills
Association, Sindh Zone in the
year 2014 and again elected as
Chairman, PSMA-SZ for the term
of 2020-21. He is also the
Chairman of B.F. Modaraba. He is
actively involved in Unicol Ltd in
the capacity of director, which is
a Joint Venture company
between Faran, Mehran and
MirpurKhas Sugar Mills engaged
in the production and marketing
of Sugar, Ethanol, Anhydrous
Ethanol and food grade Co2. He
also serves as Director on the
board of UniEnergy. He is a
Certified Director from Pakistan
Institute of Corporate
Governance (P.I.C.G).




PROFILE OF THE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Noor Mohammad Zakaria
Director

Mr. Noor Mohammad Zakaria is a
Non-Executive Director of
Reliance Insurance Co. Ltd since
2003. He has over 44 Years of
diversified industrial and
commercial experience. He is
B.A(Hons) from University of
Karachi. He is Chairman of the
Board of Directors of Shahmurad
Sugar Mills Limited and
Managing Director / CEO of Al
Noor Sugar Mills Limited.

Zia Zakaria
Director

Mr. Zia Zakaria is Chairman of
Alnoor Sugar Mills Ltd. and First
Alnoor Modaraba and Managing
Director / CEO of Shahmurad
Sugar Mills Ltd. He has over 30
years of diversified experience
including operations and
projects. He joined the group
after completing his Bachelors in
Science with Major in Finance &
Marketing from Syracuse
University, N.Y, and since then
has been actively involved in the
affairs of the Alnoor group with
complete commitment &
dedication. Mr. Zia Zakaria was
Director of Reliance Insurance
previously from 1986 to 1998.

Muhammad Patel
Director

Mr.  Muhammad Patel is the
Managing Director of Patel Group, a
legacy real estate development firm
operating for over four decades with
a successful track record of delivering
dozens of residential, commercial,
and industrial projects. He also
serves as the Managing Trustee of
Patel Hospital, a 300-bed fully
charitable tertiary care institution
located in Gulshan-e-Igbal, Karachi.
In addition to his roles at Patel Group
and Patel Hospital, Mr. Muhammad
Patel is a member of the Boards of
the Trust for Malnutrition and
Stunted  Growth  (TMSG), the
Association of Builders & Developers
of Pakistan (ABAD), and the Karachi
Chapter of the Entrepreneurs’
Organisation (EO). He holds a
Bachelor's degree in  Business
Administration from the Schulich
School of Business, Toronto, Canada,
and is a Certified Director from the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP).
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PROFILE OF THE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Tasneem Yusuf
Director

Ms. Tasneem Yusuf is a chartered
accountant from ICAP and a
fellow member of ACCA and a
CPA. She has worked for Unilever
Pakistan, Deloitte M.E and
Nasdaqg Dubai. Since 2009, she
has been associated with her
family practice where she now
heads the audit and assurance
services department. She sits on
the board of Ismail Industries
(Pvt) Limited, B.F. Modaraba,
Faran Sugar Mills  Limited,
Trading Corporation of Pakistan
(Private) Limited and Pakistan
Industrial Development
Corporation. She is also a
member of the  Auditing
Standards & Ethics Board of
ICAP. She is a certified director
fromm the Pakistan Institute of
Corporate Governance (PICG).

o |

Jahangir Adam
Director

Mr. Jahangir Adam is M.Com &
LLB. He has professional
qualification of FITM Chartered
Secretary. Presently he is serving
as the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary at Sind
Particle Board Mills Limited. He
has diversified experience of
portfolio  of  CFO/Company
Secretary in Annoor Textile Mill
Ltd and B.F. Modaraba.
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A. Razak Ahmed
Chief Executive & M.D.

Mr. A. Razak Ahmed is the Chief
Executive Officer / Managing
Director of the Company since 1st
Novemlber 1995. He has over 46
years of extensive and varied
experience-both in  public &
private sectors. Prior to joining
Reliance he had worked with
Adamjee Insurance, Pakistan
Insurance  Corporation (now
PRCL) National Insurance
Corporation & Premier Insurance
Company. He has been on the
Executive Committee of the
Insurance Association of Pakistan
(IAP) several times and had also
been the Chairman of Accident &
Fire Committees for several
terms, beside being Council
Member of the Karachi Insurance
Institute and member standing
committee on Banking and
Insurance of the Federation of
Pakistan Chamber of Commerce
& Industry. He is a Commerce
Graduate and a fellow of the
Chartered Insurance Institute
(FCIl) London. He is a Chartered
Insurer




Reliance Insurance underwrites all classes of General Insurance

and enjoys reputation second to none. Apart from Conventional

General Insurance RIC has also commenced its General Takaful
operations in the year 2016.

]
. ’ “ General Insurance
(Conventional)

Reliance Insurance commenced its general
insurance business in 1981 and it underwrites all
classes of traditional and non-traditional lines.

Reliance Insurance is offering a wide range of covers
such as Fire & Property, Marine Cargo, Motor
Vehicles (Commercial & Private), Personal Accident,
Money Insurance, Burglary & Liability (Public &
Product) and Workmen Compensation while
non-traditional covers such as Engineering Risks
(MBD, CAR, EAR), Aviation Insurance, Terrorism &
Sabotage and Bonds are also being offered.

<3
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General Takaful
RELIANCE  (Islamic)

Takaful is an Islamic alternate of Insurance and is
growing steadily. Reliance Insurance commenced
its Window Takaful Operations in June 2016 under
the guidance of renowned, qualified and certified
Sharia Scholars.

Reliance Takaful is offering a wide range of Sharia
Compliant General Takaful Products such as Fire &
Property Takaful, Marine Cargo Takaful, Motor
Takaful (Private / Commercial Vehicles), Engineering
Takaful, (MBD, CAR, EAR), Money Takaful, Liability
(Public & Private) Takaful and Personal & Group
Accident Takaful, etc.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024




FIRE & PROPERTY

INSURANCE

Fire and Allied Perils Insurance

Reliance Insurance provides comprehensive Fire and allied perils insurance at
most competitive rates. The standard Fire policy covers loss and/or damage to
the property caused by Fire &/or Lightning. The basic Fire policy can be
extended to cover a number of additional risks commonly known as ‘allied perils’
like Riot and Strike Damage, Malicious Damage, Explosion, Atmospheric
Disturbances, Earthquake Fire and Shock, Impact Damage, Aircraft Damage,
and Burglary.

The property insured under fire policy normally includes Buildings (Industrial,
Commercial, Residential, Offices, Factories & Warehouses), Plant & Machinery of
all kind, Stocks of all kind (stocks-under-process, raw materials, and finished
goods).

Consequential Loss Due to Fire and Allied Perils

Reliance Insurance also provides this coverage in conjunction with Fire Policy. It
provides protection against Loss of Profit incurred as a result of business
interruption or interference in business caused by an event indemnifiable under
Fire policy.

MARINE CARGO

INSURANCE

Reliance Insurance provides most comprehensive Marine Cargo insurance at
most compatitive rates.

Marine insurance provides coverage for losses to cargo during transit as per
Institute Caro Clauses ‘A’, ‘B’ or ‘C’. Marine Cargo insurance provides protection
to Imports & Exports of goods by any mode of transport i.e. by Sea, by Air or by
Road/Rail.

Marine Inland Transit insurance policy provides comprehensive coverage to
protect goods in transit within the territory of Pakistan by any mode of transport
i.e., by Air or by Road/Rail.

1[0 RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED




MOTOR

INSURANCE

Reliance Insurance provides most comprehensive coverage against accidental
damage to the motor cars, motorcycles, commercial vehicles and other special
purpose vehicles. Following are major types of Motor insurance:

Comprehensive Motor Policy (Private Vehicles)

Our Motor insurance provides protection against losses incurred as a result of
theft, accidents, riots, malicious damage and against liability that could be
incurred in an accident. This policy can be extended to include accidental
personal injuries and death of Driver and Passengers.

Commercial Vehicles

We also insure Motor vehicles used for trade / commercial purposes and
classified as Commercial Vehicles such as Trucks, Trailers, Buses, and Wagons
/ Vans and providing protection against losses incurred as a result of theft,
accidents, riots, malicious damage and against liability that could be incurred in
an accident.

Third Party Liabilities Insurance

To meet requirement by law under Motor Vehicle Act 1939 in respect of legal
liability to pay damages to any third party(ies) arising out of accidents, the
following policies are also available under this category:

Act Liability Only: it provides coverage in respect of liability incurred through
death or injury to a third party. This is minimum legal cover available under the
law.

Third Party Liability Only: it provides coverage as above plus damage to third
party property.

AVIATION

INSURANCE

Reliance Insurance is amongst the few Pakistani insurance companies who offer
aviation insurance to the commercial airlines as well as private jets. Our aviation
insurance plan provides comprehensive cover to insured against accidental
damage to Aircraft Hull & Spares, Hull War & Allied Perils, Aviation Legal
Liabilities, Loss of License to pilots, Aircraft’s Ferry Flight insurance, Crew Legal
Liabilities, Airport Operators Legal Liability insurance.

Reliance Insurance is priviledged to have excellent relations with globally
renowned and reputed professional aviation reinsurers and brokers who extend
most comprehensive and competitive terms and best services.
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ENGINEERING

INSURANCE

Engineering risk usually provides coverage for Machinery Break-Down
insurance, Contractor’'s All Risks insurance, Contractor’s Plant & Machinery
insurance, Erection All Risks insurance, and Comprehensive Machinery
insurance.

Engineering policies mainly cover operational losses of plant & machinery and
projects of various kinds. It covers damage or breakdown of plant & machinery
or its specific items. Engineering policies also cover the contractor against the
risks of the projects own damages and legal third party(ies) liabilities.

Extended cover for loss of profits and standing charges following machinery
breakdown is also available.

BONDS & SURETY

INSURANCE

Contractor undertaking the construction of public works like buildings, roads,
bridges, dams, civil works etc. usually require to furnish guarantees / bonds for
the fulfillment of their contractual obligations to the principals.

Traditionally Bid Bonds, Advance Payment / Mobilization Bonds, Performance
Bonds, Maintenance Bonds and Customs & Excise Bonds are available.

MISCELLANEOUS

& OTHERS

A wide range of products are available under Miscellaneous & Others insurance
which includes, but not limited to, Products Liability Insurance, Professional
Indemnity Insurance, Group / Personal Accident Insurance, Employer’s Legal
Liability Insurance, Workmen Compensation Insurance, Fidelity Guarantee
Insurance, Public Liability Insurance, Third Party Liability Insurance, Directors &
Officers  Liability Insurance, Travel Insurance, All Risks Insurance,
House-breaking & Burglary Insurance, Money Insurance (Cash in Safe & Cash in
transit), Plate Glass Insurance and Baggage Insurance etc. are available.

1A RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED




WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

The Company commenced its Window Takaful Operations in June 2016 which has been widely appreciated by the
business fraternity, Islamic banks and financial institutions. Its operations are being managed by a team of well
experienced, dedicated & competent professionals.

“Reliance Takaful” is operating under the guidance of renowned, qualified and certified Sharia Scholars. Our
Takaful model is WAQF based; the concept of brotherhood and mutual solidarity in Islam.

Reliance Takaful is offering a wide range of Shariah Compliant General Takaful products such as Fire & Property
Takaful, Marine Cargo Takaful, Motor Vehicles Takaful, Engineering Takaful and Miscellaneous Accident Takaful. A
brief of major takaful products is as under:-

Fire Takaful provides loss or damage to the property caused by Fire &/or allied perils. The basic Fire takaful
is extendable to cover allied perils such as Riots & Strikes Damage, Malicious Damage, Atmospheric
Disturbances, Earthquake Fire & Shock, Explosions, Aircraft Damages, Impact Damages and Burglary.

Marine Takaful covers losses to cargo during transit as per Institute Caro Clauses ‘A’, ‘B’ or ‘C’ by all means
of transport like by Sea, by Air or by Road/Rail.

Motor Takaful provides coverage against any loss / damage to motor vehicles (private & commercial) due
to road accidents, theft & burglary, snatching by violent means, riot & strike damage and third party liability
(Bodily Injury and property damage). This cover can be extended to include accidental injuries and death
of Driver and Passenger(s).

Engineering Takaful mainly covers plant & machinery and projects and provides coverage for Contractor's
All Risks, Contractor's Plant & Machinery, Erection All Risks, Machinery Breakdown Insurance and
Comprehensive Machinery Insurance etc.

Miscellaneous & Others: A wide range of products available under Miscellaneous Takaful which includes,
but not limited to, Money takaful (Cash in Safe & Cash in transit), Plate Glass takaful, Group / Personal
Accident takaful, Workmen Compensation, Public Liability, Third Party Liability, House-breaking & Burglary
and All Risks Takaful.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 (@]




NOTICE OF THE FORTY-THIRD
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 43rd Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY
LIMITED will be held on Wednesday the 30th April, 2025 at 12.30 p.m. at the Head Office of the Company at RELIANCE
INSURANCE HOUSE 181-A Sindhi Muslim Housing Society near Mehdi Tower, off: Sharah-e-Faisal, Karachi, through
in-person and video link facility to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To confirm the Minutes of the 42nd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 29th April, 2024.

2. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st December, 2024 together
with Chairman’s Review, Directors’ and Auditors' Reports thereon.

3. To appoint Auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration for the year ending December 31, 2025. The Board of
Directors and Audit Committee have recommended the appointment of M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants
for re-appointment as Auditors.

4. To elect Ten (10) Directors of the Company as fixed by the Board in the meeting held on March 27, 2025 in accordance
with the provision of Section 159(1) of the Companies Act, 2017 for a period of three (3) years commencing from April 30,
2025. All the retiring directors are eligible to offer themselves for re-election. The retiring directors are:

Mr. Irfan Zakaria Bawany Mr. Muhammad Omar Bawany
Mr. Ahmed Ali Bawany Mr. Noor M. Zakaria

Mr. Zia Zakaria Mr. Muhammad Patel

Mr. Naeem Ahmed Shafi Ms. Tasneem Yusuf

Mr. Jahangir Adam
SPECIAL BUSINESS:
5. To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without modification, the following resolutions as special resolutions:

Resolved:

5.1. "that the authorized capital of the Company be and is hereby increased from Rs.1,000,000,000/- (Rupees One
Billion only) to Rs.1,500,000,000 (Rupees One billion and five hundred million only) by creation of 50,000,000 (Fifty
million) new ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each."

Further Resolved:

5.2. “that the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company be and are hereby altered by substituting the
figures and words of Rs.1,000,000,000 (Rupees One Billion only) divided into 100,000,000 (One Hundred million)
ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each appearing in Clause V of the Memorandum of Association and Article 4 of the
Articles of Association with the words and figures of Rs.1,500,000,000 (Rupees one billion and five hundred million
only) divided into 150,000,000 (one hundred and fifty million) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each.”

Further Resolved:
5.3. "that the ordinary shares when issued shall carry equal voting rights and rank pari passu with the existing ordinary
shares of the Company in all respect / matters in conformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017."

Further Resolved:

5.4. "that the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary be and are hereby authorized
singly to do all acts, deeds and things, take any or all necessary actions to complete all legal formalities and to file
requisite documents with the Registrar to effectuate and implement the aforesaid resolutions."

6. To consider and approve the issuance of bonus shares @ 51% i.e. 51 ordinary shares for every 100 ordinary shares held,
out of Company’s profit for the year ended December 31, 2024 as recommended by the Board of Directors by passing the
following Ordinary Resolutions:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification the following resolutions:

Resolved

“that a sum of Rs.339,343,540/- out of Company’s profit be capitalized and applied for issue of 33,934,354 ordinary shares
of Rs.10 each and allotted as fully paid up shares to those members whose name appear in the members register of the
Company at the close of business on 07th May, 2025 in the ratio of 51 shares for every hundred shares held.”

§l:3 RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED




7.

Further Resolved
“that Bonus shares forming part of such fraction holding which is not in exact multiple of 51:100 shares will be sold in the
Stock Market and to pay the proceeds of sale thereof, when realized, to a Charitable Institution.

That for the purpose of giving effect to the foregoing, the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
be and is hereby authorized to give such directions as may be necessary and as they deem fit to settle any questions or
any difficulties that may arise in the distribution of the said new shares or in the payment of sale proceeds of the fractional
shares”.

To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

The Share Transfer Books of the Company to attend, speak and vote at the annual general meeting will remain Closed
from 21st April, 2025 to 30th April, 2025 (both days inclusive). Those members whose name appear in the members
register of the Company at the close of business on 18th April 2025 will entitle to attend the meeting.

The Share Transfer Books of the Company for the entitlement of Bonus Shares, will remain Closed from 08th May 2025
to 15th May 2025 (both days inclusive). Those members whose name appear in the members register of the Company
at the close of business on 07th May 2025 will entitle of bonus shares.

By order of the Board

FARAZ ABDUL RAZZAK

Karachi: 27th March, 2025 Company Secretary

NOTES:

1.

Participating in the AGM proceedings via physical presence or through video link facility:
a) AGM will be held through Zoom application — a video link facility.
b) The notice will also be uploaded on the website of the Company.

c) Shareholders interested in attending the AGM through Video Link (Zoom) will be requested to get themselves
registered with the Company Secretary office at least two working days before the AGM at
faraz.ahmed@relianceins.com by providing the following details:

Name of Shareholder: CNIC No. : Folio No. /CDS folio No: Cell No: Email address:

Login facility will be opened thirty minutes before the meeting time to enable the participants to join the meeting after
identification process. Shareholders will be able to login and participate in the AGM proceedings through their devices
after completing all the formalities required for the identification and verification of the shareholders.

d) Shareholders may send their comments and suggestions relating to the agenda items of the AGM to the Company
Secretary office at least two working days before the AGM, at above given email address, WhatsApp or SMS on
0333-2661981. Shareholders are required to mention their full name, CNIC No and Folio/CDS No. for this purpose.

e) Shareholders will be encouraged to participate in the AGM to consolidate their attendance and participate through
proxies.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote may appoint any other member as his/her proxy to attend and vote
on his/her behalf. PROXIES MUST BE RECEIVED AT THE HEAD OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS
BEFORE THE MEETING.

CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular 1 dated January
26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

For Attending the Meeting:

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or person whose securities are in group account
and their registration details are up-loaded as per the Regulations, shall authenticate his identity by showing his
Original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

i) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of the
nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.
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B. For appointing Proxies:

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in group
account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the
above requirements.

i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned
on the form.

iii) Attested copies of CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.
iv) The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or Original Passport at the time of the meeting.

v) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature of the
nominee shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) alongwith proxy form to the Company.

4. The shareholders of the Company have approved in the 41st Annual General Meeting of the Company held on April 27,
2023 to circulate the Annual Report of the Company to the members through QR enabled code and weblink. The Annual
Report — 2024 can be accessed through the following weblink or QR Code.

Weblink : https://relianceins.com/public/assets/downloads/financial-reports/2024/RIC-BS-2024-04.pdf

ERZE

o)
-

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Any person who seeks to contest election of Directors shall, whether he/she is retiring Director or otherwise shall file the
following documents and information with the Company at its Head Office located at 181-A, Sindhi Muslim Co-operative
Housing Society Karachi not later than fourteen (14) days before the date of Annual General Meeting of the Company for
a period of three years.

I.  Notice of his/her intention to offer himself/herself for election of directors in terms of Section 159(3) of the Companies
Act, 2017, selecting anyone category stated below in which he/she intends to contest for the election of director as
required under Regulation 7A of the listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations, 2019:

Female Director
Independent Director
Other Director

oo

Il. Consent to act as a director on Appendix in Form 9 in term of Section 167(1) of the Companies Act, 2017 along with
an attested copies of CNIC, NTN or passport.

Ill. Independent Director(s) will be elected through the process underlined in terms of section 159 of the Act and must
meet the criteria laid down in Section 166 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Companies (Manner and Selection of
Independent Directors) Regulations 2018. Accordingly, the following additional documents should be submitted by the
candidates intending to contest election of directors as an independent director:

(a) Declaration by Independent Director(s) under Clause 6(3) of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulation 2019; and

(b) Undertaking on non-judicial stamp paper that he/she meet the requirements of sub-regulation (1) of Regulation 4
of the Companies (Manner and Selection of Independent Directors) Regulations, 2018.

IV. Detailed profile along with his/her office address for placement of Company’s website seven days prior to the date of
election as required under SRO 1196(1)/2019 dated October 3, 2019 of the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP).

V. An attested copy of valid Computerized National Identity Card, NTN and his/her folio No./CDC Investor Account
No./CDC Participate ID No./Sub-Account No.

VI. Declaration in respect of being complaint with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 and the eligibility criteria, as set out in Section 153 of the Companies Act, 2017 to act
as director of a listed company;

VII. Information on Annexure A and affidavits on Annexure B & C required under the Insurance Companies (Sound and
Prudent Management) Regulations 2012.

No director have direct or indirect interest in the above said business except that they may consent for election of directors
accordingly.

6. ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND NOTICES
Pursuant to Notification vide SRO. 787(1)/2014 of September 8, 2014, the SECP has directed to facilitate the members of
the Company receiving annual financial statements and notices through electronic mail system (e-mail). We are pleased to
offer this facility to our members who desire to receive annual financial statements and notices of the Company through
email in future. In this respect members are hereby requested to convey their consent via email on a standard request form
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10.

11.

which is available at the Company website www.relianceins.com. Please ensure that your email has sufficient rights and
space available to receive such email which may be larger than 1 MB file in size. Further, it is the responsibility of the
member to timely update the share registrar of any change in their registered email address.

Financial Statements and relevant reports have been placed on the website of the company which can be seen on
www.relianceins.com.

TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL AUDITED ACCOUNTS AND NOTICE THROUGH CD/DVD/USB.

In compliance with the SECP Notification No.SRO 470(1)2016, dated May 31, 2016. The Company in the 35th Annual
General Meeting held on April 29, 2017, obtained the approval of the shareholders to circulate Annual Accounts through
CD/DVD/USB at their registered address instead of transmitting the Annual Accounts in hard copies. However,
shareholder may request the Company Secretary or Share Registrar of the Company for hard copy of Annual Audited
Accounts instead of CD / DVD / USB and the same will be provided at his / her registered address, free of cost, within one
week on the demand. In this regard, a ‘Standard Request Form, has also been placed at the website of the Company for
communicating the need of hard copies of the Annual Audited Accounts instead of sending the same through CD / DVD /
USB.

VOTING PROCEDURE FOR SPECIAL BUSINESS

The members are hereby notified that pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 amended through
Notification vide SRO 2192(1)/2022 dated December 05, 2022, the SECP has directed all the listed companies to provide
the right to vote through electronic voting facility and voting by post to the members on all businesses classified as special
business and in case of election of directors, if the number of persons who offer themselves to be elected is more than the
number of directors fixed i.e. Ten (10) under sub-section (1) of Section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017.

Accordingly, members of the Company will be allowed to exercise their right to vote through e-voting facility or voting by
post for the election of directors in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on Wednesday, April 30, 2025, at
12:30 p.m. at 181-A S.M.C.H.S., Karachi. In accordance with the requirements and subject to the conditions contained in
the aforesaid Regulations.

I. E-VOTING PROCEDURE
a. Detail of the e-voting facility will be shared through an e-mail with those members of the Company who have their
valid CNIC numbers, cell numbers, and e-mail addresses available in the register of members of the Company
within due course.

b. The web address, login details, will be communicated to members via email. The security codes will be
communicated to members through SMS from web portal of CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, (being the
e-voting service provider).

c. lIdentity of the Members intending to cast vote through e-Voting shall be authenticated through electronic
signature or authentication for login.

d. E-Voting lines will start from April 26, 2025, 09:00 a.m. and shall close on April 29, 2025, 05:00 p.m. Members can
cast their votes any time in this period. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a Member, he/she shall not be
allowed to change it subsequently

II. PROCEDURE FOR VOTING THROUGH POSTAL BALLOT
The members shall ensure that duly filled and signed ballot paper along with copy of Computerised National Identity
Card (CNIC) should reach the Chairman of the meeting through post on the Company’s registered address, 181-A,
S.M.C.H.S, Karachi or email at faraz.ahmed@relianceins.com one day before the Annual General Meeting i.e. on April
29, 2025, during working hours. The signature on the ballot paper shall match with the signature on CNIC.

APPOINTMENT OF SCRUTINISER

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) to the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 and Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 through S.R.O. 454(1)/2025 and S.R.O. 453(1)/2025 In
accordance with the Regulation 11 of the Regulations, the Board of the Company has appointed M/s Kreston Hyder Bhimiji
& Co. Chartered Accountants, a QCR rated audit firm, to act as the Scrutinizer of the Company for the Special Businesses
to be transacted in the meeting and to undertake other responsibilities as defined in Regulation 11A of the Regulations.

RESTRICTION ON DISTRIBUTION OF GIFTS
In accordance with the directive issued by the SECP vide its SRO 452(1)/2025 dated March 17, 2025 the company would
like to inform all the shareholders that no gifts will be distributed at the AGM.

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

As per the provision of section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, any shares issued or dividend declared by the Company
which have remained unclaimed/unpaid for a period of three years from the date on which it was due and payable are
required to be deposited with the Commission for the credit of Federal Government after issuance of notices to the
shareholders to file their claim. The details of the shares issued and dividend declared by the Company which have
remained due for more than three years was sent to shareholders. Shareholders are requested to ensure that their claims
for unclaimed dividend and shares are lodged timely. In case, no claim is lodged with the Company in the given time, the
Company shall after giving notice in newspaper proceed to deposit the unclaimed/unpaid amount and shares with the
Federal Government pursuant to the provision of Section 244 (2) of Companies Act, 2017.
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13.

14.

15.

CONVERSATION OF PHYSICAL SHARES INTO BOOK ENTRY FORM

The shareholders heaving physical shares may open CDC Sub-account with any of the broker or Investor Account directly
by with the Central Depository Company (CDC) of Pakistan Limited to have their physical shares converted into electronic
form. This will facilitate then in many way including safe custody. Further with the requirement of Section 72 of Companies
Act, 2017, every existing company having share capital required to replace its physical shares with book-entry form in a
manner as may be specified and from the date notified by SECP, within a period not exceeding four years from the
commence of the Act.

The Securitas and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its circular # CSD/ED/Misce/2016-639-640 dated March 26,
2021 has advised the listed companies to pursue their such members who still hold shares in physical form, to convert
their shares into book entry form.

CHANGE OF ADDRESS
Shareholders are requested to inform the Company’s Share Registrar of any change in their address, if any immediately.

SUBMISSION OF COPIES CNIC (MANDATORY)

The shareholders having physical shareholding are, therefore, advised to submit a photo copy of their valid CNICs and
Corporate entities are requested to provide NTN immediately, if already not provided, to the Company's Share Registrar
at the address, C & K Management Associates (Pvt) Limited, M-13, Progressive Plaza, Civil Lines Quarter, Beaumont Road
Karachi — 75530 without any further delay.

TAX ON ISSUANCE OF BONUS SHARES UNDER FINANCE ACT, 2023

Effectively July 01, 2023, companies are required to collect 10% tax from the shareholders at the time of issuance of bonus
shares, which shall be final tax on such income of the shareholders. The rate of tax for inactive taxpayer is 20%.

The value of bonus shares shall be taken as equivalent to day-end price on the first day of book closure.

In case of non-payment of tax by the shareholders, the company is required to dispose of shares to the extent of the tax
liability, to recover and deposit the tax.

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134 (3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
PERTAINING TO THE SPECIAL BUSINESS

The statement set out the material facts pertaining to the “Special Business” to be transacted at the 43rd Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on April 30, 2025.

Capitalization out of company’s appropriated Profit/Reserve

That a sum of Rs.339,343,540/- out of the Company’s profit be capitalized for issuing of 33,934,354 fully paid ordinary
shares of Rs.10 each and allotted as fully paid up Bonus Shares to the Members who are registered in the Book of the
Company at the close of business on 18th April, 2025 in the proportion of 51 new shares for every 100 existing ordinary
shares held and that such new shares shall rank pari passu with existing ordinary shares of the Company as regards future
dividends, and in all other respects.

That Bonus Shares forming part of such fraction holding which is not in exact multiple of 51:100 shares will be sold in the
Stock Market and to pay the proceeds of sale thereof, when realized, to a Charitable Institution.

That for the purpose of giving effect to the foregoing, the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
be and is hereby authorized to give such directions as may be necessary and as they deem fit to settle any questions or
any difficulties that may arise in the distribution of the said new shares or in the payment of sale proceeds of the fractional
shares.

None of the Directors of the Company are interested in this business except to the extent of their entitlement to bonus
shares as shareholder.

Increase of Authorized Share Capital

The current authorized share capital of the Company is Rs.1,000,000,000/- (Rupees One Billion only) divided into
100,000,000 (One Hundred million) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each.

In order to facilitate increase in the paid-up share capital as and when required to do so, the Board of Directors has
recommended that the authorized capital be increased from Rs.1,000,000,000/- to Rs.1,500,000,000/- by creation of
additional 50,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each. The proposed increase in the authorized share capital of the
Company will also necessitate amendments in Clause V of the Memorandum of Association and Article 4 of the Articles of
Association of the Company to reflect the increase in authorized share capital of the Company. For this purpose, a special
resolution is required to be considered and approved in this meeting.

The Directors are not interested in this business except as shareholders of the Company.
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

Statement of Financial Position & Profit & Loss Account

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Property and equipment

Investments

Equity securities

Debt securities

Term deposits

Loan and others receivables

Insurance / Reinsurance receivables

Reinsurance recoveries against outstandind claims
Deferred Commission Expenses

Deferred Taxation

Prepayment

Taxation-Provision less payment

Cash & Bank

Total Assets from General Takaful operation OPF

Total Assets

Ordinary share capital

Reserves

Unppropriated profit /(loss)

Surplus/(deficit)on revaluation of available for sale
Total Equity

Outstanding claims including IBNR

Unearned premium reserves

Unearned Reinsurance Commission

Deferred taxation

Insurance/ Reisurance Payable

Other Creditors and Accurals

Taxation-Provision less payment

Total Liabilaties from General Takaful Operation OPF

Total Equity and Liabilities
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Net insurance premium

Net insurance claims

Net Commission and acquisition expenses
Management Expenses

Underwriting Results

Invetment Income/(loss)

Other Income

Financial Charges

Others expenses

Profit before tax from takaful operations-Operators fund

Profit /( Loss) before Tax
Income tax expenses
Profit /( Loss) after Tax

Rupees in million

2023

104.760  87.159
1,200.098
70.081
43.508
4.576
642.362
271.630
94.843

839.874
70.093
42.629

5.135

537.187

176.420
95.313

228208  194.269

108.555

155.882

102.206
182.748

2,945.020 pRIVAIL

665.379
400.000
370364  225.050
136.688  21.992
1,572,431 1,222.421

665.379
310.000

343.523  230.153
489.493  440.171

33.683  39.285
126.464  30.144
192.165 216.604

86.709  76.108

59.124 22,637

41428  34.993

2,945.020 pRIVAIS

546.495  460.686
(152.815) (139.119)
(111.170)  (96.383)
(198.462) (176.318)
84.048  48.866
408.883  246.032
4.501 5.564

(91.334)  (72.645)
30.071  29.171
436.169  256.988
(134.316)  (85.091)
301.853 171.897

2022

72.739

681.276
70.104
42.591

4.163

386.729

152.488
74.412
20.409

155.143

101.815
126.995

1888.864

633.695
290.000
136.521
0.049
1060.265

188.533
339.217
3l.621

186.785
48.268
7.317
26.858

1888.864

360.467
(93.638)
(77.236)
(150.167)
39.426
67.385
0.549

(59.084)
19.324
67.600

(23.491)
44.109

2021

73.398

729.258
70.114
38.570
14747

304.283

178.690
64.560

6.961

165.211

93.709
108.194

1847.695

603.519
270.000
172.764

1.778
1048.061

212.979
306.513
30.638

195.477
32.419
0.335
21.273

1847.695

303.130
(64.168)
(54.981)
(152.112)
31.869
74.747
3.257

(50.048)
10.682
70.507

(17.497)
53.010

% Increase / (Decrease) over preceeding year

2024 2023 2022 2021
20.19 19.82 (0.90) (15.44)
42.89 23.28 (6.58) 4.11
(0.02) (0.02) (0.01) (0.06)

2.06 0.09 10.43 26.45
(10.89) 23.35 (71.77) 9.88
19.58 38.91 21.10 16.54
53.97 15.69 (14.66) 61.49
(0.49) 28.09 15.26 (11.10)
° (100.00) 193.19 100.00
17.47 25.22 (6.09) 3.72
(5.85) 6.62 8.65 (15.18)
17.23 22.75 17.38 9.76
27.35 22.43 2.23 7.43
5.00 5.00

29.03 6.90 7.41 -
(64.57)  (64.89) (20.98) 60.42

(521.54) (44,781.63) (97.24) (50.16)
28.63 15.29 1.16 6.87
49.26 22.08 (11.48) 45.77
11.21 29.76 10.67 (7.82)

(14.26) 24.24 3.21 (10.68)
(11.28) 15.96 (4.45) 19.84
13.93 57.68 48.89 173
100.00  100.00 100.00  (100.00)
1839 30.29 26.25 (15.20)
27.35 22.43 2.23 7.43
18.63 27.80 1891 (8.14)
9.84 48.57 45.93 (12.30)
15.34 24.79 40.48 (5.18)
12.56 17.41 (1.28) (1.52)
72.00 23.94 23.71 (28.94)
(66.19) (265.11) (9.85) (9.90)
(19.100 91343 (83.14) (55.67)
25.73 22.95 18.05 (6.77)
3.09 50.96 (80.90) (51.52)
(69.72)  (280.16) (4.12) (13.31)
57.85  262.23 34.26 (40.14)
(75.60) (289.71) (16.79) (3.81)
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS

Statement of Financial Position & Profit & Loss Account

Rupees in million

2024 2023 2022 2021

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION SOOORRNS Rupees % | Rupees % Rupees %

Property and equipment 104760  3.56 87159 377 72739 385 73398 397
Investments - = - -
Equity securities 1,200.098 4075  839.874 36.32 681.276 36.07 729.258 39.47
Debt securities 70.081  2.38 70093 3.03 70.104 371 70114 379
Term deposits 43508 148 42629 184 42.591 225 38570  2.09
Loan and others receivables 4576  0.16 5135 0.22 4163 022 14747  0.80
Insurance / Reinsurance receivables 642362 21.81  537.187 2323 | 386.729 20.47 304.283 16.47
Reinsurance recoveries against outstandind claims 271630 922 176420 763 152488  8.07 178.690  9.67
Deferred Commission Expenses 94843 3.22 95313 412 74412 394 64560 349
Deferred Taxation - - = - 20409  1.08 6.961 0.38
Prepayment 228208 7.75 194269 840 155.143 821 165211  8.94
Taxation-Provision less payment - - = - - - - -
Cash & Bank 102206 347 108555 4.69 101.815 539 93709 507
Total Assets from General Takaful operation OPF 182.748 621 155882 6.74 126.995 6.72 108.194 586
Total Assets 2,312,516 100.00 = 1888.864 100.00 | 1847.695 100.00
Ordinary share capital 665.379 2259  665.379 28.77 = 633.695 33.55  603.519 32.66
Reserves 400.000 1358  310.000 13.41 290.000 15.35 270.000 14.61
Unppropriated profit /(loss) 370.364 1258  225.050 9.73 = 136.521 723 172764  9.35
Surplus/(deficit)on revaluation of available for sale 136.688  4.64 21.992 095 0.049  0.00 1.778  0.10
Total Equity 1,572.431 5339 1,222.421 5286 1060.265 56.13 1048.061 56.72
Outstanding claims including IBNR 343523 11.66 230.153 9.95| 188533  9.98 212979 11.53
Unearned premium reserves 489493 16.62 440171 19.03 339.217 17.96 306.513 16.59
Unearned Reinsurance Commission 33683 1.14 39285 170 31.621 167 30638  1.66
Deferred taxation 126.464  4.29 30.144 - - - - -
Insurance/ Reisurance Payable 192165 653 216.604 9.37 186.785  9.89 195477 10.58
Other Creditors and Accurals 86.709 294 76108 329 48268 256 32419 175
Taxation-Provision less payment 59.124  2.01 22.637 098 7317 0.39 0.335  0.02
Total Liabilaties from General Takaful Operation OPF 41428 14 34993 151 26858 142 21273 115
Total Equity and Liabilities 2312516 10000 1888864 100.00 1847.695 100.00
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Net insurance premium 546.495 100.00 460.686 100.00 360.467 100.00 303.130 100.00
Net insurance claims (152.815) (27.96) (139.119) (30.20)| (93.638) (25.98) (64.168) (21.17)
Net Commission and acquisition expenses (111.170) (20.34)  (96.383) (20.92)| (77.236) (21.43) (54.981) (18.14)
Management Expenses (198.462) (36.32) (176.318) (38.27) (150.167) (41.66) (152.112) (50.18)
Underwriting Results 84.048 1538 48.866 10.61 39426 10.94 31.869 10.51
Invetment Income 408.883 74.82  246.032 53.41 67.385 18.69  74.747 24.66
Other Income 4501  0.82 5564  1.21 0549  0.15 3257  1.07
Financial Charges - 0.00 - 0.00 3 0.00 = 0.00
Others expenses (91.334) (16.71)  (72.645) (15.77) (59.084) (16.39) (50.048) (16.51)
Profit before tax from takaful operations-Operators fund 30.071  5.50 29171 633 19324 536 10.682  3.52
Profitbefore Tax 436169 79.81 256988 5578  67.600 1875 70507 23.26
Income tax expenses (134.316) (24.58)  (85.091) (18.47)| (23.491) (6.52) (17.497) (5.77)
Profit after Tax 301.853 55283  171.897 3731 44109 1224  53.010 17.49
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KEY FINANCIAL DATA

10 Years Growth At A Glance

Ordinary Share Capital

Share Holder's Equity

Reserves

Cash & Bank

Investment

Underwriting Provisions

Total Assets

Return on Assets %

Return on Equity %

Ordinary Share Capital to Assets %
Total Equity / Total Assets %

Written Gross Premium

Net Insurance Premium

Ratio to written Gross Premium %
Net Insurance Claims

Ratio tO Net Insurance Premium %
Management Expenses

Ratio to Written Gross Premium %
Ratio tO Net Insurance Premium %
Investment Income/(Loss)

Return of Investment %

Underwriting Results

Profit /(loss) Before Tax

Pecentage to Written Grosss Premium %
Profit /(loss) After Tax

Pecentage to Net Insurance Premium
Earnings/(loss) After Tax Per Share-Rupees
Dividend /Bonus %

Break up Value Per Share

Summary of Cashflow

Total Cash Flow from all Operating Activities
Total Cash Flow from Investment Activities
Total Gash Flow from Financing Activities

Net Cash Flow From all Activities

Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year

665.38
1572.43
40000
102,20
1313.68
866.70
2945.02
10.25%
19.20%
22.50%
53.30%
106007
546.495
5155%
152,81
27.34%
289.79
27.33%
53.02%
408.88
31.12%
84.05
436.17
41.14%
30185
55.23%
454
51%(B)
23.63

(123.51)
181.22
(64.22)

(6.34)

102.20

665.38
1222.42
310.00
108.56
952.60
709.61
2312.52
7.43%
14.06%
28.77%
52.86%
980.28
460.69
47.00%
139.12
30.30%
248.96
25.40%
54.04%
246.03
25.83%
48.87
225.82
23.04%
171.90
37.31%
2.58
10%(C)
18.37

(66.34)
99.65
(3057)
6.74
108.56

2024 2023 2022

633.69
1060.26
290.00
101.81
793.97
559.371
1888.864
2.34%
4.16%
33.55%
56.13%
761.88
360.46
47.31%
93.63
25.97%
209.25
27.46%
58.05%
67.38
8.49%
39.75
67.60
8.87%
4411
12.23%
0.70
5%(B)5%(C)
16.73

(55.52)
92,557
(28.99)
8.106
101815

2021

603.52
1048.06
270.00
93.71
837.94
550.13
1847.695
2.87%
5.06%
32.66%
56.72%
651.20
303.13
46.55%
64.16
21.17%
202.16
31.04%
66.69%
74.75
8.92%
31.87
70.51
10.83%
53.01
17.49%
0.88
5%(B)5%(C)
17.36

(54.277)
36.675

(17.601)
93.709

2020

561.41
997.63
250.00
11131
81351
52373
1713.973
4.00%
6.86%
32.76%
58.20%
569.07
319.48
56.14%
76.42
23.92%
199.80
35.11%
62.54%
8354
10.27%
29,01
8357
14,69%
68.49
2143
122
7.5%(B)
17.77

(62.242)
12305

(19.917)
111310

2019

561.41
933.53
250.00
131.22
777.31
480.11
1595.486
4.46%
7.63%
35.19%
58.51%
622.40
347.80
55.88%
87.21
25.07%
205.06
32.94%
58.96%
92.72
11.93%
40.82
96.40
15.49%
71.21
2047
1.27

16.63

(44.956)
31811

(13.145)
131.227

2018

561.41
856.92
250.00
144,37
711.11
588.06
1658.65
2.95%
5.72%
33.85%
51.60%
878.68
348.24
39.63%
87.17
25.03%
197.66
22.49%
56.76%
46.67
6.56%
48.62
60.12
6.84%
48.99
14.07%
0.87

15.24

(44.425)
28.663
(0.050)
(15.812)
144372

2017
Restated

561.41
798.93
250.00
160.18
70422
739.39

1791.12

(2.16)
(4.85)

31.35%

44.60%

1155.40
35765

30.95%

88.16

24.65%
188,99

16.36%

52.84%
(40.07)

(5.69)
67.08
(17,59
(1.52)
(38.79)
(10.85)
(0.69

14.23

38.113
2679
(24.969)
39975

160.185

Rupees in million

2016
Restated

510.37
876.96
220.00
120.24
795.29
782.59
1828.38
5.80%
12.09%
27.91%
47.96%
1201.84
359.41
29.90%
101.72
28.30%
179.66
14.95%
49.98%
104.36
13.12%
64.29
120.89
10.06%
106.04
29.50%
2.08
10%(B) 5%(C)
17.18

102.288
(66.426)
(22.831)
13.031
120239

2015

463.98
786.03
200.00
133.93
653.67
868.20
1766.56
4.58%
10.34%
26.26%
44.50%
1114.40
316.42
28.39%
89.86
28.40%
174.36
15.65%
55.10%
86.69
13.26%
49.22
90.79
8.15%
80.99
25.60%
1.75
10%(B) 5%(C)
16.94

40013
9.450
(20.035)
29.428
133,927
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SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION

Registered Office

96-A, Sindhi Muslim Co-operative Housing Society
Karachi.

Head Office

Reliance Insurance House,
181-A, Sindhi Muslim Co-operative Housing Society,
Karachi

Share Registrar Office

C&K Management Associates (Pvt.) Ltd.
M-13, Progressive Plaza Civil Lines Quarter,
Beaumont Road, Karachi-75530.

Phone 35687839, 35685930

Listing on Stock Exchanges

RICL equity shares are listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange (PSX).

Listing Fees

The annual listing fee for the financial year
2024-2025 was paid to the Pakistan Stock Exchange
and Central Depository Company (CDC) within the
prescribed time.

Stock Symbol

The stock symbol for Reliance Insurance Company
Limited at the PSX is RICL.

Statutory Compliance

During the year, the Company complied with all
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2017,
the Insurance Ordinance 2000, Insurance Rules
2017, Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019, the Code of
Corporate Governance, for insurers 2016 and others
regulations prescribed by SECP.

Book Closure Dates

The register of Member and share transfer books of
the Company will remain closed from 21st April,
2025 to 30th April, 2025 (both days inclusive).

43rd Annual General Meeting

Date 30th April, 2025
Time 12:30 pm
Venue Reliance Insurance House,

181-A, SMCHS, Karachi
Physical & (Via Vedio Link)

/4 RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Website of the Company

A comprehensive and user-friendly website has been
developed for Reliance Insurance Limited, providing
seamless access to vital corporate information. The
platform serves as a central repository for details
regarding the Company’s financial standing, historical
background and available insurance products.

To enhance operational efficiency and ensure prompt
resolution of concerns, an online complaint
management system has been integrated, enabling
investors and policyholders to register and track their
grievances with ease.

The Company's annual, half-yearly, and quarterly
financial statements are readily accessible at:
www.relianceins.com, ensuring transparency and
compliance with regulatory requirements.

Furthermore, disclosures  concerning  strategic
corporate events are communicated to the Pakistan
Stock Exchange as and when required, reinforcing the
Company’s commitment to timely and accurate
information dissemination.

For further details, please visit our official website:
www.relianceins.com.

Change of Address

Members are requested to immediately notify the
change of address, if any, to the Company’s Registrar.

Investors’ Grievances Policy

Reliance Insurance Limited
paramount significance of maintaining robust
relations with its investors, recognizing such
engagement as a fundamental pillar for the financial
sustainability and progressive growth of the
organization. Furthermore, the strength of investor
relations directly contributes to the goodwill and
corporate standing of the Company. In light of this, it
is imperative to establish a structured, efficient, and
legally compliant mechanism within the organization
to facilitate investor services and address grievances
in a systematic and transparent manner.

acknowledges the

Accordingly, the Company has ensured the
availability of all pertinent information on its official
website, including details of the Board of Directors,
auditors, share registrars, financial statements for the
current period as well as for the preceding six years,
and daily stock market updates reflecting the
Company's share prices as quoted on the Pakistan




SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION

Stock Exchange. The Company Secretary serves as
the designated point of contact for investors,
entrusted with the responsibility of addressing their
concerns and facilitating appropriate resolutions.

The management remains steadfast in its
commitment to investigating and resolving all investor
complaints and queries in a manner that ensures their
utmost satisfaction. In the event that an investor
remains dissatisfied with the resolution provided,
they may escalate their concerns to the Securities &
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through
the dedicated interactive link available on the
Company’s website.

The Company’s investor grievance redressal policy is

predicated upon the following fundamental principles:

e All investor communications—whether made in
person, via telephone, fax, or email—are received
with due diligence and addressed in a timely and
systematic manner.

e Every investor is accorded equitable and
respectful treatment at all times.

e Complaints and queries are handled with
promptness, efficiency, and fairness, ensuring a
professional and impartial resolution process.

Reliance Insurance Limited remains unwavering in its
dedication to fostering a transparent and
investor-friendly environment, upholding the highest
standards of corporate governance and regulatory
compliance.

M/s. C&K Management Associates (Pvt.) Ltd., being
the Registrars is primarily responsible to resolve the
investor's grievance. Shareholders’ enquiries about
their holding, dividend or share certificate etc. can be
directed to the Share Registrar at the following
address:

M/s. C&K Management Associates (Pvt.) Limited,
M-13, Progressive Plaza Civil Lines Quarter,
Beaumont Road, Karachi-75530. Phone 35687839,
35685930

In case investor's grievance is not addressed up to
his/her satisfaction or within reasonable time.
Investors may also directly write to the Company their
query/complaint at,

Company Secretary

Reliance Insurance Company Limited

181-A, SMCHS Karachi.

Company has designated email id
faraz.ahmed@relianceins.com for handling investor
grievance on which investor can make a complaint.

SUBMISSION OF CNIC COPIES (MANDATORY)

As per SECP directives, the dividend warrants of the
shareholders whose valid CNICs, are not available
with the Share Registrar could be withheld. All
shareholders having physical shareholding are,
therefore, advised to submit a photo copy of their
valid CNICs and Corporate entities are requested to
provide NTN immediately, if already not provided, to
the Company's Share Registrar at the following
address, M/s. C & K Management Associates (Pvt.)
Ltd., M-13, Progressive Plaza Civil Lines Quarter,
Beaumont Road, Karachi-75530. Phone 35687839,
35685930 without any further delay.

ELECTRONIC DIVIDEND MANDATE

Under section 242 of Companies Act, 2017 it is
mandatory for all listed Companies to pay cash
dividend to its shareholders only through electronic
mode directly into bank account designated by the
entitled shareholders.

In order to receive dividend directly into their bank
account, shareholders are requested (if not already
provided) to fill in Bank Mandate Form for Electronic
Credit of Cash Dividend available on the Company's
website www.relianceins.com and send it duly signed
along with a copy of CNIC to the Share Registrar of
the Company, M/s. C & K Management Associates
(Pvt.) Lid., M-13, Progressive Plaza Civil Lines
Quarter, Beaumont Road, Karachi-75530. Phone
35687839, 35685930 in case of physical shares.

In case shares are held in CDC, electronic dividend
mandate form must be directly submitted to
shareholder's brokers/ participant / CDC account
services.

In case of non-receipt of information, the Company
will be constrained to withhold payment of dividend
to shareholders.

ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND NOTICES

Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP) Notification S.R.0. 787(1)/2014
dated September 8, 2014, the Company is pleased to
extend to its members the facility of receiving the
Annual Financial Statements and other statutory
notices through electronic mail (email).

Members who wish to avail themselves of this facility
are requested to provide their consent by submitting a
duly completed Consent Form available on the
Company’s website at www.relianceins.com. The
completed form should be sent to the Company via
email at the address specified therein.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024




SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION

Members availing this facility are advised to ensure
that their designated email address is active, has
adequate rights and sufficient storage capacity to
receive email communications from the Company,
which may include attachments exceeding 1 MB in
size. It shall be the sole responsibility of the member
to promptly notify the Share Registrar of any change
in their registered email address to ensure
uninterrupted receipt of communications.

The Company’s Annual Financial Statements along
with other relevant reports and notices are also
available on the Company’s website and may be
accessed at www.relianceins.com.

Should you require any further information or
assistance, please contact the Share Registrar or the
Company Secretary’s Office.

CONVERSATION OF PHYSICAL SHARES
BOOK ENTRY FORM

INTO

The shareholders heaving physical shares may open
CDC sub-account with any of the brokers or Investor
Account directly by with the Central Depository
Company (CDC) of Pakistan Limited to have their
physical shares converted into electronic form. This
will facilitate then in many ways including safe
custody. Further with the requirement of Section 72
of Companies Act, 2017, every existing company
having share capital required to replace its physical
shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be
specified and from the date notified by SECP, within
a period not exceeding four years from the commence
of the Act.

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

As per the provision of section 244 of the Companies
Act 2017, any shares issued or dividend declared by
the Company which have remained unclaimed /
unpaid for a period of three years from the date on
which it was due and payable are required to be
deposited with the Commission for the credit of
Federal Government after issuance of notices to the
shareholders to file their claim. The details of the
shares issued and dividend declared by the Company
which have remained due for more than three years
was sent to shareholders. Shareholders are requested
to ensure that their claims for unclaimed dividend and

P2 RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

shares are lodged timely. In case, no claim is lodged
with the Company in the given time, the Company
shall after give notice in newspaper proceed to
deposit the unclaimed/unpaid amount and shares
with the Federal Government pursuant to the
provision of Section 244 (2) of Companies Act,
2017.

CONSENT FOR VIDEO CONFERENCE FACILITY

Pursuant to the provision to the Companies Act,
2017 the members can also avail the video
Conferencing facility. In this regard, please fill the
following and submit to Head Office of the Company
at least 7 days before the holding of annual general
meeting. If the Company receives consent from
members holding aggregate 10% or more
shareholding residing at the geographical location to
participate in the meeting, the Company will arrange
video conference facility in the city subject to
availability of such facility in that city. | / We,
of , being a
member of Reliance Insurance Co., Ltd. holder of
ordinary share(s) as per registered folio
no. hereby opt for video conferencing
facility at

DECISIONS TAKEN AT THE LAST ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

In accordance with the agenda of last Annual General
Meeting, the following matters were duly approved by
the members at the Annual General Meeting, and the
respective  decisions have been implemented
accordingly:

e Confirmation of the minutes of the Extraordinary
General Meeting held on June 26, 2023.

e Approval of the audited financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2023, together
with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports.

e Approval of the declaration of a cash dividend at
the rate of 10%.

e Appointment of M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, as the auditors of the
Company for the year 2024, along with the
approval of their remuneration.




FINANCIAL CALENDAR

RESULTS

Year ended First Half Third

31 December quarter ended year ended quarter ended
2023 31 March 2024 30 June 2024 30 Sep 2024
Announcement Announcement Announcement Announcement
Date Date Date Date

MARCH APRIL AUGUST OCTOBER
28,2024 29,2024 29,2024 30, 2024

CASH DIVIDEND

Cash Dividend

@ 10% Entitlement Date
MARCH APRIL
28, 2024 19, 2024

OTHERS

Annual Corporate Briefing VIS & Pacra
General Meeting Session Credit Rating

RICL at ‘A+’ (Single A+)
Outlook ‘Stable’

APRIL DECEMBER DECEMBER
29,2024 28,2024 31,2024
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDING

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

; Number of Number of Percentage of
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES UNDERTAKINGS
AND RELATED PARTIES

Anam Fabrics 1 86,396 0.13
NIT / ICP/ IDBP

Investment Corporation of Pakistan, IDBP ICP Units 5 572 0.00
DIRECTORS, CEO & OTHER SPOUSES AND 12 18,800,349 28.26

MINOR CHILDREN
The detail are as under:

MR. IRFAN ZAKARIA BAWANY 1 4,114,256

MR. MUHAMMAD OMER BAWANY 1 1,545,427

MR. ZIA ZAKARIA 1 418,875

MR. AHMED ALI BAWANY 1 3,782,235

MR. NOOR M. ZAKARIA 1 1,759,561

MR. MUHAMMAD PATEL 1 5,925

MR. NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 1 5,925

MS. TASNEEM YUSUF 1 5,925

MR. JAHANGIR ADAM 1 5,925

MRS. SHEHLA IRFAN 1 3,980,391

MRS. RUKHSANA BAI OMER 1 1,416,342

MRS. SHAHNAZ SATTAR ZAKARIA 1 1,759,562

EXECUTIVE - - -
PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES AND CORP. - - -
BANK,DEVELOPMENT FINANCE INSTITUTIONS, NON BANKING 3 792 0.00
FINANCE INSTITUTION, INSURANCE COMPANIES, MODARABAS

AND MUTUAL FUNDS

JOINT STOCK COMPANIES 13 17,167,017 25.80
GOVERNMENT DEPARTMENT 2 932,290 1.40
Federal Board of Revenue

INDIVIDUALS 1,113 28,743,218 43.20
ISE Tower REIT Management Co. Ltd. 1 2,397 0.00
WELFARE SOCIETY 1 252,527 0.38
Pakistan Memon Educational & Welfare Society

CHARITABLE TRUSTS 2 551,600 0.83

Begum Aisha Ahmed & Latif Foundation

Trustee Begum Asia Bawany

TRADE 1 791 0.00
Rafum Corporation (pvt.) Ltd.

TOTAL :- 1,154 66,537,949 100.00

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING FIVE PERCENT OR
MORE VOTING INTEREST.

M/s.Sharmeen Food (Pvt.) Ltd. 1 7,891,520 11.86
M/s.Irfan Ashfagq & Company (Pvt.) Ltd., 1 7,308,864 10.98
Mr. Irfan Zakaria Bawany 1 4,114,256 6.18
Mrs.Shehla Irfan 1 3,980,391 5.98
Mr. Ahmed Ali Bawany 1 3,782,235 5.68
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

Number of Shareholdings
Shareholders Total snares held
427 1 - 100 7,338
134 101 - 500 34,670
106 501 - 1000 76,771
235 1001 - 535,696
81 5001 - 10000 573,008
33 10001 - 15000 400,116
15 15001 - 20000 266,331
14 20001 - 25000 306,957
14 25001 - 30000 387,719
8 30001 - 35000 256,739
4 35001 - 40000 161,377
5 40001 - 45000 211,858
6 45001 - 50000 286,137
3 50001 - 55000 168,272
2 55001 - 60000 116,011
1 65001 - 70000 65,
1 75001 - 80000 78,936
3 85001 - 90000 262,632
2 90001 - 95000 185,760
1 5001 - 100000 97,284
1 125001 - 130000 127,076
2 130001 - 135000 264,670
1 135001 - 140000 138,101
1 145001 - 150000 148,080
1 150001 - 155000 151,094
1 160001 - 165000 162,355
1 165001 - 170000 169,026
2 175001 - 180000 353,000
1 180001 - 185000 182,559
1 190001 - 195000 193,181
1 220001 - 225000 220,992
3 235001 - 240000 710,124
1 245001 - 250000 248,850
1 250001 - 255000 252,527
1 255001 - 260000 259,555
1 275001 - 280000 275,348
1 280001 - 285000 280,754
2 295001 - 300000 594,201
1 310001 - 315000 311,206
1 350001 - 355000 351,910
1 380001 - 385000 382,314
1 415001 - 420000 418,875
2 440001 - 445000 885,373
1 490001 - 495000 491,889
1 525001 - 530000 526,651
1 540001 - 545000 543,538
1 585001 - 590000 587,171
1 720001 - 725000 723,182
1 750001 - 755000 751,329
2 760001 - 765000 1,524,962
1 805001 - 810000 808,890
1 850001 - 855000 854,406
1 880001 - 885000 881,764
1 935001 - 940000 935,102
1 940001 - 945000 41,4
1 1000001 - 1005000 1,000,112
1 1275001 - 1280000 1,275,294
1 1395001 - 1400000 1,399,229
1 1415001 - 1420000 1,416,342
1 1545001 - 1550000 1,545,427
2 1755001 - 1760000 3,519,123
1 1810001 - 1815000 1,810,102
3 1890001 - 1895000 5,673,354
1 2300001 - 2305000 2,304,154
1 2520001 - 2525000 2,523,486
1 3780001 - 3785000 3,782,235
1 3975001 - 3980000 3,978,317
1 7305001 - 7310000 7, ,864
1 7890001 - 7895000 7,891,520
1154 66,537,949
Categories of Number of Total ®
& Nex sharegholders share holders shares hold Percentage %
1 INDIVIDUALS 1125 47,543,567 71.45
2 INVESTMENT COMPANIES 5 572 0.00
3 INSURANCE COMPANIES 1 766 0.00
4 JOINT STOCK COMPANIES 14 17,253,413 25.98
5 FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 1 25 0.00
6 WELFARE SOCIETY 1 252,527 0.38
7 CHARITABLE TRUSTS 2 551,600 0.83
8 MODARABA MANAGEMENT COMPANIES 1 1 0.00
9 TRADE 1 791 0.00
10 GOVERNMENT DEPARTMENT 2 932,290 1.40
11 REIT MANAGEMENT 1 2,397 0.00
1154 66,537,949 100.00
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CHAIRMAN'’S REVIEW

| am pleased to present the Forty-third Annual Report and
Performance Review of your Company on behalf of the Board
of Directors for the year ended 31st December 2024.

Pakistan’s economy navigated formidable challenges in 2024,
delivering a measured yet significant 2.4% GDP growth,
despite structural inefficiencies, political uncertainty, and fiscal
constraints. Global economic headwinds and geopolitical
uncertainties added complexity to the landscape; however, key
sectors exhibited resilience and adaptability.

As FY2025 unfolds, Pakistan’s economic recovery continues to
gain traction, fuelled by supportive monetary policies,
international financial assistance, and targeted structural
reforms. The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) projects GDP
growth in the range of 2.5% to 3.5%, reflecting cautious
optimism.

Inflation witnessed a historic decline, the SBP initiated an
aggressive monetary easing cycle, slashing the key interest rate
from 22% in mid-2023 to 12% by March 2025.

Agriculture remains the bedrock of economic resilience, with
exceptional yields in wheat, rice, and cotton supporting rural
incomes and food security. Meanwhile, large-scale
manufacturing has begun to show signs of revival, in the
automobile, textile, food & beverage, and petroleum sectors.

Pakistan’s external sector has shown extraordinary resilience,
achieving a current account surplus of $1.21 billion in the first
half of FY25, a sharp reversal from the $1.4 billion deficit
recorded previously. Exports surged 9% year-over-year to
$20.28 billion, while remittances skyrocketed by 33% to $17.85
billion, significantly strengthening foreign exchange reserves
and reinforcing economic stability. However, fiscal revenue
shortfalls of Rs. 386 billion underscore persistent vulnerabilities,
highlighting the urgent need for enhanced revenue mobilization,
fiscal discipline, and sustainable public finance management.

The insurance industry in Pakistan has exhibited remarkable
resilience, bolstered by a surge in fire and property insurance
premiums amid increasing economic activity and evolving risk
dynamics. The sector's growth has been further supported by
regulatory initiatives led by the Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP), which remains committed to
driving market expansion.

Under its ambitious five-year strategic roadmap, the SECP has
introduced policy reforms aimed at enhancing transparency,
improving risk-based capital frameworks, and fostering digital
transformation. Notably, advancements in Insurtech have
played a pivotal role in reshaping the industry, with digital
platforms streamlining underwriting processes, enhancing
customer accessibility, and promoting financial inclusion.

Aligned with our strategic objective to boost the company's
revenue, your Company underwrote a gross premium of
Rs.1,217.148 million (inclusive of Rs.157.074 million of Takaful
Contribution) compared to Rs.1,105.781 million (inclusive of
Rs.125.505 million of Takaful Contribution) in the previous year,
marking an increase of 10%.

L) RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Your Company achieved a profit after tax of Rs.301.852 million,
a significant improvement from Rs.171.898 million reported in
the previous year. The Operator’s Fund recorded a profit after
tax of Rs.20.449 million, compared to Rs.20.712 million in 2023.

In the first half of the year, volatility gripped capital markets,
largely attributable to the delayed resumption of the IMF
Program and the fragile economic environment. However, the
latter half witnessed a turnaround with the implementation of
the IMF’s Stand-By Agreement and a stabilized currency,
reflecting positive momentum into the market. The Pakistan
Stock Exchange (PSX) experienced significant growth, with the
benchmark KSE-100 Index reaching new heights. The index
began the year at approximately 62,052 points and concluded
at 115,127 points, marking an impressive increase of 85%.
This substantial growth was driven by factors such as robust
remittance inflows, declining inflation, and expectations of
monetary policy easing by the State Bank of Pakistan.

Amid this favourable market environment, your company's
strategic investment approach vyielded outstanding results.
Investment income surged by 66% to Rs.408.883 million, up
from Rs.246.032 million in the previous year. This robust growth
underscores the efficacy of our investment strategies and our
ability to capitalize on market opportunities, reinforcing our
commitment to delivering superior shareholder value.

As we conclude, | wish to extend my heartfelt thanks and
appreciation to the esteemed members of the Board of
Directors for their unwavering commitment and guidance in
supporting the management. | am also deeply grateful to our
shareholders for their trust and steadfast support in our
Company.

Furthermore, | would like to express my sincere gratitude for the
invaluable support provided by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan, Pakistan Reinsurance Company
Limited, State Bank of Pakistan, and all our valued reinsurers.
Their continued backing and support has been instrumental in
our successful journey.

Lastly, but certainly not least, | would like to commend the Chief
Executive and his dedicated team for their tireless efforts,
unwavering commitment, and sincere dedication. Their
contributions have been indispensable to the success of the
Company.

o
-

Irfan Zakaria Bawany
Chairman
Karachi. 27th March 2025.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their report, along with the audited financial statements and

Auditor's report for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Despite the challenges encountered throughout the year 2024, we are pleased to announce the following results

achieved by your Company:

OPERATIONAL RESULTS FOR THE YEAR 2024

The comparative financial highlights of your Company
for the years ended December 31, 2024, are as follows:

2024 § 2023

Rs. in Million

Gross Premium

(Including Takaful Contribution) 1,217.148 1,105.781

Net Premium 546.496 460.686
Net Incurred Claims

(including IBNR) 152.815 139.119
Management Expenses 198.462 176.318
Underwriting Profit 84.048 48.866
Investment Income 408.883 246.032
Profit before Taxation 436.169 256.988
Profit after Taxation 301.852 171.898
Earnings per Share

(EPS) - Rupees 4.54 2.58

Your Company continues to achieve a remarkable
milestone by surpassing the gross premium threshold of
one billion rupees. During the year under review, the
Company recorded a gross premium of Rs.1,217.148
million, including Rs.157.074 million in Takaful
contributions, reflecting a 10% year-on-year growth
compared to Rs.1,105.781 million in the previous year

(inclusive of Rs.125.505 million in Takaful contributions).

Similarly, net premium income witnessed a substantial
increase of Rs.85.81 million, enhancing from Rs.460.686
million in 2023 to Rs.546.496 million in 2024, reinforcing
the Company’s growing market presence and
sustainable underwriting strategies.

While the Company incurred net claims amounting to
Rs.152.815 million during the year—an increase of
Rs.13.696 million from Rs.139.119 million in 2023 —the
overall underwriting performance remained strong. The
underwriting profit grew significantly by 72%, reaching
Rs.84.048 million compared to Rs.48.866 million in the
previous year. This improvement underscores the
robustness of the Company’s risk management
framework and prudent underwriting practices.

Investment income contributed significantly to overall
profitability, surging from Rs.246.032 million in 2023 to
Rs.408.883 million in 2024. As a result, profit before tax
surged by 70%, reaching Rs.436.170 million, while profit
after tax recorded an exceptional 76% growth, rising
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from Rs.171.898 million to Rs.301.853 million. Despite
macroeconomic uncertainties, your Company has
demonstrated operational resilience, prudent financial
management, and a commitment to sustainable growth.
These achievements are a testament to the strength of
our core business strategies, efficient claims
management, and a disciplined approach to cost control.

The earnings per share (EPS) also reflected this strong
financial performance, improving from Rs.2.58 in 2023
to Rs.4.54 in 2024, further enhancing shareholder value.

Over the years, we have consistently raised concerns
regarding the wunilateral and arbitrary fixation of
so-called 'Bank Limits' and the delisting / non-listing /
prequalifying practices adopted by some Banks, DFls
(Development  Financial Institutions), Financial
Institutions, and various Authorities/Organizations.
These practices have led to an unequal playing field for
market participants within the insurance industry.

It is imperative that these discriminatory practices be
addressed by the relevant authorities for the larger and
best interests of the insurance industry. Fair and
transparent regulations are essential to foster healthy
competition and ensure equal opportunities for all
stakeholders. We urge for concerted efforts to rectify
these issues and establish a level playing field
conducive to the growth and sustainability of the
insurance sector.




Appropriation would increase Paid up Capital to Rs. 1004.723 million

and General Reserve for Rs. 400 million with the total Assets Surge
to Rs. 2,945.020 million
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INVESTMENT

Your Company's investment policy remains steadfast in
its dedication to Shariah-compliant Islamic funds,
aiming to secure returns while seizing market
opportunities. The investment portfolio is judiciously
structured, balancing fixed-income securities with
equity investments, with a focus on blue-chip stocks
that offer high dividend vyields, consistent bonus
payouts, and long-term capital appreciation. This
prudent diversification is actively overseen by the
Investment Committee to optimize returns while
mitigating risks.

The Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) exhibited
exceptional performance in 2024, reflecting robust
investor confidence and improved macroeconomic
conditions. The benchmark KSE-100 Index surged by
an unprecedented 84.35% during the year, escalating
from 62,451.04 points on December 31, 2023, to an
all-time high of 115,126.50 points by December 31,
2024, marking an increase of 52,675.86 points. This
remarkable bull run was largely driven by the revival of
the International Monetary Fund (IMF) Stand-By
Agreement, effective currency stabilization measures,
and positive investor sentiment, particularly in the latter
half of the year.

The capital markets faced significant volatility in the first
half due to delays in the IMF program resumption and
broader economic challenges, including high
inflationary pressures. However, the turnaround in the
second half was supported by monetary and fiscal
measures aimed at restoring investor confidence.
Sectors such as energy, and technology witnessed
substantial growth, contributing to the overall surge in
market capitalization.

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) implemented a series
of monetary policy adjustments throughout 2024 to
address prevailing economic conditions. The policy rate
experienced a cumulative decrease of 900 basis points,
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descending from a peak of 22% in June 2024 to 13% by
December 2024. This monetary easing aimed to
stimulate economic growth amid easing inflationary
pressures. The reduction in policy rates resulted in
attractive returns for risk-averse investors in
fixed-income securities, while also exerting upward
pressure on equity valuations due to lower discount
rates applied in valuation models. Despite these
dynamics, strong corporate earnings growth and an
improved economic outlook offset potential negative
effects, bolstering equity market performance.

Amid this dynamic economic landscape, your
Company's  well-calibrated  investment  strategy
delivered exceptional results. Investment income
recorded an impressive growth of 66.19%, reaching Rs.
408.883 million in 2024, compared to Rs. 246.032 million
in 2023. This performance underscores the effectiveness
of our structured approach in capitalizing on market
fluctuations and emerging opportunities.

Dividend income rose to Rs. 115.447 million, reflecting a
6.59% increase from Rs. 108.313 million in the previous
year. The Company also realized capital gains of Rs.
73.695 million, a substantial increase from Rs. 14.090
million in the previous year, demonstrating strategic
acumen in equity trading. Unrealized gains also saw a
notable rise, standing at Rs. 193.333 million, compared
to Rs. 95.145 million in the prior year, indicating strong
valuation gains across key holdings.

Your Company maintains a robust and liquid investment
portfolio to ensure sustained income generation and
financial resilience. As of December 31, 2024, the total
investment portfolio stood at Rs. 1,313.687 million,
compared to Rs. 952.596 million in the previous year,
reflecting a substantial expansion in asset allocation.
Sukuk holdings amounted to Rs. 70.08 million, and Term
Deposits totaled Rs. 43.509 million, reinforcing a stable
yield component. Cash and Bank Deposit Accounts
were recorded at Rs. 102.206 million, marginally lower
than Rs. 108.555 million in the previous year.
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Your Company's disciplined investment approach,
combined with strategic allocation across diverse asset
classes, has positioned it to navigate market volatility
effectively while maximizing shareholder value. Looking
ahead, a continued focus on risk-adjusted returns,
macroeconomic trends, and monetary policy shifts will
remain central to optimizing investment performance.

CIAIMS

The Company acknowledges its liability for all claims
incurred up to the Statement of Financial Position date,
recognizing them at the undiscounted value of expected
future payments.

To account for claims that have been incurred but not
yet reported (IBNR), a provision is established as of the
balance sheet date. In compliance with SECP Circular
No. 9 of 2016, the Company engages actuarial
professionals to determine the IBNR claims. The
estimation process follows the Chain Ladder (CL)
methodology, which involves identifying development
factors or link ratios for each period. These factors are
then aggregated to derive the Cumulative Development
Factor (CDF), which represents the projected
progression of claims towards their ultimate settlement.

REINSURANCE

We are pleased to report that the Company has
successfully finalized its reinsurance program for the
year 2025. Swiss Re, a globally renowned and
prestigious reinsurer, continues to lead RIC’s
reinsurance  program  for 2025.  Additionally,
underwriting capacity for Fire, Engineering, Marine, and
Motor lines of business has been further strengthened in
2025. This enhancement allows the Company to
underwrite larger risks with greater efficiency. We
extend our sincere appreciation to all our reinsurers for
their unwavering trust, collaboration, and continued
support. Their partnership remains a cornerstone of our
operational success and financial stability.

WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS
The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

(SECP), Insurance Division, granted license to the

KPA RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Company to undertake Window Takaful Operations on
May 25, 2016. Reliance Takaful operates under the
guidance of a renowned, qualified, and certified Shariah
Scholar.

Reliance Takaful offers a comprehensive range of
Shariah-compliant General Takaful products, including
Fire and Property Takaful, Marine Cargo Takaful,
Private/Commercial Vehicles Takaful, Engineering
Takaful, and Miscellaneous and Accident Takaful.

We are committed to providing ethical and transparent
Takaful solutions that align with Islamic principles and
cater to the diverse needs of our customers.

The summarized comparative financial results of

Window Takaful operations for the years 2024 and 2023
are as follows:

L2024 J 2023

Rs. in Million
Gross Contribution 157.074  125.505
Net Contribution 34.264 14.180
Wakala Expense 49.981 44.561
Surplus for the year - PTF 2.189 0.245
Operator’s Fund

Revenue Account 11.432 9.203

Operator’s before tax Profit 30.072 29.171
APPROPRIATION OF PROFIT

| 2024

Rs. in Million

Amount brought forward
from previous years 68.511

Profit after tax for the year ended
31st December, 2024

Amount available for appropriation

301.853
370.364

Your Directors recommend appropriation in the
following manner: -

APPROPRIATION OF PROFIT
(2024

Rs. in Million

Proposed Cash Dividend Nil
(2023:10%) -
Proposed issue of Bonus Shares
51% (2023: Nil)
Transfer to General Reserve Nil
(2023: Rs.90 million) -
Un-appropriated balance
carried forward 31.020

339.344

ENHANCED AUTHORISED CAPITAL

The Board of Directors remains steadfast in their
commitment to strengthening the Company's financial
position by augmenting enhanced capital in alignment
with its long-term strategic vision. Given the promising
growth trajectory and future expansion prospects, the
Board has approved and proposed to an increase in the
Authorised Capital from Rs.1,000 million to Rs.1,500
million.




ENHANCED PAID UP CAPITAL

In line with the Company’s growth trajectory and
long-term strategic objectives, your Directors remain
firmly committed to strengthening the capital base. As
part of this proactive approach, the Board has approved
appropriations, resulting in an increase in the
Company’s Paid-up Capital from Rs.665.379 million to
Rs.1,004.73 million. This prudent financial management
strategy ensures sustainable growth and fortifies the
Company’s ability to meet the evolving needs of its
stakeholders

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

In today’s rapidly evolving digital landscape, the
significance of Information Technology (IT) cannot be
overstated. Uninterrupted IT services are fundamental
to seamless business operations, ensuring efficiency,
security, and innovation. Your Company remains
committed to continuous investment in the expansion
and enhancement of its technological infrastructure to
drive operational excellence and sustain competitive
advantage.

A cornerstone of our IT ecosystem is the advanced
General Insurance Software, ‘iGIAS,” which has been
successfully deployed across branch operations. This
robust platform is distinguished by its fully integrated
architecture, seamlessly interconnecting core business
functions such as Underwriting, Claims, Accounts, and
Reinsurance. Developed with cutting-edge Java
scripting and powered by a secure Oracle database,
‘iGIAS’ ensures streamlined data management while
prioritizing security, scalability, and compliance.

Recognizing the evolving needs of the industry, ‘iGIAS’
has also been strategically adapted to facilitate General
Takaful services. This adaptation has been successfully
implemented at the branch level, significantly enhancing
operational efficiencies, strengthening internal controls,
and optimizing the Management Information System
(MIS) for superior decision-making capabilities.

In adherence to international best practices, the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) introduced Cyber Security Framework
guidelines for the Insurance Sector in 2020. This
initiative aligns cybersecurity measures with enterprise
risk management strategies, paving the way for ISO
27001 certification. By implementing these stringent
security protocols, our Company proactively mitigates
risks associated with internal vulnerabilities and external
threats, fortifying our digital ecosystem against potential
breaches.

Our IT strategy is meticulously aligned with the
Company’s operational imperatives, ensuring agility,
resilience, and an enhanced customer experience. By
leveraging state-of-the-art technologies and
industry-leading security frameworks, we remain
steadfast in our commitment to delivering superior
services, fostering trust, and achieving the highest levels
of customer satisfaction.

CREDIT RATING

PACRA and VIS both credit rating agencies of Pakistan
have assigned Insurer Financial Strength (IFS) rating of
Reliance Insurance Company Limited (RICL) at ‘A+’
(Single A Plus). Outlook on the assigned Rating is
‘Stable’.  The assigned rating reflects sound
capitalization level and liquidity profile of the company.
Reinsurance panel is considered strong with Swiss Re
as the lead reinsurer. Retention level and treaty
capacities have witnessed steady increase given
anticipated growth in business volume.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions have been reviewed \
recommended by the Audit Committee and approved
by the Board of Directors in their respective meetings.
All transactions executed with related parties are on
arm’s length basis.

LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT

The company maintains a prudent and strategic
approach to liquidity management, ensuring seamless
fulfillment of financial obligations through strong cash
flows from core operations, strategic investments, and
other income sources. This disciplined approach
enhances financial stability, strengthens resilience, and
enables the company to effectively navigate market
dynamics while capitalizing on growth opportunities.

As of December 31, 2024, the company’s solvency
stood at Rs. 480.428 million, substantially exceeding the
statutory requirement of Rs. 150 million by Rs. 330.428
million. This strong surplus underscores the company’s
solid financial foundation, reinforcing its ability to meet
obligations with confidence and efficiency.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax, if any, is provided using the liability
method on all temporary differences at the statement of
financial position date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amount for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities, if any, are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based
on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted,
or substantially enacted of the statement of financial
position date.

Deferred tax assets, if any, are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the assets can be utilized.

ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING AND COUNTERING
FINANCING TERRORISM

SECP has issued guidelines/regulations on anti-money
laundering policies and procedures and also various
circulars for the implementation of Know Your Customer
(KYC) Guidelines applicable on insurance companies.
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SECP has also issued Anti Money Laundering,
(Combating the Financing of Terrorism and Countering
Proliferation Financing) Regulations, 2020 which are
very comprehensive guidelines for AML and KYC. RICL
has implemented these guidelines to cater the relevant
risk and exposure.

ROLE OF COMPLIANCE

Role of Compliance Function is imperative to evaluate
the efficiency and effectiveness of internal control
against risks and threats, particularly with respect to
regulatory compliance. The Compliance Officer is
responsible to improve the control environment and
ensure compliance of various applicable laws,
regulatory  requirements, internal policies and
procedures with specific emphasis on compliance with
SECP’s Regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE LEADERSHIP SKILL
PROGAM

Following directors have successfully completed
Corporate Governance Leadership skills (CGLS)
program of Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance
(PICG)/The Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan.

Mr. Irfan Zakaria Bawany

Mr. Ahmed Ali Bawany

Ms. Tasneem Yusuf
Mr. Muhammad Patel

el

Five Directors meet the criteria of eligibility as directors
having 15 years’ experience on the Board of listed
companies and 14 years of Education as stipulated
under Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019.

CORPORATE BREIEFING

A Corporate Briefing session was conducted for
Shareholders and Analysts on December 28, 2024, in
compliance with the regulations of the Pakistan Stock
Exchange. The session was conducted via video link
and/or physical attendance, facilitating participation
from both remote and in-person attendees. Senior
Management and Shareholders were present during the
briefing, providing valuable insights and updates on the
company's performance, strategic initiatives, and future
outlook. This session served as an important platform
for transparent communication, fostering engagement
and collaboration between the company's management
and its stakeholders.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance
set out by the regulatory authority have been duly
complied with. A statement to this effect is annexed
with the report.

K73 RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

CORPORATE AND
FRAMEWORK

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company has been in compliance with the
provisions set out by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan. There has been no material
departure from best practices of the Corporate
Governance, as detailed therein.

a) The financial statements prepared by the
management of the company fairly present its state
of affairs, the results of the operations, cash flow
and changes in equity.

b) Proper books of accounts of the Company have
been maintained.

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of financial
statement and accounting estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent judgments.

d) The International Accounting Standard,
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
or any other regulation or law as applicable in
Pakistan have been followed in preparation of
financial statements and any departure from there
has been adequately disclosed.

e) The system of internal control is sound in design
and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

f) The pattern of shareholding in the Company as at
31st December, 2024 is annexed to the accounts.

g) There are no significant doubts upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

h) There has been no material departure from the best
practices of Corporate Governance.

i) Key operating and financial data for the last Ten
years in summarized form is annexed.

i) The Value of investments based on the unaudited
accounts as at 31st December 2024, in respect of
the Provident Fund stood at Rs.118.258 million.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The total number of Directors are nine (9) as per
following:-

(@) Male 08
(b) Female 01

The composition of board is as follows:-

e Independent Directors (3)
e Non-Executive Directors (6)
e Executive Director (1)

Mr. A. Razak Ahmed is the Chief Executive and
Managing Director of the company. Being the CEO &
MD of the company he is deemed to be a director.




The Board was actively involved during the year in
performing its duties including those to be performed
under various relevant Laws and Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company, with the
ultimate objectives of self-guarding the interest of the
Shareholders, increase in profitability of the Company
and promoting market confidence.

All the directors possess rich exposure of diverse field of
business and professions and also requisite skills and
understanding to deal with various business and
corporate issues and have ability to review, analyze and
challenge the management performance. They have
contributed immensely in terms of their experience and
practical advice.

DIRECTOR’S REMUNARATION

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act,
2017, Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 and Articles of
Association of the Company, the policy concerning
remuneration for non-executive directors including
Independent directors, is that no remuneration is paid
except meeting fee for attending the Board meetings as
per the requirements of Article 137 of the Company’s
Articles of Association.

ROLE OF CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR /CEO

Chairman of the Board is responsible to ensure that the
Board is working properly and all the matters relevant to
the governance of the company are considered in the
Board Meetings. The Chairman presides and conducts
the Board meetings and is responsible to lead the Board
and ensure its effective functioning and continuous
development. The Chairman has no involvement in
day-to-day operations of the Company.

MANAGING DIRECTOR/CEO

The Board of Directors appoint The Managing Director /
Chief Executive Officer of the Company for the tenure of
three years. Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
the operations of the Company and conduct of its
business in accordance with all statutory obligations
and subject to the direction of the Board and power
vested in him by law. His responsibilities include
implementation of strategies and policies of the Board.
He is responsible for exercising the overall control,
direction, administration and supervision for sound and
efficient management and conduct of the business of
the Company. The Chairman and Managing Director
meet regularly to discuss / review issues, opportunities
and challenges.

MD’s PERFORMANCE REVIEW
The performance of the Managing Director is evaluated

by the Board on annual basis based on the business
activities performed during the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has constituted Audit, Investment, Human

Resource & Remuneration and Nomination Committees
comprising of the following Non-Executive Directors:

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The following are the members of audit committee.

1. Ms. Tasneem Yusuf Chairperson
(Independent Director)
Member
(Non-Executive Director)
3. Mr. Muhammad Omar Bawany Member
(Non-Executive Director)

Secretary

2. Mr. Irfan Zakaria Bawany

4, Mr. Faraz Abdul Razzak

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include
the following:

i Recommending to the Board of Directors the
appointment of External Auditors and consider any
questions of audit fee; taking into consideration a
number of factors including satisfactory rating
under ICAPS quality control review program;

ii. Consideration of questions regarding resignation
or removal of External Auditors;

ii. Determination of appropriate measures to
safeguard the company’s assets;

iv. Review of quarterly, half yearly and annual
financial statements of the Company, prior to the
approval by the Board of Directors;

v.  Major judgmental areas;

vi. Review of adjustments resulting from audit;

vii. Going concern assumption;

viii. Any changes in auditing policies and practices;

ix. Review of preliminary announcement of results
prior to publication;

x.  Review and recommend all related party transactions;
xi.  Compliance with applicable accounting standards;

xii. Determination of compliance with relevant
statutory requirements;

xiii. Monitoring compliance with the best practices of
corporate governance and regulations and
identification of any significant violations thereof;

xiv. Consideration of major findings of internal
investigations of activities characterized by fraud,
corruption and abuse of power and management’s
response thereto;

xv. Consideration of any other issue or matter as may
be assigned by the board of directors;
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xvi. - facilitating the external audit and discussion with
external auditors of major observations arising
from interim and final audits and any matter that
the auditors may wish to highlight (in the absence
of management, where necessary);

xvii. review of arrangement for staff and management
to report to audit committee in confidence,
concerns, if any about actual or potential
improprieties in financial and other matters and
recommend instituting remedial and mitigating
measures;

xviii. review of management letter issued by external
auditors and management’s response thereto;

XiX. ensuring coordination between the internal and
external auditors of the company;

xX. review the scope and extent of internal audit, audit
plan, reporting framework and procedures and
ensuring that the internal audit function has
adequate resources and is appropriately placed
within the company;

Xxi. ascertaining that the internal control systems
including financial and operational controls,
accounting systems and the reporting structure
are adequate and effective;

xxii. review of the company’s statement on internal
control systems prior to endorsement by the board
of directors and internal audit reports;

xxiii. instituting special projects, value for money
studies or other investigations on any matter
specified by the board of directors, in consultation
with the chief executive officer and to consider
remittance of any matter to the external auditors or
to any other external body;

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Investment Committee consists of six members:

Chairman
(Non-Executive Director)

1. Mr. Irfan Zakaria Bawany

Member
(Non-Executive Director)

2. Mr. Ahmed Ali Bawany

Member
(Independent Director)

3. Ms. Tasneem Yusuf

4. Mr. Muhammad Patel Member

(Non-Executive Director)

5. Mr. A. Razak Ahmed Member

(Executive Director)

6. Mr. Ghulam Haider Member

(Chief Financial Officer)

7. Mr. Muhammad Salim Memon Secretary

K[ RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

EATHICS, HUMAN RESOURCES & REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The committee comprises of four members:

1. Mr. Naeem Ahmed Shafi Chairman

(Independent Director)

Member
(Non-Executive Director)

2. Mr. Irfan Zakaria Bawany

3.  Mr. Noor Mohammad Zakaria Member
(Non-Executive Director)

4, Mr. A. Razak Ahmed Member

(Executive Director)

5. Mr. Masood Alam Secretary

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

The Board has also constituted three Management
Committees — namely Underwriting, Reinsurance &
Co-insurance, Claims Settlement and Takaful
committees. These committees meet on regular basis
and are headed by the Chief Executive Officer. The
functions and composition of the committees are given
below:-

UNDERWRITING, REINURANCE & CO-INSURANCE
COMITTEE

The functions of the Underwriting Committee includes:-

e The Underwriting Committee formulates the
underwriting policy of the Company.

e |t sets out the criteria for assessing various types of
insurance risks and determines the premium policy
of different insurance covers.

e |t regularly reviews the underwriting and premium
policies of the Company with due regards to
relevant factors such as the business portfolio and
the market scenario.

The functions of the Reinsurance & Co-Insurance
Committee includes:-

e This committee ensures that adequate reinsurance
arrangements are made for company’s business.

e The Committee pursues the proposed reinsurance
arrangements prior to their execution, review the
arrangements from time to time and subject to the
consent of the participating reinsurers suggest
appropriate adjustments from time to time.

e The Committee also assesses the effectiveness of
the reinsurance programme for future reference.

The Committee consists of the following members:-

1. Mr. A. Razak Ahmed Chairman
2. Mr. M. Hanan Shahdani Member
3. Mr. Abdul Rahim Member
4. Mr. Abbas Baghat Secretary




CLAIMS SETTLEMENT COMMITTEE
The functions of the Committee includes:-
e [t reviews the class wise aging of outstanding claims.

e The Committee determines the circumstances
under which claims disputes shall be brought to its
attention and decide how to deal with such claims
disputes.

e The Committee shall review matters relating to
management of claims. It oversees the claim
position of the company and ensures adequate
claims reserves are made.

e The Committee pays attention to significant claims
cases or event which give rise to a series of claims
and oversees the implementation of measures for
combating claims.

The Committee comprises of the following members:-

1. Mr. A. Razak Ahmed Chairman
2. Mr. Ghulam Haider Member
3. Mr. Shaikh Muhammad Siddiq Member
4. Mr. Muhammad Ebrahim Secretary

RISK MANAGEMENT & COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
The functions of the committee includes:

e Monitoring and review of all material controls
(financial, operational, compliance).

e Risk mitigation measures are robust and integrity of
financial information is ensured.

e Appropriate extent of disclosure of company’s risk
framework and internal control system in Director’s
Report.

The Committee consists of the following members:-

1. Mr. A. Razak Ahmed Chairman
2. Mr. Ghulam Haider Member
3. Mr. Faraz Abdul Razzak Member
4. Mr. Najmullah Khan Member
5. Mr. M. Hanan Shahdani Member
6. Mr. Ghulam Mujaddid Member
7. Mr. Abdul Rahim Member
8. Mr. Mohammad Masood Ali Member
9. Mr. M. Naveed Jan Secretary

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
The functions of the Committee includes:-

() Considering and making recommendations to the
board in respect of the members of Board committees.

(i) Keeping the structure, size and composition of the
Board under regular review and for making
recommendations to the Board with regard to any
changes necessary.

The Committee consists of the following members:-

1. Mr. A. Razak Ahmed Chairman
2. Mr. Ghulam Haider Member
3. Mr. Faraz Abdul Razzak Member
4, Mr. M. Hanan Shahdani Member
5. Mr. Muhammad Salim Memon Member &
Secretary

TAKAFUL COMMITTEE

The function of Takaful Committee is to review
performance of the Takaful Operations and advise the
Board on quarterly basis. The Committee endorse the
policies and procedures to be implemented in the
Takaful Operations. It recommends the appointment of
key personnel related to Takaful Operations. The
Committee also monitors the adherence to the Takaful
Rules and Shariah principles.

The following are the members of Takaful committee:

1. Mr. A. Razak Ahmed Chairman
2. Mr. Najmullah Khan Member
3. Mr. Kashif Wadiwala Secretary

Board of Director’s Meetings

During the year Four (4) meetings of the Board of
Directors were held and the number of meetings
attended by each Director is given hereunder:

S.No. Name of Directors Attendance

N

1 Mr. Irfan Zakaria Bawany

2 Mr. Muhammad Omer Bawany
3 Mr. Ahmed Ali Bawany

4 Mr. Noor M. Zakaria

5 Mr. Zia Zakaria

6 Mr. Muhammad Patel

7 Mr. Naeem Ahmed Shafi

8 Ms. Tasneem Yusuf

9 Mr. Jahangir Adam

ARNWOWADNAN

TRADING OF COMPANY’S SHARES

No trading in the shares of the Company was
carried-out by the Directors, CEO, CFO, Company
Secretary and their spouses and minor children except
the following:

Name Designation No. of Share Status

Mr. M. Omar Bawany Director 1,150,937  GiftIn

Mr. Ahmed Ali Bawany  Director 540,605  GiftlIn
Mr. Ahmed Ali Bawany  Director 420,027 Buy
Mr. Zia Zakaria Director 412,950 Other-in

PATTERN / CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDING

The pattern of shareholding of the company is annexed.
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STATEMENT OF THE ETHICS AND BUSINESS
PRACTICES

The Board has adopted the statement of Ethics and
Business Practices. All employees are informed and are
required to observe these rules of conduct.

TRAINING PROGRAM

Our commitment to staff development is upheld through
continuous training initiatives conducted throughout the
year. In line with this commitment, both staff members
and senior officers were nominated to participate in
various seminars and training courses, as
recommended by the nomination committee. These
training programs aim to enhance the knowledge, skills,
and competencies of our workforce, ensuring they
remain abreast of industry best practices and
developments. By investing in ongoing training
opportunities, we strive to empower our employees to
perform at their best and contribute effectively to the
company's success.

AUDITORS

M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants retire
at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment for
the financial year ending 31st December 2025 at a fee to
be mutually agreed.

The Audit Committee has recommended and the Board
has endorsed the appointment of M/s. BDO Ebrahim &
Co., Chartered Accountants, as auditors for the year
ending 31st December 2025.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Pakistan's economy is exhibiting signs of cautious
stabilization, with the International Monetary Fund (IMF)
projecting a Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth rate
of 3.0% for FY2025, an improvement from 2.4% in
FY2024. This recovery trajectory underscores the
nation’s resilience amid structural and external
vulnerabilities. The finance ministry projects that
inflation will remain on a downward trend for the year,
with a slight increase to a 3.0-4.0% range anticipated by
March 2025.

In response to moderating inflation, the State Bank of
Pakistan (SBP) has initiated a series of monetary policy
adjustments. The policy rate, which was maintained at a
historic high of 22% since June 2023, has been
progressively reduced, reaching 12% by March 2025.
This measured approach aims to reinvigorate economic
activity while preserving exchange rate stability.
However, external financing constraints remain
significant.

The insurance industry in Pakistan is positioned for
substantial expansion, driven by regulatory reforms and
digital innovation. The Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has introduced a
comprehensive five-year strategic plan. The initiative
addresses Pakistan’s low insurance penetration rate, which
currently stands below 1%, by fostering accessibility,

ki) RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

financial literacy, and innovation within the sector.

A key enabler of this transformation is technology. The
SECP underscores the significance of Insurtech
solutions in enhancing customer experiences,
optimizing operational efficiencies, and expanding
market outreach. Given Pakistan’s rapidly growing
digital ecosystem—comprising over 190 million mobile
users and 130 million internet users—the insurance
industry is well-positioned to harness digital platforms
to meet evolving consumer needs.

Your Company remains steadfast in its commitment to
navigating this dynamic economic environment with
strategic foresight and agility. We recognize the pivotal
role of technological advancements in redefining the
insurance landscape and are actively integrating digital
solutions to enhance our service offerings and
operational capabilities. By aligning with the SECP’s
strategic vision, we endeavour to contribute
meaningfully to increasing insurance penetration and
fostering industry-wide growth.

Furthermore, we are strategically exploring avenues
within the Takaful segment to diversify our portfolio and
cater to the diverse financial protection needs of our
clientele. This focus on Islamic insurance is poised to
strengthen our market positioning and reinforce
sustainable growth in the coming years.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

We express our heartfelt gratitude to our esteemed
customers for their unwavering patronage and support.
We also extend our sincere thanks to all our Reinsurers,
including Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited, and
Brokers for their invaluable guidance and support.

We deeply appreciate the ongoing cooperation and
assistance provided by the Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the State Bank of
Pakistan (SBP). Their professional guidance and
support have been instrumental in our journey over the
years.

Directors also acknowledge and commend the tireless
efforts of our Officers, Field Force, and Staff. Their
dedication, sincerity, and hard work have significantly
contributed to the growth of the Company.

Last but not the least, we are grateful to our
shareholders for their confidence, support, and
understanding. Your unwavering belief in our vision and
mission is highly appreciated.

By Order of the Board

Irfan Zakaria Bawany A. Razak Ahmed
Chairman Chief Executive &

Managing Director
Karachi: 27th March, 2025




GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES & EQUITIES

4.30% 5.85%

132% 2.05% 128% 1.93%
15.28% 14.81%
23.73% 21.02%

2024

12.73% 2023

S 325% 1.29% Sy  270%

20.97% 24.36%

16.38% 16.77%

Property, Plant Investment Ordinary share
. and Equipment . . Cash & Bank . Others Assets capital
. Reserves and Underwritting Others Creditors Others

Retained earnings Provisions and Acurals Liabilities

SUMMARY OF CASH FLOW

2023 2022 2021 2020

Cash Flow Statement

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (123.35) (62.34) | (85520) | (54.277) | (62.242) | (44.956)
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 181.22 99.65 92.55 36.67 42.325 31.811
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (64.22) (30.57) (28.92)
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FOR INSURERS, 2016 & LISTED COMPANIES

(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019
For the year ended December 31, 2024

This statement is being presented in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 (the Code) and the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (CCG 2019) for the purpose of establishing a framework
of good governance, whereby the Company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.

The Company, being an insurer, has applied the principles contained in the Code and CCG 2019 in the following manner:
1. The total numbers of Director are nine (9) as per the following:-

(@ Male = 08
(b) Female = 01

2. The Company encourages representation of independent, non-executive directors and directors representing minority
interests on its Board of Directors (the Board). The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Name

Independent Directors Ms. Tasneem Yusuf (Female Director)
Mr. Naeem Ahmed Shafi
Mr. Jahangir Adam

Executive Director Mr. A. Razak Ahmed

Non-Executive Director | Mr. Irfan Zakaria Bawany

Mr. Muhammad Omer Bawany
Mr. Ahmed Ali Bawany

Mr. Noor M. Zakaria

Mr. Zia Zakaria

Mr. Muhammad Patel

The number of elected directors on the Board are nine (9) whereas Mr. A. Razak Ahmed being Chief Executive of the
Company is a “deemed director” under section 188(3) of the Companies Act. 2017.

The independent directors meet the criteria of independence as laid down under the Code and Regulations. The
independent directors are three out of ten directors (including the Chief Executive) and considering the required skills set
and experience to discharge and execute their duties competently as per laws and regulations the fraction of one third has
been rounded to three.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, including
this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies in which each of them is a director).

4. All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment of any
loan to a banking company, a development financial institution or a non-banking financial institution or, being a member
of a stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by a stock exchange.

5. No casual vacancy occurred on the Board during the year.

6. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate
it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

7. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the Company.
The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with the dates of approval or
updating has been maintained by the Company.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the Board /
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act), the Regulations and the
Code. The decisions on material transactions including appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment of Chief Executive Officer, and key Officers have been taken by the Board.

8. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman. The Board met at least once in every quarter. The Board
has complied with the requirement of the Act and CCG 2019 with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes
of meeting of the Board. Written notices of the Board meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at
least seven days before the meeting. The minutes of the meeting were appropriately recorded and circulated.

9. The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with
the Act and the Regulations.
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10. The Board has established a system of sound internal control, which is effectively implemented at all levels within the
Company. The Company has adopted and complied with all the necessary aspects of internal controls given in the Code.

11. Five Directors of the Company possess sufficient experience and qualification so they are exempt from attending the
Directors’ Training Program. Whereas four Directors, namely Mr. Irfan Zakaria Bawany, Mr. Ahmed Ali Bawany, Ms.
Tasneem Yusuf and Mr. Muhammad Patel have completed Director’ Training Program either from Pakistan Institute of
Corporate Governance or The Institute of Chartered Accountant of Pakistan. The Board of the Company also carries out
orientation sessions for its directors during board meetings, as and when required, in order to apprise them of their duties
and responsibilities and the new developments and pronouncements of relevant laws and regulations.

12. There was no change of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, during the year. The Board
approved their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the
Regulations and the Code.

13. The Directors’ Report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Regulations and the Code
and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

14. The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer before
approval of the Board.

15. The directors, Chief Executive Officer and other executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other
than disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

16. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code and the Regulations.
17. The Board has formed the following Management Committees:

Underwriting, Reinsurance & Co-insurance Committee:

) RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Name of the Member Designation Category
Mr. A. Razak Ahmed Executive Director Chairman
Mr. M. Hanan Shahdani Senior Vice President Member
Mr. Abdul Rahim Assistant Vice President Member
Mr. Abbas Baghat Deputy Manager Secretary
Claim Settlement Committee:
Name of the Member Designation Category
Mr. A. Razak Ahmed Executive Director Chairman
Mr. Ghulam Haider Chief Financial Officer Member
Mr. Shaikh Muhammad Siddiq Assistant Vice President Member
Mr. Muhammad Ebrahim Manager Secretary
Takaful Committee
Name of the Member Designation Category
Mr. A. Razak Ahmed Executive Director Chairman
Mr. Najmullah Khan Head of Takaful Member
Mr. Kashif Wadiwala Shariah Compliance Officer Secretary
Risk Management & Compliance Committee:
Name of the Member Designation Category
Mr. A. Razak Ahmed Executive Director Chairman
Mr. Ghulam Haider Chief Financial Officer Member
Mr. Faraz Abdul Razzak Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Member
Mr. Najmullah Khan Head of Takaful Member
Mr. M. Hanan Shahdani Senior Vice President Member
Mr. Ghulam Mujaddid Vice President Member
Mr. Abdul Rahim Assistant Vice President Member
Mr. Muhammad Masood Ali Assistant Vice President Member
Mr. M. Naveed Jan Internal Auditor Secretary




Nomination Committee:

Name of the Member Designation Category
Mr. A. Razak Ahmed Executive Director Chairman
Mr. Ghulam Haider Chief Financial Officer Member
Mr. Faraz Abdul Razzak Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Member
Mr. M. Hanan Shahdani Senior Vice President Member
Mr. Muhammad Salim Memon Assistant Vice President Member & Secretary
18. The Board has formed Board Committees comprising of members given below:
a) Ethics, HR and Remuneration Committee:
Name of the Member Designation Category
Mr. Naeem Ahmed Shafi Independent Director Chairman
Mr. Irfan Zakaria Bawany Non-Executive Director Member
Mr. Noor M. Zakaria Non-Executive Director Member
Mr. A. Razak Ahmed Executive Director Member
Mr. Masood Alam Chief Manager Secretary
b) Investment Committee

Name of the Member Designation Category
Mr. Irfan Zakaria Bawany Non-Executive Director Chairman
Mr. Ahmed Ali Bawany Non-Executive Director Member
Ms. Tasneem Yusuf Independent Director Member
Mr. Muhammad Patel Non-Executive Director Member
Mr. A. Razak Ahmed Executive Director Member
Mr. Ghulam Haider Chief Financial Officer Member
Mr. Muhammad Saleem Memon Assistant Vice President Secretary

19.

Audit Committee:

The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises of three members, of whom two are non-executive directors and
one is an independent director. The chairperson of the Committee is an independent director. The composition of the Audit

Committee is as following:

Name of the Member

Ms. Tasneem Yusuf

Designation

Independent Director

Category

Chairperson

Mr. Irfan Zakaria Bawany Non-Executive Director Member
Mr. Muhammad Omer Bawany Non-Executive Director Member
Mr. Faraz Abdul Razzak Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Secretary

20. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee for

compliance.
21. The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following:
a) Audit Committee: Quarterly meetings
b) Ethics, HR and Remuneration Committee: Twice a year
c) Nomination Committee: Twice a year
d) Risk Management Committee: Twice a year
e) Investment Committee: Twice a year
22. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function, which comprises of individual who are suitably qualified and

experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company and they are involved
in the internal audit function on a regular basis.
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23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, Compliance Officer and the Head of Internal Audit
possess such qualification and experience as is required under the Code. Moreover, the persons heading the underwriting,
claim, reinsurance, risk management and grievance functions possess qualification and experience of direct relevance to
their respective functions, as required under section 12 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (Ordinance No. XXXIX of 2000):

Name of the Person Designation

Mr. A. Razak Ahmed Chief Executive Officer& Managing Director

Mr. Ghulam Haider Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Faraz Abdul Razzak Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Mr. Najmullah Khan Head of Window Takaful Operations & Grievance Deptt.
Mr. M. Hanan Shahdani Senior Vice President

Mr. Muhammad Naveed Jan Head of Internal Audit

Mr. Shaikh Muhammad Siddiq Head of Claims

Mr. Abdul Rahim Head of Reinsurance

The statutory auditors of the Company have been appointed from the panel of auditors approved by the Commission in
terms of section 48 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (Ordinance No, XXXIX of 2000). The statutory auditors have
confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not
hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with the International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that
they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent
children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Directors of
the Company.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in
accordance with the Act, the Regulations, the Code or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed
that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

The Board ensures that the Investment policy of the Company has been drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the
Code.

The Board ensures that the risk management system of the Company is in place as per the requirements of the Code.
The Company has set up a risk management function which carries out its tasks as covered under the Code.

The Board ensures that as part of the risk management system, the Company gets itself rated from PACRA and VIS rating
agencies, which is being used by its risk management function and the respective committee as a risk monitoring tool. The
rating assigned by the said rating agencies on November 22, 2024 and January 31, 2025 is A+ with stable outlook.

The Board has set up a grievance function, which fully complies with the requirements of the Code.

The Company has not obtained any exemption from the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan in respect of
any requirement of the Code.

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the CCG 2019 and all material principles
contained in the code have been complied with; and

We confirm that all other material principles contained in the Code have been complied with except for the following,
towards which reasonable progress is being made by the Company to seek compliance by the end of next accounting
year.

Explanation for non-compliance with requirements of the Regulation other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are
as follows:

RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED




REGULATION REQUIREMENT

EXPLANATION FOR NOT MEETING

NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENT

10A. Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
matters

The Board takes appropriate measures to proactively
address the sustainability risks and opportunities and
assess their potential financial and operational impacts
and implement strategies for management and mitigation
thereof. The committee shall also submit to the board a
report, at least once a year, on embedding sustainability
principles into the organization’s strategy and operations
to increase corporate value.

At present the Ethics, HR and Remuneration Committee
provides governance and oversight in relation to the
Company’s initiatives on Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG) matters. Nevertheless, the
requirements introduced by SECP through notification
dated June 12, 2024 will be complied with in due course

-

IRFAN ZAKARIA BAWANY

Chairman

Karachi: 27th March, 2025

y

A. RAZAK AHMED
Chief Executive & Managing Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Review Report to the Members of Reliance Insurance Company Limited on the
Statement of Compliance Contained in the Code of Corporate Governance for
Insurers, 2016 and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 and
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (both herein referred to as ‘the Code’) prepared
by the Board of Directors of Reliance Insurance Company Limited (the Company) for the year ended December 31, 2024
in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 36 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 and provision (Ixxvi) of the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to
review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the
Code and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review is limited
primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply
with the Code.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal
control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider
whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee,
place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and
have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board
of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does
not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Code
as applicable to the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024.

KARACHI CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

DATED: 7th April, 2025 Engagement Partner: Zulfikar Ali Causer
UDIN: CR202410067wk9LUDryW

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED, (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, and the profit
and loss account, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the
staterment of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information and we state that we have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinien and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, the profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof, conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of Company's affairs as at
December 31, 2024 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
pravide a separate opinion on these matters.

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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Following are the Key audit matters:
5. No | Key audit matters i How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. | Premium

As disclosed in note 20 to these financial | Our audit procedures amongst other
statements, net insurance premium | procedures included the following:
amounting to Rs. 546.495 as at December

31, 2024. » Obtaining an understanding of the
Company process for recognition of

The Company earns revenue primarily from premium and evaluating the design and

premium income. This income stream implementation of key controls involved

comprises of four segments: (i) Fire and in the process of capturing, processing

property damage, (ii) Marine, aviation and and recording of premiums.

transport, (iii) Motor, and {iv)

Miscellaneous. * Assessing the appropriateness of the

Company's accounting policy for
We identified premium earned as a key recognition of premium, in compliance
audit matter because it s a key with the accounting and reporting
performance indicator of the Company and standards, as applicable in Pakistan.
possess a risk of overstatement by recording
transactions that may not have occurred. + Comparing, using an appropriate sample
of premium earned from the underlying
policies issued to evaluate
appropriateness of recognized premium
during the year.

« Comparing, using an appropriate sample,
of premium underwritten close to year
end and subsequent to year end to
evaluate that revenue from premiums
was recognised in the appropriate
accounting period.

» Recalculating the unearned portion of
premium underwritten and ensuring that
the appropriate amount is recorded in
the current year.

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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5. No

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit |

Outstanding claims including incurred but not reported (IBNR)

As disclased in note 21 to the financial
statements, outstanding claims including
IBMR. amounting to Rs, 343.523 as at
December 31, 2024,

The provision for Incurred but Not Reported
(IBMR) claims is calculated by the Company
in compliance with Circular No. 9 of 2016
issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP). As per the
circular, insurers are required to estimate
and maintain IBNR provisions for each
business class using the prescribed "Chain
Ladder Method” or an alternative method if
any, permitted under the SECP Guidelines.

Determination of IBNR involves complex and
subjective judgements about future events,
both internal and external to the business,
for which small changes in assumptions can
materially impact the valuation of these
liabilities. Furthermore, the Company also
maintains a provision for claims including
IBNR based on the advice of an independent
actuary.

We have identified Outstanding claims
including incurred but not reported (IBNR)
as key audit matter because of significant
judgement and estimates involved in
determination and application of the
methodology and performance of the
calculations.

Qur audit procedures in respect of this area
includes the following:

= (Obtaining an understanding of the
Company’s process and evaluating the
design and implementation of key
controls in recognition and valuation of
insurance liabilities.

s Assessing the appropriateness of the
Company's accounting policy for
recognition and measurement of
insurance liabilities, in compliance with
accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan.

s Assessing the consistency of the
methods used for calculation of the IBNR
claims and assumptions for the valuation
parameters at 31 December 2024 to
establish whether these had been
subject to any arbitrary discontinuities
from those used at 31 December 2023.

» Assessed the competence, capability
and objectivity of management’s
actuary. Performing procedures to
evaluate the accuracy, completeness
and reliability of the underlying data
utilized and provided to the
management actuary for the purposes of
measurement to its source.

+ Inspecting the report submitted by the
Actuary for the year ended 31 December
2024, to the management of the
Company in respect of the insurance |

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
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S. Mo kw audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

liabilities and the related methods and
assumptions used for this purpose.

o Assessing the reasonableness and
consistency of the assumptions and
methods used by the management's
actuary in the valuation of insurance
liabilities.

» Assessing  the appropriateness  of
disclosures made in the financial
statements in compliance with the
accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Reports Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s reports
thereon.

Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is respensible for assessing the Operator's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the ageregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with I5As as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, amang other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
mast significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of deing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and
the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017), and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢} investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and;

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIll of 1980), was deducted by
the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Zulfikar Ali Causer.

KARACHI Ao— . 5\

DATED: 27th April, 2025 BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

UDIN: AR202410067BZ0n2F4dm

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

December 31,
Note 2024 2023
Rupees
ASSETS
Property and equipment 5 104,759,877 87,159,556
Intangible assets 6 - -
Investments
Equity securities and mutual funds 7 1,200,097,914 839,874,670
Debt securities 8 70,080,623 70,092,591
Term deposits 9 43,508,514 42,628,618
Insurance / reinsurance receivables 10 642,361,902 537,186,737
Loans and other receivables 11 4,575,855 4,268,074
Re-insurance recoveries against outstanding claims 21 271,629,962 176,420,765
Deferred commission expense 22 94,842,909 95,312,664
Prepayments and deposits 13 228,208,543 195,135,974
Cash and bank balances 14 102,206,082 108,555,276
2,762,272,181 2,156,634,925
Total assets of window takaful operations - Operator's fund 182,748,071 155,881,702
TOTAL ASSETS 2,945,020,252 2,312,516,627
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves attributable to Company's equity holders
Ordinary share capital 15 665,379,490 665,379,490
Reserves 16 400,000,000 310,000,000
Unappropriated profit 370,364,373 225,049,587
Unrealised gain on revaluation of available-for-sale 136,687,507 21,992,211
TOTAL EQUITY 1,572,431,370 1,222,421,288
LIABILITIES
Underwriting provisions
QOutstanding claims including IBNR 21 343,523,464 230,153,423
Unearned premium reserves 20 489,493,362 440,170,615
Unearned reinsurance commission 22 33,682,692 39,285,465
Insurance / reinsurance payables 17 192,164,335 216,603,821
Unclaimed dividend 6,847,173 4,531,819
Other creditors and accruals 18 79,862,274 71,576,445
Deferred taxation 12 126,464,055 30,143,866
Taxation - provision less payments 59,124,328 22,637,371
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,331,161,683 1,055,102,825
Total liabilities of window takaful operations - Operator's fund 41,427,199 34,992,514
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,945,020,252 2,312,516,627
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 19

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

AhMany Zia ZakariaE

Irfan Zakaria Bawany Ghulam Haider
Chairman Director Director Chief Financial Officer

Karachi: 27th March, 2025

RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

A. Razak Ahmed
Chief Executive & Managing Director




PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

December 31, December 31,
Note 2024 2023

Rupees
Net insurance premium 20 546,495,792 460,686,249
Net insurance claims 21 (152,815,010) (139,118,908)
Net commission and other acquisition costs 22 (111,170,050) (96,383,134)
Insurance claims and acquisition expenses (263,985,060) (235,502,042)
Management expenses 23 (198,462,472) (176,318,464)
Underwriting results 84,048,260 48,865,743
Investment income 24 408,883,090 246,032,173
Other income 25 4,501,349 5,564,101
Other expenses 26 (91,334,996) (72,645,064)
Results of operating activities 406,097,703 227,816,953
Profit from window takaful operations- Operators' fund 27 30,071,847 29,171,371
Profit before taxation 436,169,550 256,988,324
Taxation 28 (134,316,815) (85,090,678)
Profit after taxation 301,852,735 171,897,646
Earnings (after tax) per share 29 4.54 2.58

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Irfan Zakaria Bawany AhMany Zia ZakariaE

Chairman Director

Karachi: 27th March, 2025

Ghulam Haider
Chief Financial Officer

A. Razak Ahmed
Chief Executive & Managing Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023

Rupees
Profit after taxation 301,852,735 171,897,646
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss account
Unrealized gain on revaluation of available for sale securities - net of tax 121,852,887 18,091,804
Reclassification adjustment relating to available-for-sale
investments disposed of during the year - net of tax (7,140,418) 3,811,118
114,712,469 21,902,922
Other comprehensive (loss) / income of Window Takaful Operations -
Operator's Fund
Unrealized gain on revaluation of available for sale securities - net of tax 45,603 40,093
Reclassification adjustment relating to available-for-sale
investments disposed off during the year - net of tax (62,776) -
(17,173) 40,093
Other comprehensive income for the year 114,695,296 21,943,015
Total comprehensive income for the year 416,548,031 193,840,661

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Irfan Zakaria Bawany AhMany Zia ZakariaE

Chairman Director Director

Karachi: 27th March, 2025

JAR RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Ghulam Haider
Chief Financial Officer

A. Razak Ahmed
Chief Executive & Managing Director




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Capital Reserves Revenue Reserves
Unrealised .
Share gain on General  |Unappropriated Total
capital revaluation of reserve Profit
available-for-sale
Rupees
Balance as at January 1, 2023 633,694,750 49,196 290,000,000 136,521,419 1,060,265,365
Total comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2023
Profit after tax - - - 171,897,646 | | 171,897,646
Other comprehensive income - 21,943,015 - - 21,943,015
- 21,943,015 - 171,897,646 193,840,661

Transfer to general reserves - - 20,000,000 (20,000,000) -
Transactions with owners:
Issuance of bonus shares 31,684,740 - - (31,684,740) -
Payment of Cash dividend - - - (31,684,738) | (31,684,738)

31,684,740 - - (63,369,478)  (31,684,738)
Balance as at December 31, 2023 665,379,490 21,992,211 310,000,000 225,049,587 1,222,421,288
Total comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2024
Profit after tax - - - 301,852,735 | | 301,852,735
Other comprehensive income - 114,695,296 - - 114,695,296
- 114,695,296 - 301,852,735 416,548,031

Transfer to general reserves - - 90,000,000 (90,000,000) -
Transactions with owners:
Payment of Cash dividend - - - (66,537,949)  (66,537,949)
Balance as at December 31, 2024 665,379,490 136,687,507 400,000,000 370,364,373 1,572,431,370

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Irfan Zakaria Bawany AhMany Zia ZakariaE Ghulam Haider A. Razak Ahmed

Chairman Director Director Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive & Managing Director
Karachi: 27th March, 2025
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

OPERATING CASH FLOWS
a) Underwriting activities
Insurance premium received

Reinsurance premium paid

Claims paid

Reinsurance and other recoveries received
Commission paid

Commission received

Management expenses paid

Net cash used in underwriting activities

b) Other operating activities

Income tax paid

Other operating payments

Loan given to employees
Net cash used in other operating activities
Total cash used in all operating activities

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Profit / return received
Dividend received
Payments for investments
Proceeds from investments
Fixed capital expenditure
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Total cash generated from investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid

Total cash used in financing activities

Total cash (used in) / flow from all activities
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year

[4) RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

December 31,
Note 2024 2023
Rupees
967,733,978 832,658,661
(542,897,601) (431,953,969)
(434,461,472) (441,445,581)
299,807,306 320,013,805
(210,292,348) (203,385,398)
93,989,280 93,766,137
(198,462,472) (176,318,464)
(24,583,329) (6,664,809)
(37,384,940) (23,154,471)
(60,041,189) (81,734,152)
(1,341,990) (789,375)
(98,768,119) (55,677,998)
(123,351,448) (62,342,807)
30,170,626 28,642,400
116,038,554 107,972,184
(450,199,714) (169,025,076)
513,027,391 153,935,317
(36,012,008) (85,944,755)
8,200,000 14,074,000
181,224,849 99,654,070
(64,222,595) (30,571,184)
(64,222,595) (30,571,184)
(6,349,194) 6,740,079
108,555,276 101,815,197
102,206,082 108,555,276

14




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Reconciliation to profit and loss account
Operating cash flows
Depreciation expense
Gain on disposal of property and equipment
Profit on disposal of investments
Dividend income
Other investment income
Increase in assets other than cash
Increase in liabilities
Deferred taxation
Profit after tax from window Takaful operations - Operators' Fund

Profit after taxation

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023

Rupees

(123,351,448)
(14,713,036)

(62,342,808)
(13,014,391)

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

AhnMany Zia ZakariaE

Irfan Zakaria Bawany
Chairman Director Director

Karachi: 27th March, 2025

4,501,349 5,564,101

73,695,326 14,090,258

115,447,307 108,313,376

219,079,168 123,628,539

234,329,166 235,206,703
(176,762,026) (222,103,827)
(50,821,927) (38,155,979)

20,448,856 20,711,674

301,852,735 171,897,646

Ghulam Haider A. Razak Ah;\1ed

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive & Managing Director
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

1.1

2.1.1

21.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Reliance Insurance Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company on
November 4, 1981 and is engaged in general insurance business and it has also been allowed to undertake General
Window Takaful operations (WTO) on May 25, 2016 by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
under SECP Takaful Rules, 2012. The shares of the Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

The Registered Office of the Company is situated in 96-A, Sindhi Muslim Co-operative Housing Society, Karachi. The
Company was granted authorisation on 25 May 2016 under Rule 6 of Takaful Rules, 2012 to undertake Window
Takaful Operations (WTO) in respect of general takaful products by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) and subsequently the Company commenced Window Takaful Operations on 30 May 2016. The
Company operates through 26 branches in Pakistan.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017, and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, Insurance
Rules, 2017, Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017, General Takaful Accounting Regulation 2019 and Takaful
Rules, 2012.

In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Act, 2017, Insurance Ordinance, 2000,

Insurance Rules, 2017, Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017, General Takaful Accounting Regulation 2019 and

Takaful Rules, 2012, shall prevail.

Total assets, total liabilities and profit / (loss) of the Window Takaful Operations of the Company (referred to as the

Operator's Fund) have been presented in these financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the

General Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019.

A separate set of financial statements of the Window Takaful Operations has been annexed to these financial
statements as per the requirements of the Takaful Rules, 2012.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless stated otherwise.
Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is also the functional currency of the Company.
Standards, amendments and interpretations that are effective during the current year

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended December 31, 2024. These

standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or did not have
significant impact on the financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

V43 RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2.4

Effective date (annual periods
beginning on or after)

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures'
- Supplier finance arrangements January 01, 2024

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-lessee
subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions January 01, 2024

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements'
- Classification of liabilities as current or non-current January 01, 2024

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements'
- Non-current liabilities with covenants January 01, 2024

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance arrangements January 01, 2024

During the year, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) has withdrawn Technical Release 27 ‘IAS
12, Income Taxes (Revised 2012)’ and issued the ‘IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and
Final Taxes’ (the Guidance). Accordingly, in accordance with the Guidance, the Company has changed its accounting
policy to recognise minimum and final taxes as ‘Levy’ under IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets” which were previously being recognised as ‘Income tax’. However, there is no impact on the financial
statements of prior periods.

Standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective
The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or
after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not

relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial
statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective date (annual periods
beginning on or after)

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Amendments January 01, 2026
regarding the classification and measurement of financial instruments

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments regarding January 01, 2026
the classification and measurement of financial instruments

Amendments to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' January 01, 2025
- Lack of Exchangeability

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Amendments January 01, 2026
regarding nature-dependent electricity contracts that are often structured

as power purchase agreements (PPAs)

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments regarding January 01, 2026
nature-dependent electricity contracts that are often structured as power

purchase agreements (PPAs)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01, 2026

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs and IASs.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 ({3




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2.5

IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has been issued by IASB effective from July 01,
2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by IASB effective from January 01, 2027.
However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by IASB effective from January 01, 2027.
However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2023. However SECP has notified the timeframe for the adoption of IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by January
01, 2026.

Temporary exemption from IFRS 17 and IFRS 9

Pursuant to the requirements of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan SRO 1715 (I) / 2023 dated 21 November
2023 IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”, is applicable to the companies engaged in insurance / takaful and re-insurance /
re-takaful business from financial years commencing on or after 01 January 2026.

IFRS 17, replaces IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts”. The new standard will apply to all entities that issue insurance and
reinsurance contracts, and to all entities that hold reinsurance contracts. This standard requires entities to identify contracts
and its terms and to assess whether they meet the definition of an insurance contract or includes components of an
insurance contract. Insurance contracts are required to account for under the recognition / derecognition of IFRS 17.
Companies subject to the requirement of SRO 1715 (I) / 2023 will also be required to adopt requirements of IFRS 9 from the
date of transition. On initial application of IFRS 17, comparative information for insurance contracts is restated in
accordance with IFRS 17, whereas comparative information for related financial assets might not be restated in accordance
with IFRS 9 if the insurer is initially applying IFRS 9 at the same date as IFRS 17.

SECP through its S.R.0.506(1)/2024 has directed that the applicability period of optional temporary exemption from
applying IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” as given in para 20A of IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts” is extended for annual
periods beginning before 01 January 2026, subject to fulfilling the same conditions as are prescribed by para 20B of IFRS 4.

SECP vide letter no. ID/MDPRD/IFRS-17/2021/176 dated 15 June 2021 initiated a four-phase approach towards
implementation of IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”. The first three phases now stand completed and phase 4 are currently
under progress.

The tables below set out the fair values as at the end of reporting year and the amount of change in the fair value during that
year for the following two groups of financial assets separately:

a) financial assets with contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of
principal and interest ("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding, excluding any financial asset that meets the
definition of held for trading in IFRS 9, or that is managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
and

b) all other financial assets:

Fair value of financial assets as at December 31, 2024 and change in fair value during the year.

DECEMBER
2023

— Rupees —
Financial assets with contractual cash flows that meet
the SPPI criteria, excluding those held for trading
Debt securities - held to maturity
Opening fair value 70,020,020
Increase in fair value 679,980
Closing fair value 70,700,000
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DECEMBER
2024

— Rupees —
Financial assets that do not meet the SPPI criteria
Equity securities - available for sale
Opening fair value 486,376,209
Addition during the year 272,273,564
Disposal during the year (259,619,896)
Increase in fair value 121,852,888
Closing fair value 620,882,763

Carrying value of all other financial assets approximates to their fair values since these either have short term maturity
or are frequently repriced.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the requirements of accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The judgments, estimates and assumptions are
based on historical experience, current trends and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the estimates about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates / judgments and associated assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to the accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumption and estimates are significant to this financial information,
or judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Notes
- Useful life of property and equipment 4.1
- Premium deficiency reserve 4.7
- Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts 4.9
- Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 4171
- Provision for outstanding claims including IBNR 417.2
- Classification of investments 413
- Impairment 4.14

4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

The material accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless stated otherwise.

4.1 Property and equipment

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is
charged using the reducing balance method in accordance with the rates specified in note 5.1 to these financial
statements and after taking into account residual values, if significant.

Depreciation on additions is charged from the date the assets are available for use, while no depreciation is charged in
the month of disposal.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account as and
when incurred.
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An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit and loss account in the year
the asset is derecognised. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

4.2 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the asset
will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding costs
beyond one year, are recognised as an intangible asset.

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible
assets are amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life as specified in note 6 to these financial
statements after taking into account residual values, if significant.

Amortisation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use, whereas no amortisation
is charged in the month the asset is disposed of. The useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the profit and loss account when the
asset is derecognised.

4.3 Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress are measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any and consists of
expenditure incurred and advances made in the course of an asset’s installation. Transfers are made to relevant
asset categories as and when assets are available for intended use.

4.4 Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are those contracts under which the Company as an insurer has accepted insurance risk from
the insurance contract holder (insured) by agreeing to compensate the insured if a specified uncertain future event
(the insured event) adversely affects the insured. Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it
remains an insurance contract for the remainder of its tenure, even if the insurance risk changes significantly during
this period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expired.

The Company's insurance contracts are classified into the following main categories, depending on the nature and
duration of risk and whether or not the terms and conditions are fixed:

a) Fire and property

Fire and property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company's customers for damage suffered to
their properties or for the value of property lost. Customers who undertake commercial activities on their
premises could also receive compensation for the loss of earnings caused by the inability to use the covered
properties in their business activities. These contracts are generally one year contracts except some
contracts that are of three months period.

b) Marine, aviation and transport
Marine insurance covers the loss or damage of vessels, cargo, terminals, and any transport or property by

which cargo is transferred, acquired, or held between the points of origin and final destination. These
contracts are generally for three months period.
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4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

c) Motor

Motor insurance provides protection against losses incurred as a result of theft, traffic accidents and against
third party liability that could be incurred in an accident. These contracts are generally one year contracts.

d) Miscellaneous

All other various types of insurance contracts are classified in miscellaneous category which includes mainly
engineering, terrorism, personal accident, workmen compensation, travel and products of financial institutions
etc. These contracts are normally one year insurance contracts except some engineering insurance contracts
that are of more than one year period, whereas normal travel insurance contracts expires within one month.

These insurance contracts are provided to all types of customers based on assessment of insurance risk by the
Company. Normally personal insurance contracts e.g. vehicle, travel, personal accident, etc. are provided to
individual customers, whereas, insurance contracts of fire and property, marine, aviation and transport,
accident and health and other commercial line products are provided to commercial organizations.

In addition to direct insurance, at times the Company also participates in risks under coinsurance from other
companies and also accepts risks through reinsurance inward by way of facultative acceptances on case to
case basis provided such risks are within the underwriting policies of the Company.

Deferred Commission expense / acquisition cost

Commission expense incurred in obtaining and recording policies is deferred and recognised in profit and loss
account as an expense in accordance with the pattern of recognition of premium revenue.

Unearned premium

The portion of premium written relating to the unexpired period of coverage is recognized as unearned premium by
the Company. The unearned portion of premium income is recognized as a liability. Provision for unearned premium
is calculated by applying 365 days method.

Premium deficiency reserve

The Company is required as per the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017, to maintain a provision in respect of
premium deficiency for the class of business where the unearned premium reserve is not adequate to meet the
expected future liability, after reinsurance from claims, and other supplementary expenses expected to be incurred
after the reporting date in respect of the unexpired policies in that class of business at the reporting date. The
movement in the premium deficiency reserve is recorded as an expense in the profit and loss account.

The Company determines adequacy of liability of premium deficiency by carrying out analysis of its loss ratio of
expired periods of the contracts. For this purpose average loss ratio of last three years inclusive of claim settlement
cost but excluding major exceptional claims are taken into consideration to determine ultimate loss ratio to be
applied on unearned premium.

No provision has been made as the unearned premium reserve for each class of business as at the year end is
adequate to meet the expected future liability after reinsurance from claims and other expenses, expected to be
incurred after the reporting date in respect of policies in force at reporting date.

Reinsurance contracts held

These are contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers for compensation of losses suffered on insurance
contracts issued. These reinsurance contracts include both facultative and treaty arrangement contracts and are
classified in same categories of insurance contracts for the purpose of these financial statements. The Company
recognises the entitled benefits under the contracts as various reinsurance assets and liabilities. Reinsurance
assets and liabilities are derecognised when contractual rights are extinguished or expired.

The deferred portion of reinsurance premium is recognised as a prepayment. The deferred portion of reinsurance
premium ceded is calculated by applying 365 days method.
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4.9 Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts

Receivables including premium due but unpaid, relating to insurance contracts are recognised when due. The claim
payable is recorded when intimation is received. These are recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the
consideration given less provision for impairment losses, if any. Premium received in advance is recognised as
liability till the time of issuance of insurance contract there against.

If there is an objective evidence that any premium due but unpaid is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying
amount of that insurance receivable and recognizes the loss in the profit and loss account.

Allowance for impairment in premium receivables is estimated on a systematic basis after analyzing the receivables
as per their ageing.

4.10 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the
Company’s other components. All operating segments’ results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s chief
operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Company presents segments reporting of operating results using the classes of business as specified under
the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017. The reported operating segments are also consistent with the internal
reporting process of the Company for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.
The performance of segments is evaluated on the basis of underwriting results of each segment. All the Company's
business segments operate in Pakistan only.

Based on its classification of insurance contracts issued, the Company has four primary business segments for
reporting purposes namely fire and property damage, marine aviation and transport, motor and miscellaneous. The
nature and business activities of these segments are disclosed in note 4.4.

Assets and liabilities are allocated to particular segments on the basis of premium earned. Those assets and
liabilities which cannot be allocated to a particular segment on a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated
corporate assets and liabilities. Further, the management expenses were allocated to each segment on the basis
disclosed in note 4.19.

4.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at nominal amount. For the purposes
of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and stamps in hand, cash at bank in
current and saving accounts.

4.12 Revenue recognition
a) Premiums

Premium including administrative surcharge under all types of insurance contracts is recognised as written from
the date of issuance of policy / cover note (i.e. the date of attachment of risk).

Revenue from premium is determined after taking into account the unearned portion of premium. The unearned
portion of premium income is recognised as a liability (refer note 4.6).

Reinsurance premium is recognised as an expense after taking into account the proportion of deferred premium
expense which is calculated using 365 days method. The deferred portion of premium expense is recognised as
a prepayment.

b) Commission income
Commission and other forms of revenue (apart from recoveries) from reinsurers are deferred and recognised as

liability and recognised in the profit and loss account as revenue in accordance with the pattern of recognition of
the reinsurance premiums.
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4.13

4.13.1

4.13.2

c) Investment income
- Interest / mark-up on bank balances and term deposits is recognised using the effective interest method.
- Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established.
- Gain/ loss on sale of investments is included in profit and loss account.
- Unrealised gain or loss on remeasurement of investments classified as at fair value through profit and loss
and available-for-sale is included in the profit and loss account and other comprehensive income
respectively in the period to which it relates.

d) Otherincome

- Gain or loss on sale of property and equipment and intangible assets is recognised in the profit and loss
account when the asset is derecognised.

Investments

Recognition

All investments are initially recognised at fair value of the consideration given and include transaction costs. All
purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market
convention are accounted for at the trade date. Trade date is the date when the Operator commits to purchase or sell
investments.

Measurement

Available for sale

At the time of acquisition, investments which are intended to be held for an undefined period of time but may be sold
in response to the need for liquidity or changes in interest rates are classified as available-for-sale.

Subsequent to initial measurement, these are remeasured at fair value. Surplus / deficit on revaluation from one
reporting date to other is taken to other comprehensive income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. On
derecognition or impairment of available-for-sale investments, the cumulative gain or loss account previously
reported in other comprehensive income is transferred to profit and loss account for the period within Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Whereas, any reversal in impairment is taken in Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Held to maturity

Investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity where the Company has positive intent and
ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity subsequently, these are measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method and taking any discount or premium on acquisition.

Held for trading

Investments which are acquired principally for the purposes of generating profit from short term fluctuation in price
are classified as held-for-trading. subsequent to initial recognition, these are remeasured at fair value. Gains or losses
on investments on remeasurement of these investments are recognized in profit and loss account or the revenue
account as the case may be.

Fair value measurements

The fair value of investments in listed equity securities is determined by reference to the Pakistan Stock Exchange's
quoted market prices at the close of period end.

The fair value of investments in mutual funds is determined by reference to the net asset values as published by
Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan at year end.

The fair value of investments in Government securities is determined by reference to the quotations obtained from the
PKRYV rate sheet on the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan's website.
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4.14 Impairment

The management assesses at each reporting date whether there is an objective evidence that the financial assets or
a group of financial assets is impaired. The carrying value of assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such asset is
estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.

In the case of equity securities classified as 'available-for-sale', a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is considered as an objective evidence of impairment. In case of impairment of
available-for-sale equity securities, the cumulative loss previously recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income is removed therefrom and included in the profit and loss account. Impairment losses recognised in the profit
and loss account on equity securities are only reversed when the equity securities are derecognised.

4.15 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the Company intends to either
settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

4.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligations and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

417 Provisions for outstanding claims including Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) claims

Provisions for outstanding claims include amounts in relation to unpaid reported claims, claims incurred but not
reported (IBNR) and expected claims settlement costs.

4171 Outstanding claims

This represents the amount of claims that have been reported and are yet unpaid or partially unpaid at the end of
reporting year for a given accident year.

A liability for outstanding claims (claims incurred) is recognised for all claims incurred which represents the estimates
of the claims intimated or assessed before the end of the reporting period and measured at the undiscounted value
of expected future payments. Provision for liability in respect of unpaid reported claims is made on the basis of
individual case estimates while taking into consideration the past claims settlement experience including handling
costs and the Company’s reserving policy. Where applicable, deductions are made for salvage and their recoveries.

Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims and salvage recoveries are recognised as an asset and
measured at the amount expected to be received.

4.17.2 Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) claims

This represents losses that have incurred or are in the occurrence period at the end of the reporting year and have
not been intimated to the Company by the end of the reporting year.

The Company is required, as per the SECP circular no. 9 of 2016 dated March 9, 2016 “Guidelines for Estimation of
Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) Claims Reserve, 2016” to estimate and maintain the provision for claims incurred
but not reported for each class of business by using the prescribed method which is “Chain Ladder Method” or any
other alternate method as allowed under the provisions of the Guidelines.

The actuarial valuation as at December 31, 2024 has been carried out by an independent firm of actuaries for
determination of IBNR for each class of business.

S0 RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

4.18

4.18.1

4.18.2

4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

Levy and Income tax

Levy

The Company accounts for minimum and final tax levied under Section 113 and other applicable sections of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (ITO), using a hybrid approach in compliance with relevant accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the profit and loss
account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in the statement of
comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in the statement of comprehensive income
respectively.

a) Current tax

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income determined in accordance with the prevailing law for
taxation of income and is calculated using enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation after taking into
account available tax credits and rebates, if any. The charge for the current taxation also includes adjustments
where considered necessary, relating to prior years which arise from assessments framed / finalised during the
year or required by any other reason.

b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the statement of financial postion liability method for all temporary differences
between the amounts attributed to assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax recognised is based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted at the financial statement
date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Staff retirement benefits

The Company operates funded contributory provident fund (defined contribution plan) for all permanent employees.
Equal contributions are made by the Company and the employees at the rate 8.33% of basic salary, to the fund.

Dividend distribution and reserve appropriation

Dividend to shareholders is recognised as liability in the period in which it is approved, and reserve appropriation is
recognised when approved.

Management expenses

Management expenses are allocated to various classes of business and Window Takaful Operations as deemed
equitable by the management based on the detailed exercise carried out by the management on an annual basis.

Expenses not directly attributable to the underwriting business are charged under administrative expenses.
Financial instruments

All the financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument and are derecognised when the Company loses control of contractual rights
that comprise the financial assets and in the case of financial liabilities when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. At the time of initial recognition all financial assets and financial liabilities are
measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given or received for it. Any gain or loss on
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities is taken to the profit and loss account in the period in which
financial instrument is derecognised.
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4.23 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value.

4.24 Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit

or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Note 2024 2023

Rupees
5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Operating assets 5.1 93,859,877 87,159,556
Capital work in progress 5.6 10,900,000 -
104,759,877 87,159,556
5.1 Operating assets

Cost Accumulated Depreciation Written down o
Asat 1Jan | Addiions/ | o o [ Asat31Dec | Asatian | Depreciation | [ o | AsatdtDec | valueasat Degzce'izm
2024 Transfers 2024 2024 for the year 2024 Dec 31,2024
Rupees
Land and buildings 30,218,901 - - 30218901 26251839 396,701 - 26648590 3570311 10
Furniture and fixtures 12,968,250 7,676,458 - 20,644,708 11,723977 815114 - 12539091 8,105,617 15
Office equipment 16,545,713 3,618,550 - 20,164,263 13,769,982 750,198 - 14,520,180 5,644,083 15
Computer equipment 7,963,134 135,500 - 8,098,634 7,404,352 190,894 - 7,595,246 503,388 30
Vehicles 158,988,768 13681500  (10,178490) 162491778 80375010 12560,129  (6479,839) 86455300 76,036,478 15

226,684,766 25112008  (10,178490) 241618284 139,525210 14,713,036 (6479839)  147,758407 93,859,877

2023
Cost Accumulated Depreciation Written down
As at 1 Jan Additions | Disposals As at 31 Dec | Asat1Jan | Depreciation Disposals Asat31Dec | Valueasat Degl:tji;ion
2023 2023 2023 for the year 2023 Dec 31,2023
Rupees

Land and buildings 30,218,901 - - 30218901 25,811,110 440,779 - 26,251,889 3,967,012 10
Furniture and fixtures 12,868,460 99,790 - 12968250 11,473,828 250,149 - 11,723 977 1,244,273 15
Office equipment 16,252,213 293,500 - 16,545,713 13,310,694 459,288 - 13,769,982 2,775,731 15
Computer equipment 7,815,029 148,105 - 7,963,134 7,191,585 212,767 - 7,404,352 558,782 30
Vehicles 146,920,261 35,403,360 (23334,853)  158988,768 83548556 11,651,408  (14,824,954) 80375010 78,613,758 15

214,074,864 35,944,755 (23,334,853) 226,684,766 141335773 13014391 (14824954 139525210 87,159,556

5.2 Furniture and fixtures includes Rs. 1.382 million transfer from capital work in progress during the year.

5.3 The Company owns land and building situated at Plot No. 181-A Sindhi Muslim Co-operative Housing Society
having area of 600 square yards which is being used as head office.
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Note 2024 2023

Rupees
5.4 Allocation of depreciaton expense
Management expenses 9,563,473 8,459,354
Other expenses 5,149,563 4,555,037
14,713,036 13,014,391
5.5 Disposal of fixed assets
Particular Cost Accumulated | Written down Sale Gain/ Mode of Sold to
Depreciation value proceeds (loss) disposals
Rupees
Vehicles
Toyota Corolla - BNM-331 2,251,290 1,289,840 961,450 1,200,000 238,550 Negotiation Mr. Muhammad Anis Memon
Honda Civic - BNH-705 2,954,940 1,709,374 1,245,566 2,000,000 754,434 Negotiation Mr. Zafar Pasha
Honda Civic - LEF-198 2,276,460 1,687,163 589,297 2,500,000 1,910,703 Negotiation Mr. Nisar Ahmed Chugtai
Honda Civic - ADE-984 2,695,800 1,793,462 902,338 2,500,000 1,597,662 Negotiation Mr. Shayan Shahid
Total 10,178,490 6,479,839 3,698,651 8,200,000 4,501,349
Total-2023 23,334,853 14,824,954 8,509,899 14,074,000 5,564,101
5.5.1 There are no assets held by third parties and assets with zero values.
Note 2024 2023
Rupees
5.6 Capital work in progress
Opening balance - -
Additions 12,282,850 -
Transfer to operating assets (1,382,850) -
Cosing balance 5.7 10,900,000 -

5.7 It represents the advance paid for the purchase of a vehicle.
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2024

Cost Accumulated Depreciation Written down value o
As at 1 Jan Additions Disposals As at 31 Dec | Asat1Jan | Depreciation Disposals Asat31Dec | Asat31Dec Amomlzadnon
2024 P 2024 2024 | forthe year P 2024 2024 perio
Rupees
Computer software 3,477,823 - - 3,477,823 3477,823 - - 3477,823 - 3years
2023
Cost Accumulated Depreciation Written down value e
As at 1 Jan Additions Disposals As at 31 Dec | Asat 1Jan | Depreciation Disposals Asat31Dec | Asat31Dec Amom,zi;“on
2023 P 2023 2023 | forthe year P 2023 2023 perio
Rupees
Computer software 3,477,823 - - 3,477,823 3,477,823 - - 3,477,823 - 3years
6.1 Cost and accumulated amortisation in respect of fully amortised intangible assets still in use at the end of the year

amounted to Rs. 3.477 million (2023: Rs. 3.477 million).

Note 2024 2023

Rupees
7. INVESTMENT IN EQUITY SECURITIES
Available for sale (AFS)
Related parties 12,770,431 12,221,513
Listed shares 290,596,167 145,132,254
Mutual funds 317,516,164 329,022,441
71 620,882,762 486,376,208
Held for trade (HFT)
Listed shares 7.2 579,215,152 353,498,462

1,200,097,914 839,874,670
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7.1 Investments - Available for Sale

2023
Cost Impairment /| Revaluation| Carrying Cost Impairment /| Revaluation| Carrying
Provision | Surplus/ | Value Provision Surplus/ | Value
(Deficit) (Deficit)
Rupees Rupees
Related parties
Faran Sugar Mills Limited 369,220 - 480,696 849,916 369,220 - 1,179,581 1,548,801
Shahmurad Sugar Mills Limited 464,162 - 9,564,325 10,028,487 464,162 - 7,278,700 7,742,862
First Al Noor Modaraba Limited. 5,212,200 (3,320,171) - 1,892,029 5,212,200 - (2,918,832) 2,293,368
B. F Modaraba Limited. - - - - 512,566 - 123,916 636,482
6,045,582  (3,320,171) 10,045,021 12,770,431 6,558,148 - 5,663,365 12,221,513
Listed shares
Faysal Bank Limited 2,980,675 - 2,352,125 5,332,800 2,530,000 - 728,000 3,258,000
Fauiji Fertilizer Company Limited 88,877,830 - 158,838,377 247,716,207 74,729,806 - 4,015,798 78,745,604
Pakistan Qilfield Limited 5,149,600 - 6,219,560 11,369,160 5,149,600 - 2,445,320 7,594,920
Hub Power Co. Limited 17,962,747 - 8,215,253 26,178,000 16,462,164 - 5,784,936 22,247,100
Engro Fertilizer Company Limited - - - - 13,163,794 - 9,282,206 22,446,000
Indus Motor Co. Limited - - - 5,307,273 - (507,593) 4,799,680
Avanceon Limited - - - 3,904,227 - (607,177) 3,297,050
Octopus Digital Limited - - - - 3,894,835 - (1,150,935) 2,743,900
114,970,852 - 175,625,315 290,596,167 125,141,698 - 19,990,555 145,132,254
Mutual funds
Meezan Rozana Amdani Fund 67,507,227 - - 67,507,227 58,482,449 - - 58,482,449
HBL Islamic Saving Fund 20,459,948 - 89,129 20,549,077 77,824,999 - 59,999 77,884,999
Al Hamra Islamic Money Market Fund 62,181,769 - 387,107 62,568,876 53,751,076 - 387,107 54,138,183
NBP Islamic Daily dividend 14,864,712 - - 14,864,712 12,860,202 - - 12,860,202
Al-Ameen Islamic Cash Fund 82,779,045 - 119,911 82,898,956 85,748,465 - - 85,748,465
ABL Islamic Cash Fund 57,442,418 - 17,229 57,459,647 39,908,143 - - 39,908,143
Faysal Islamic Cash Fund 11,639,624 - 28,045 11,667,669 - - - -
316,874,743 - 641,421 317,516,164 328,575,33 - 447,106 329,022,441
437,891,177  (3,320,171) 186,311,758 620,882,762 460,275,180 - 26,101,026 486,376,208

7.2 The Company has not accounted for investment in related parties as associates under International accounting and reporting standard
(IAS) 28 "Investment in Associates and joint Ventures", as management has concluded that the Company does not have significant
influence in these companies.
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7.3

8.1

8.2

9.1

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2023
Cost / Carrying Market Cost / Carrying Market
value Value value Value
Rupees Rupees
Investments - Held for Trading
Listed shares

Meezan Bank Limited 80,680,000 120,985,000 49,770,000 80,680,000
Lucky Cement Limited 27,937,790 39,067,395 15,853,590 27,937,790
Hub Power Company Limited 68,662,709 72,017,118 26,151,430 48,031,606
Oil & Gas Development Co. Limited 22,523,060 45,518,814 15,955,420 22,523,060
Pakistan Oilfield Limited 18,137,091 27,150,186 16,886,657 18,137,091
Pakistan State Oil Co. Limited - - 7,274,375 8,927,389
Pioneer Gement Limited 24,979,135 32,166,400 -
D.G. Khan Cement Limited 26,146,165 31,476,000 -
International Steel Limited 79,143,687 90,578,400 -
Engro Corporation Limited 964,356 1,456,066 20,769,533 23,377,516
Fauiji Fertilizer Co. Limited 36,708,196 118,799,774 42,549,538 48,791,229
Highnoon Laboratories Limited - - 42,945,103 50,746,122
Lucky Core Industries Limited - - 17,035,020 20,642,243
Cherat Packaging Limited - - 3,163,261 3,704,416

385,882,189 579,215,152 258,353,927 353,498,462

Note 2024 2023

Rupees
INVESTMENT IN DEBT SECURITIES
Held to maturity
Pakistan Energy Sukuk | & I 8.1&8.2 70,080,623 70,092,591

Pakistan Energy Sukuk Il having face value amounted to Rs.70 million (2023: Rs.70 million) are placed with State Bank
of Pakistan under Section 29 of Insurance Ordinance, 2000.

These carry profit at the rate of 6 months KIBOR minus 0.1% (2023: 6 months KIBOR minus 0.1%) and will mature on
May 20, 2030.

Note 2024 2023

Rupees
INVESTMENT IN TERM DEPOSIT
Held to maturity
Deposit maturing within 12 months 9.1 43,508,514 42,628,618

These carry profit at the rate of 9.50% to 21% per annum (2023: 18.50% to 21% per annum) having maturity ranges from
one month to twelve month.

RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

10.

10.1

10.2

11.

12.

121

13.

INSURANCE / REINSURANCE RECEIVABLE

Unsecured-considered good

Due from insurance contract holders

Less: provision for impairment of receivables from
insurance contract holders

Due from other insurers / reinsurers

Note 2024 2023
Rupees
10.1 641,660,373 540,077,942
(35,386,135) (17,301,197)
606,274,238 522,776,745
36,087,664 14,409,992
642,361,902 537,186,737

Due from insurance contract holders include Rs. 81.735 million ( 2023: Rs. 109.323 million) receivable from related

parties.

Provision for impairment of receivables from
insurance contract holders

Opening balance
Provision for the year
Closing balance

LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Unsecured-considered good
Loan to employees
Accrued investment income

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax asset / liability arising in respect of:

Provision for impairment of receivables from
insurance contract holders

Unrealized gain on held for trading investments

Unrealized gain on available for sale investmnets

Reconciliation of deferred tax liability

Opening balance

Recognized in profit and loss account
Recognized in other comprehensive income
Closing balance

PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

Reinsurance premium ceded
Prepaid rent

Prepaid insurance

Deposits

17,301,197 12,361,742
18,084,938 4,939,455
35,386,135 17,301,197

2,854,740 1,512,750
1,721,115 2,755,324
4,575,855 4,268,074
10,261,979 5,017,347
(83,658,474) (27,591,915)
(53,067,560) (7,569,298)
(126,464,055) (30,143,866)

(30,143,866)
(50,821,927)

20,409,659
(38,155,979)

(45,498,262) (12,397,546)
(126,464,055) (30,143,866)
226,080,102 193,554,755
619,662 114,000
641,428 599,868
867,351 867,351
228,208,543 195,135,974
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and cash equivalents
Policy and revenue stamps, bond papers

Cash at bank
Current accounts
Savings accounts

Note 2024 2023
Rupees
28,930 424,699
56,944,014 41,861,206
141 45,233,138 66,269,371
102,177,152 108,130,577
102,206,082 108,555,276

14.1 These accounts carry profit at rates ranging between 9.50 % to 18.50% (2023: 18.50% to 21%) per annum.

14.2 Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purpose of the cash flow statement:
Policy and revenue stamps, bond papers 28,930 424,699
Cash at bank
Current accounts 56,944,014 41,861,206
Savings accounts 141 45,233,138 66,269,371
102,177,152 108,130,577
Cash and cash equivalents 102,206,082 108,555,276
15. SHARE CAPITAL
15.1 Authorized Capital
2024 2023 2024 2023
(Number of shares) Rupees

100,000,000 100,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

15.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

(Number of shares)

1,156,680 1,156,680 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each,
fully paid in cash
65,381,269 65,381,269 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each,
allotted as fully paid bonus shares
66,537,949 66,537,949

RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

11,566,800 11,566,800
653,812,690 653,812,690
665,379,490 665,379,490




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

16.

16.1

17.

171

18.

19.

19.1

19.2

Note 2024 2023

Rupees
RESERVES
Capital reserves:
Unrealised gain on revaluation of available-for-sale 136,687,507 21,992,211
Revenue reserve:
Unappropriated profit 370,364,373 225,049,587
General reserve 16.1 400,000,000 310,000,000

770,364,373 535,049,587

This represents reserve established out of profits to meet future extinguishes.

INSURANCE / REINSURANCE PAYABLES

Reinsurance companies 182,112,220 202,735,638
Coinsurance companies 10,052,115 13,868,183
192,164,335 216,603,821

The Company has co-insurance and re-insurance arrangements with various insurance and a domestic re-insurance
company. Under the above arrangements, the receivable and payable balances originate mainly due to premiums
collected or claims settled by the lead insurer on behalf of other co-insurers, and in case of re-insurance, the premium
ceded to and claims recoverable from the re-insurer under the respective contracts. As per the prevailing industry
practices, settlements of balances under co-insurance arrangements are done between the respective insurance

companies in normal course of business.
2024 2023

Rupees
OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS
Workers' welfare fund payable 4,491,175 4,491,175
Accrued expenses 5,580,062 4,614,724
Other creditors 69,791,037 62,470,546
79,862,274 71,576,445

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

The income tax assessment of the Company has been finalized up to the tax year 2024.

The Assistant Commissioner (AC) Sindh Revenue Board has passed an order for assessment under section 23(1) and
(1A) of the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 (the Act) in respect of audit for the tax year December 2016 levied
Sindh Sales tax at Rs. 110 Million on exempt marine activities and re-insurance under foreign treaties. The Company
have filed an appeal before the Commissioner-Appeals ~SRB and in view of the tax advisor contesting the matter no
eventual financial impact is likely to arise and accordingly no provision has been made in these financial statements.

Commitments

The Company is committed to minimum rental payments for each of the following period as follows:

Not more than one year 2,065,260 1,575,531
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20.

21.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
NET INSURANCE PREMIUM ——Rupees
Written Gross Premium 1,060,073,635 980,276,114
Add : Unearned premium reserve opening 440,170,615 339,216,908
Less: Unearned premium reserve closing (489,493,362) (440,170,615)
Premium earned 1,010,750,888 879,322,407
Less: Reinsurance premium ceded 496,780,443 458,932,211
Add : Prepaid reinsurance premium opening 193,554,755 153,258,702
Less : Prepaid reinsurance premium closing (226,080,102) (198,554,755)
Reinsurance expense 464,255,096 418,636,158
546,495,792 460,686,249

NET INSURANCE CLAIMS
Claim Paid 434,461,472 441,445,581
Add : Outstanding claims including IBNR closing 343,523,464 230,153,423
Less : Outstanding claims including IBNR opening (230,153,423) (188,533,455)
Claims expense 547,831,513 483,065,549
Less: Reinsurance and other recoveries received 299,807,306 320,013,805
Add : Reinsurance and other recoveries in respect

of outstanding claims closing 271,629,962 176,420,765
Less: Reinsurance and other recoveries in respect

of outstanding claims opening (176,420,765) (152,487,929)
Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue 395,016,503 343,946,641

152,815,010 139,118,908

Claim Development

The following table shows the development of claims over the period. The disclosure goes back to the period when the
earliest material claim arose for which there is still uncertainty about the amount and timing of the claims payments. For
each class of business the uncertainty about the amount and timings of claims payment is usually resolved within a year.

Analysis on gross tables

Accident year | 2020 | 2021 2022 2023 2024 Total

(Rupees in 000)

Estimate of ultimate claims cost:

At the end of accident year 116,050 39,944 97,978 122,144 228,000 604,116
One year later 87,253 21,912 50,722 76,883 - 236,770
Two years later 5,833 2,709 12,133 - - 20,675
Three years later 3,909 1,831 - - - 5,740
Four years later 2,118 - - - - 2,118

Current estimate of cumulative claims 4,065 2,826 53,004 287,138 408,393 755,426

Cumulative payment to date (1,947) (995)  (40,871) (210,255) (180,393) (434,461)

2,118 1,831 12,133 76,883 228,000 320,965

Liability in respect of prior years 22,558

Total liability recognised in the statement of financial position M

XA RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

22, NET COMMISSION EXPENSE / ACQUISITION COST
Commission paid or payable
Add : Deferred commission expense opening
Less: Deferred commission expense closing
Net Commission

Less: Commission received or receivable

Add : Unearned Reinsurance Commission opening
Less: Unearned Reinsurance Commission closing
Commission from reinsurers

23. MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

Employee benefit cost

Vehicle running expenses
Electricity, gas and water
Depreciation

Rent, rates and taxes

Printing and stationery
Entertainment

Office repairs and maintenance
Postages and communication
Advertisements and sales promotion
Annual supervision fee to SECP
Travelling expenses

Bank charges

Other

23.1 Employee benefit cost

Salaries, allowance and other benefits

Charges for post employment benefit
(contribution to employee's provident fund)

Note

23.1

5.4

2023
Rupees
210,292,348 203,385,398
95,312,664 74,411,786
(94,842,909) (95,312,664)
210,762,103 182,484,520
93,989,280 93,766,137
39,285,465 31,620,714
(33,682,692) (39,285,465)
99,592,053 86,101,386
111,170,050 96,383,134
107,907,268 99,664,482
33,455,082 24,951,167
11,529,699 9,004,194
9,563,473 8,459,354
6,945,248 6,322,544
3,824,802 5,180,125
5,887,016 4,669,595
5,219,438 4,676,099
4,422,946 4,097,198
1,644,079 1,495,160
1,219,006 1,041,920
837,106 561,057
406,731 225,795
5,600,578 5,969,774
198,462,472 176,318,464
104,849,556 96,803,045
3,057,712 2,861,437
107,907,268 99,664,482
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note 2024 2023

Rupees
24, INVESTMENT INCOME
Income from equity securities
Dividend income
Available for sale investments 69,453,210 69,716,511
Held for trading investments 45,994,097 38,596,865
115,447,307 108,313,376
Income from debt securities - Held to maturity
Return on debt securities 14,239,572 13,631,726
Income from term deposits
Return on term deposits and PLS bank accounts 15,931,054 15,010,674
145,617,933 136,955,776
Net realised gain on investments
Realised gains on - Equity securities
Available for sale investments 41,342,368 2,075,626
Held for trading investments 32,397,627 15,045,279
73,739,995 17,120,905
Realised loss on - Equity securities
Available for sale investments (44,670) (2,637,647)
Held for trading investments - (393,000)
(44,670) (8,030,647)
73,695,325 14,090,258
Net unrealised gains on investments
Held for trading purposes 193,332,964 95,144,535
Less: Impairment in value of available-for-sale equity sequrities (3,320,171) -
Less: Investment related expenses (442,961) (158,396)
408,883,090 246,032,173
25. OTHER INCOME
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 4,501,349 5,564,101
26. OTHER EXPENSES
Employee benefit cost 58,103,914 53,665,490
Legal and professional charges 1,994,883 1,707,000
Subscription fee 5,025,803 5,643,197
Donations 26.2 645,235 177,764
Depreciation 54 5,149,563 4,555,037
Provision for impairment of due from
other insurers / reinsurer 18,084,938 4,939,455
Auditors' remuneration 26.1 1,480,660 1,183,680
Others 850,000 773,441
91,334,996 72,645,064

RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note 2024 2023

Rupees
26.1 Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 900,000 740,000
Interim review fee 240,000 125,000
Special certifications and sundry advisory service 231,000 231,000
Sindh sales tax on services 109,680 87,680
1,480,660 1,183,680
26.2 None of the directors, sponsor shareholders, key management personnel and their spouses had any interest in the Donee.
27. PROFIT FROM WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATION - OPERATOR'S FUND
Wakala fees
Commission expense 49,980,610 44,560,512
Management expense (20,568,940) (17,739,340)
Modarib's share of PTF investment income (17,980,119) (17,618,107)
Investment income 1,185,219 3,094,179
Other expense 19,071,357 18,301,407
(1,616,280) (1,427,280)
30,071,847 29,171,371
28. TAXATION
For the year
Current 83,494,888 46,934,699
Deferred 50,821,927 38,155,979
134,316,815 85,090,678
28.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
Accounting profit before tax 436,169,550 256,988,324
Tax rate 29% 29%
Tax on accounting profit 126,489,170 74,526,614
Effect of super tax 7,827,645 -
Others - 10,564,064
134,316,815 85,090,678
29. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit after tax 301,852,735 171,897,646
—— (Number of Shares)—
Weighted average number of Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 29.1 66,537,949 66,537,949
Earning per share 4.54 2.58
29.1 No figures for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Company has not issued any instrument which

would have dilutive effect on earnings per share when exercised.
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30.

30.1

31.

31.1

31.2

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Chief Executive Directors Executives Total
2024 | 2023 2024 | 2023 2024 | 2023 2024 | 2023
Rupees
Meeting Fees - - 850,000 975,000 - - 850,000 975,000
Managerial remuneration 19,248,000 16,716,000 - - 12,158,700 10,202,700 31,406,700 26,918,700
Bonus 4,179,000 3,474,000 - - 2,209,497 1,801,927 6,388,497 5,275,927
House rent allowance 8,661,600 7,522,800 - - 3,662,460 2,970,960 12,324,060 10,493,760
Others 1,070,400 717,600 - - 4,095,672 3,689,772 5,166,072 4,407,372
33,159,000 28,430,400 850,000 975,000 22,126,329 18,665,359 56,135,329 48,070,759
Number of persons 1 1 9 9 8 4 18 14

In addition, Chief executive and some executives are provided with company maintained cars and residential telephone.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties comprise of directors, major shareholders, key management personnel, associated companies,
subsidiary company, and entities with common directors and employee retirement benefit funds. The transactions with
related parties are carried out at commercial terms and conditions except for compensation to key management
personnel which are on employment terms. The transactions and balances with related parties during the year other than
those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:

Note 2024 2023

Rupees

Transactions during the year
Associated companies

Premium underwritten 104,047,057 104,979,155

Premium collected 192,962,036 83,425,863

Claims paid 49,713,299 18,739,200

Dividend received 45,823 1,177,550
Key management personnel

Remuneration and other benefits 30 56,135,329 48,070,759
Staff retirement benefits

Contribution to provident fund 4,704,173 4,402,210
Balances as at the year end
Associated companies

Premium due but unpaid 81,735,056 109,323,356
Provision for outstanding claims

Provision for outstanding claims 17,809,128 14,399,338
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

31.3 Name of Related Party

Al-Noor Sugar Mills Limited

Al-Noor Medium Density Fiberboard

(MDFB) Division Limited

Shahmurad Sugar Mills Limited
Shahmurad Sugar Mills Limited

- Distillery Division
Faran Sugar Mills Limited
Management (Private) Limited
Unicol Limited

Anam Fabrics (Private) Limited

Al-Noor Modaraba

Patel Hospital & Foundation
Global Associates

Patel City

Abdul Ghaffar Abdul Rehman, Irfan

Ashfaq & Co. (Private) Limited

32. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Basis of relationship
Common Directorship

Common Directorship
Common Directorship

Common Directorship
Common Directorship
Common Directorship
Common Directorship
Common Directorship
Common Directorship
Common Directorship
Common Directorship
Common Directorship

Common Directorship

Aggregate %
of shareholding

0.1115%

0.0733%

2.4820%

Segment information is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the
Insurance Rules, 2017 for class wise revenues, results, assets and liabilities.

Gross written premium
(inclusive of Administrative surcharge)

Insurance premium earned

Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers
Net insurance premium

Commission income

Net underwriting income

Insurance claims

Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers
Net claims

Commission expense

Management expense

Net insurance claims & expenses
Underwriting result

Net investment income

Other income

Other expenses

Profit before tax from window takaful operations-Operator's Fund

Profit before tax
Segment assets

Unallocated assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Fire & property | Marine aviation Motor Miscellaneous Total
damage & transport
(Rupees)

568,780,253 211,248,319 187,293,695 92,751,368 1,060,073,635
546,726,302 214,400,225 188,177,471 61,446,890 1,010,750,888
(276,568,525)  (131,178,759) (7,992,382) (48,515,430) (464,255,096)
270,157,777 83,221,466 180,185,089 12,931,460 546,495,792
64,163,341 31,092,656 67,612 4,268,444 99,592,053
334,321,118 114,314,122 180,252,701 17,199,904 646,087,845
(373,058,371) (81,249,842 (93,638,479) 115,179 (547,831,513)
324,576,941 70,420,167 - 19,395 395,016,503
(48,481,430) (10,829,675) (93,638,479) 134,574 (152,815,010)
(138,246,582) (46,300,942) (18,538,284) (7,676,295) (210,762,103)
(98,109,050) (30,222,260) (65,435,051) (4,696,110) (198,462,471)
(284,837,062) (87,352,877) (177,611,814) (12,237,831) (562,039,584)
49,484,056 26,961,245 2,640,887 4,962,073 84,048,260
408,883,090

4,501,349

(91,334,996)

30,071,847

436,169,550

500,193,963 154,083,571 333,610,584 23,942,447 1,011,830,565
1,933,189,687

2,945,020,252

654,669,019 201,669,247 436,639,644 31,336,600 1,324,314,510

48,274,372

1,372,588,882
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Gross written premium

(inclusive of Administrative surcharge)

Insurance premium earned

Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers
Net insurance premium

Commission income

Net underwriting income

Insurance claims
Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers
Net claims

Commission expense
Management expense

Net insurance claims & expenses
Underwriting result

Net Investment income

Other income

Other expenses

Profit before tax from takaful operations-Operator's Fund

Profit before tax
Segment assets

Unallocated assets

Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities

RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

2023
Fire & property | Marine aviation Motor Miscellaneous Total
damage & transport (Restated)
(Rupees)

554,251,398 194,856,426 181,388,909 49,779,381 980,276,114
508,532,644 169,328,236 153,939,397 47,522,130 879,322,407
(277,243,756) (101,686,694) (7,214,711)  (32,490,997) || (418,636,158)
231,288,888 67,641,542 146,724,686 15,031,133 460,686,249
60,041,078 22,061,056 (13,447) 4,012,699 86,101,386
291,329,966 89,702,598 146,711,239 19,043,832 546,787,635
(379,676,664)  (27,074,353)  (73,014,615) (3,299,917)|| (483,065,549)
331,990,050 9,698,734 (297,847) 2,555,704 343,946,641
(47,686,614)  (17,375,619)  (73,312,462) (744,213)  (139,118,908)
(125,686,992)  (35,389,849)  (15,013,265) (6,394,414)  (182,484,520)
(88,521,204)  (25,888,450)  (56,155,944) (5,752,866)  (176,318,464)
(261,894,810)  (78,653,918) (144,481,671)  (12,891,493)  (497,921,892)
29,435,156 11,048,680 2,229,568 6,152,339 48,865,743
246,032,173

5,564,101
(72,645,064)

29,171,371

256,988,324

407,350,063 119,131,475 258,414,101 26,473,096 811,368,736

1,501,147,891

2,312,516,627

527,442,267 154,253,015 334,598,007 34,277,716  1,050,571,005

39,524,333

1,090,095,338
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33.

34.
34.1

a)

b)

Held to Available for Fair value Total

maturity sale through P & L
MOVEMENT IN INVESTMENTS Rupees
As at 1st January, 2023 112,694,790 338,852,209 342,423,860 793,970,859
Additions 37,559 128,278,060 720,800 129,036,419
Disposals (sale and redemptions) - (23,504,218)  (84,790,732) (108,294,950)
Fair value net gains / (loss) (excluding net realised gains) - 42,750,158 95,144,535 137,894,693
Impairment reversal - - - -
Amortisation of premium (11,140) - - (11,142)
As at December 31, 2023 112,721,209 486,376,208 353,498,462 952,595,879
Additions 879,897 272,273,564 177,046,255 450,199,715
Disposals (sale and redemptions) - (259,619,896) 144,662,529 (404,282,424)
Fair value net gains (excluding net realised gains) - 121,852,887 193,332,964 315,185,851
Impairment reversal - - - -
Amortisation of premium (11,969) - - (11,969)
As at December 31, 2024 113,589,137 620,882,763 579,215,152 1,313,687,051

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
Insurance Risk Management
Insurance Risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, the risk is random and therefore
unpredictable. The principal risk that the Company faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims exceed
the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or severity of claims is greater
than estimated. Insurance events are random, and the actual number and amount of claims will vary from year to year
from the level established.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability about the
expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected by a change in any subset
of the portfolio. The Company has developed its insurance underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insurance risks
accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variability
of the expected outcome.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk diversification in terms of type and amount of risk, geographical
location and type of industry covered.

Frequency and severity of claims

Political, environmental, economical and climatic changes give rise to more frequent and severe extreme events (for
example, fire, theft, steal, riot and strike, explosion, earthquake, atmospheric damage, hurricanes, typhoons, river
flooding, electric fluctuation, terrorism, war risk, damages occurring in inland transit, burglary, loss of cash in safe and
cash in transit, travel and personal accident, money losses , engineering losses and other events) and their
consequences (for example, subsidence claims). For certain contracts, the Company has also limited the number of
claims that can be paid in any policy year or introduced a maximum amount payable for claims in any policy year.

Insurance contracts which are divided into direct and facultative arrangements are further subdivided into four
segments: fire, marine, motor and miscellaneous The insurance risk arising from these contracts is concentrated in the
territories in which the Company operates, and there is a balance between commercial and personal properties / assets
in the overall portfolio of insured properties / assets. The Company underwrites insurance contracts in Pakistan.
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The Company manages these risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and proactive
claims handling. The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of
type and amount of risk, industry and geography. The Company has the right to re-price the risk on renewal. It also has
the ability to impose deductibles and reject fraudulent claims. Insurance contracts also entitle the Company to pursue
third parties for payment of some or all costs (for example, subrogation). The claims payments are limited to the extent
of sum insured on occurrence of the insured event.

The Company has entered into reinsurance cover / arrangements, with local and foreign reinsurers having good credit
rating by reputable rating agencies, as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan to reduce its
exposure to risks and resulting claims. Keeping in view the maximum exposure in respect of key zone aggregates, a
number of proportional and non-proportional facultative reinsurance arrangements are in place to protect the net
account in case of a major catastrophe.

The effect of such reinsurance arrangements is that the Company recovers the share of claims from reinsurers thereby
reducing its exposure to risk. Apart from the adequate event limit which is a multiple of the treaty capacity or the primary
recovery from the proportional reinsurance arrangements, any loss over and above the said limit would be recovered
under non-proportional treaty which is very much in line with the risk management philosophy of the Company.

In compliance of the regulatory requirement, the reinsurance agreements are duly submitted with Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan on an annual basis.

The Company has claims department dealing with the mitigation of risks surrounding claims incurred whether reported
or not. This department investigates and settles all claims based on surveyor's report / assessment. The unsettled claims
are reviewed individually at least semi-annually and adjusted to reflect the latest information on the underlying facts,
contractual terms and conditions, and other factors. The Company actively manages and pursues early settlements of
claims to reduce its exposure to unpredictable developments.

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims reported and otherwise are analyzed separately. The development of large losses / catastrophes is analyzed
separately. The shorter settlement period for claims allows the Company to achieve a higher degree of certainty about
the estimated cost of claims including IBNR. However, the longer time needed to assess the emergence of a subsidence
claim makes the estimation process more uncertain for these claims.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected subrogation
value, reinsurance and other recoveries. The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate
information regarding its claims exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely
that the final outcome may be different from the original liability established. The liability comprises amounts in relation
to unpaid reported claims, claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), expected claims settlement costs and a provision for
unexpired risks at the end of the reporting period.

Liability in respect of outstanding claims is based on the best estimate of the claims intimated or assessed. In calculating
the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Company's estimation techniques are a combination of
loss-ratio-based estimates (where the loss ratio is defined as the ratio between the ultimate cost of insurance claims and
insurance premiums earned in prior financial years in relation to such claims) and an estimate based upon actual claims
experience using predetermined basis where greater weight is given to actual claims experience as time passes.

In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Company considers any information available
from surveyor's assessment and information on the cost of settling claims with similar characteristics in previous
periods. Claims are assessed on a case-to-case basis separately.

Process used to decide on assumptions

The risks associated with insurance contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables that complicate
quantitative sensitivity analysis. This exposure is geographically concentrated in Pakistan only.
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e)

The Company uses assumptions based on a mixture of internal and market data to measure its related claims
liabilities. Internal data is derived mostly from the Company’s monthly claims reports, surveyor's report for particular
claim and screening of the actual insurance contracts carried out to derive data for the contracts held. The Company
has reviewed the individual contracts and in particular the industries in which the insured companies operate and the
actual exposure years of claims. This information is used to develop related provision for outstanding claims (both
reported and non-reported).

The choice of selected results for each accident year in respect of each class of business depends upon the
assessment of technique that has been most appropriate to observe historical developments. Through this analysis,
the Company determines the need for an IBNR or an unexpired risk liability to be held at each reporting date.

Changes in assumptions
The Company has not changed its assumptions for the insurance contracts as disclosed above in (b) and (c).
Sensitivity analysis

The analysis of exposure described in paragraph (c) above is also used to test the sensitivity of the selected
assumptions to changes in the key underlying factors. Assumptions of different levels have been used to assess the
relative severity of subsidence claims given past experience. The key material factor in the Company’s exposure to
subsidence claims is the risk of more permanent changes in geographical location in which Company is exposed.

The risks associated with the insurance contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables which complicate
quantitative sensitivity analysis. The Company makes various assumptions and techniques based on past claims
development experience. This includes indications such as average claims cost, ultimate claims numbers and
expected loss ratios. The Company considers that the liability for insurance claims recognized in the statement of
financial position is adequate. However, actual experience will differ from the expected outcome.

As the Company enters into short term insurance contracts, it does not assume any significant impact of changes in
market conditions on unexpired risks. However, some results of sensitivity testing are set out below, showing the
impact on profit before tax net of reinsurance. The impact of 10% increase / decrease in incidence of insured events
on profit before tax and shareholder's equity is as follows:

Pre tax profit Shareholders' equity
2023
Rupees
Impact of change in claim liabilities by +10%
Fire and property (3,438,416) (2,049,778) (2,441,275) (1,455,342)
Marine, aviation and transport (784,265) (857,048) (556,828) (608,504)
Motor (2,895,112) (2,308,859) (2,055,530) (1,639,290)
Miscellaneous (71,557) (157,581) (50,805) (111,883)
(7,189,350) (5,373,266) (5,104,438) (3,815,019)
Impact of change in claim liabilities by -10%
Fire and property 3,438,416 2,049,778 2,441,275 1,455,342
Marine, aviation and transport 784,265 857,048 556,828 608,504
Motor 2,895,112 2,308,859 2,055,530 1,639,290
Miscellaneous 71,557 157,581 50,805 111,883
7,189,350 5,373,266 5,104,438 3,815,019

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 (/¥4




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

g) Concentration of insurance risk

A concentration of risk may also arise from a single insurance contract issued to a particular type of policyholder,
within a geographical location or to types of commercial business. The Company minimizes its exposure to significant
losses by obtaining reinsurance from a number of reinsurers, who are dispersed over several geographical regions.

To optimize benefits from the principle of average and law of large numbers, geographical spread of risk is of extreme
importance. There are a number of parameters which are significant in assessing the accumulation of risks with
reference to the geographical location, the most important of which is risk survey.

The concentration of risk by type of contracts is summarized below by reference to liabilities.

Gross sum insured Reinsurance Net Amount

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Rupees in ‘000’

Fire and property 425,893,149 424,718,026 202,256,633 232,248,626 223,636,516 192,469,400
Marine, aviation and transport 260,526,595 216,964,533 157,312,723 128,265,619 103,213,873 88,698,914
Motor 13,356,281 12,248,943 39,160 52,830 13,317,121 12,196,113
Miscellaneous 25,351,574 27,024,067 19,799,390 22,013,262 5,552,183 5,010,805

725,127,599 680,955,569 379,407,906 382,580,337 345,719,693 298,375,232

h) Claim development table

Claim development table is included in note 21.1 to the financial statements. The table shows development of claims
over the period.

i) Sensitivity analysis
The insurance claims provision is sensitive to the above key assumptions. The analysis below is performed for

reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other assumptions held constant showing the impact on
liabilities and revenue account.

Change in Impact Impact
claims on gross on revenue
assumption liabilities account
Rupees
December 31, 2024
Current claims +10% 60,412 (60,412)
-10% (60,412) 60,412
December 31, 2023
Current claims +10% 49,182 (49,182)
-10% (49,182) 49,182

35. REINSURANCE RISK
Reinsurance ceded does not relieve the Company from its obligation towards policy holders and, as a result, the
Company remains liable for the portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that reinsurer fails to meet the
obligation under the reinsurance agreements.

To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company obtains reinsurance rating
from a number of reinsurers, who are dispersed over several geographical regions.
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36.

36.1

36.2

36.3

An analysis of all reinsurance assets recognized by the rating of the entity from which it is due are as follows:

Due from other| Reinsurance Prepaid
insurers / recoveries reinsurance
Rating reinsurers against premium ceded 2024 2023
outstanding
claims
Rupees
A or above including Pakistan
Reinsurance Company Limited 36,087,664 249,143,306 206,420,783 491,651,753 353,152,132
BBB - 22,486,656 19,659,319 42,145,975 33,247,735

36,087,664 271,629,962 226,080,102 533,797,728 386,399,867

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risks including market risk (comprising currency risk, interest rate
risk, and other price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk that could result in a reduction in the Company's net assets or
a reduction in the profits available for dividends.

The Company's overall risk management programmed focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
management framework. There are Board Committees and Management Committees for developing risk
management policies and its monitoring.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in
market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other equity prices. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return. All transactions are carried in Pak Rupees therefore, the Company is not exposed to material currency risk.
However, the Company is exposed to interest rate risk and other price risk.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair values of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market interest rates. At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of Company's interest-bearing financial
instruments was:

2024 2023 | | 2024 2023
—Effective interest rate % Rupees
Fixed rate instruments
Pakistan Energy Sukuk Il 22.97 22.97 70,080,623 70,092,591
Term deposits 9.50 to 21 15t018.5 43,508,514 42,628,618
Variable rate instruments
PLS saving accounts 9.50t0 18.50 12.50to 18 45,233,138 66,269,371
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Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for fixed rate financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change
in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit and loss account and equity of the company in respect of
fixed rate financial instruments.

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates would have decreased the profit or loss by the amounts shown below.

Reduction in interest rates by 100 basis points would have a vice versa impact. This analysis assumes that all
variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the comparative period.

Profit and loss before tax Equity
100 bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp
increase decrease increase decrease
Rupees
As at December 31, 2024
Cash flow sensitivity 452,331 (452,331) 321,155 (321,155)
As at December 31, 2023
Cash flow sensitivity 662,694 (662,694) 470,513 (470,513)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company carries out transactions with major foreign reinsurer in
Pakistan Rupees and the Company, at present is not exposed to currency risk as majority of the transactions are
carried out in Pak Rupees.

Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market
prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all or similar financial instruments traded
in the market. The Company is exposed to equity price risk since it has investments in equity securities and mutual
funds having carrying value of Rs.1,200.098 million (2023: Rs.839.874 million) as at the statement of financial position
date.

The Company's strategy is to hold its strategic equity investments for long term. Thus management is not concerned
with short term price fluctuations with respect to its strategic investments provided that the underlying business,
economic and management characteristics of the investee remain favorable. The Company strives to maintain above
average levels of shareholders' capital to provide a margin of safety against short term equity price volatility. The
Company manages price risk by monitoring exposure in quoted equity securities and implementing strict discipline in
internal risk management and investment policies.

Market prices are subject to fluctuation, consequently, the amount realized by the sale of an investment may

significantly differ from the reported market value. Furthermore, amount realized in the sale of a particular security
may be affected by the relative quantity of the security being sold.
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36.6

36.7

Sensitivity analysis

The analysis summarizes Company's price risk as at 2024 and 2023 and shows the effects of a hypothetical 10%
increase and a 10% decrease in market prices as at the year end. The selected hypothetical change does not reflect
what could be considered to be best or worst case scenarios. Indeed, results could be worse in Company's equity
investment portfolio because of the nature of equity markets. Sensitivity analysis of investments as at the reporting
date is as follows:

For held for trading investments, in case of 10% increase or decrease in prices at the reporting date, the net income
and equity would have been higher or lower by Rs.57.921 million (2023: Rs.35.349 million).

For available for sale investments, in case of 10% increase or decrease in prices at the reporting date, the net income
and equity would have been lower by Rs.62.088 million (2023: Rs.48.638 million) if the decline is considered
permanent.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company is unable to meet its obligations when they fall due as a result of policy
holder benefit payments, cash requirements from contractual commitments, or other cash outflows, such as debt
maturities or margin calls for derivatives. To guard against the risk, the Company has diversified funding sources and
assets are managed with liquidity in mind maintaining a healthy balance of cash and cash equivalents and readily
marketable securities. The maturity profile is monitored to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained.

Within one Over one year Over five Total
year to five years years
Rupees
Financial liabilities
Outstanding claims including IBNR 343,523,464 - - 343,523,464
Insurance / reinsurance payables 192,164,335 - - 192,164,335
Other creditors and accruals 75,371,099 - - 75,371,099
Unclaimed dividend 6,847,173 - - 6,847,173
617,906,071 - - 617,906,071
2023
Within one Over one year Over five Total
year to five years years
Rupees
Financial liabilities
Outstanding claims including IBNR 230,153,423 - - 230,153,423
Insurance / reinsurance payables 216,603,821 - - 216,603,821
Other creditors and accruals 67,085,270 - - 67,085,270
Unclaimed dividend 4,531,819 - - 4,531,819
518,374,333 - - 518,374,333

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk, which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by
monitoring credit exposures by undertaking transactions with a large number of counterparties in various industries
and by continually assessing the credit worthiness of counter parties.
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Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, as specified below:

2024 2023

Rupees
Investments 113,589,137 112,721,209
Loan and other receivable 5,443,206 5,135,425
Insurance / reinsurance receivable 642,361,902 537,186,737
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 271,629,962 176,420,765
Cash at bank 102,177,152 108,130,577

1,135,201,359 939,594,713

The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:

Rating

Short term Long term |Rating agency

Rupees
Banks
Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS
National Bank of Pakistan A-1+ AAA VIS
MCB Bank Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA
MCB Islamic Bank Limited A-1 A+ PACRA
Allied Bank Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA
United Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS
Faysal Bank Limited A-1+ AA PACRA & VIS
Bank Alfalah Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A-1+ AA+ PACRA
The Bank of Punjab A-1+ AA+ PACRA
The Bank of Khyber A-1 A+ PACRA & VIS
Soneri Bank Limited A-1+ AA- PACRA
JS Bank Limited A-1+ AA PACRA
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited A-1+ AA VIS

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk occurs when a number of counterparties have a similar type of business activities. As a
result, any change in economic, political or other conditions would effect their ability to meet contractual obligations
in similar manner.

During the year no assets have been impaired other than available for sale investments against which defecit on

revaluation has been made. Further insurance/reinsurance receivable balances against which allowance for
impairment against doubutful of Rs.35.386 million has been made.
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36.8 Financial instruments

Interest / mark-up bearing Non-mark-up bearing Total
Ma(t)t:]rgygl g\gzhln Maggg%:f;er Sub Total Mag;]rlet);/ ‘\a/vaﬁhm Ma(l)trl:gt}yegf;ter Sub Total 2024 2023
Rupees
Financial assets
Held to maturity investments 43,508,514 70,080,623 113,589,137 - - - 113,589,137 112,721,209
Available for sale investments - - - 620,882,763 - 620,882,763 620,882,763 486,376,208
Held for trading investment - - - 579,215,152 - 579,215,152 579,215,152 353,498,462
Loans and other receivable - - - 4,575,855 - 4,575,855 4,575,855 4,268,074
Insurance / reinsurance receivables - - - 642,361,902 - 642,361,902 642,361,902 537,186,737
Reinsurance recoveries against
outstanding claims - - - 271,629,962 - 271,629,962 271,629,962 176,420,765

Cash and bank deposits 45,233,138 - 45,233,138 56,944,014 - 56,944,014 102,177,152 108,130,577

88,741,652 70,080,623 158,822,275 2,175,609,648 - 2,175,609,648  2,334,431,923  1,778,602,032
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost - - - 343,523,464 - 343,523,464 343,523,464 230,153,423
Outstanding claims including IBNR - - - 10,052,115 - 10,052,115 10,052,115 13,868,183
Insurance / reinsurance payables - - - 6,597,470 - 6,597,470 6,597,470 5,820,103
Other creditors and accruals - - - 360,173,049 - 360,173,049 360,173,049 249,841,709

88,741,652 70,080,623 158,822,275 1,815,436,599 - 1,815436,599  1,974,258,874  1,528,760,323

36.9 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements are appropriate to their fair
values except for held to maturity investments. Fair value is determined on the basis of the objective evidence at each
required date.

36.9.1 Carrying amount versus fair value

The following table compares the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s financial assets and financial
liabilities as at December 31, 2024.

The Company considers that the carrying amount of the following financial assets and financial liabilities are a
reasonable approximation of their fair values except for available for sale and held to maturity investments:
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As at December 31, 2024

As at December 31, 2023

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount Value amount Value
Rupees
Financial Assets
Investments
Available for sale
Ordinary shares - listed
Related Parties 12,770,431 12,770,431 12,221,513 12,221,513
Others 290,596,167 290,596,167 145,132,254 145,132,254
Mutual fund units 317,516,164 317,516,164 329,022,441 329,022,441
Held to maturity
Pakistan Energy Sukuk Il 70,080,623 70,080,623 70,092,591 70,092,591
Deposit maturing within 12 months 43,508,514 43,508,514 42,628,618 42,628,618
Held for trading
Ordinary shares - listed 579,215,152 579,215,152 353,498,462 353,498,462
1,313,687,052 1,313,687,052 952,595,879 952,595,879
Loan and other receivables 4,575,855 4,575,855 4,268,074 4,268,074
Insurance/reinsurance receivable 642,361,902 642,361,902 537,186,737 537,186,737
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 271,629,962 271,629,962 176,420,765 176,420,765
Cash and bank balances 102,206,082 102,206,082 108,555,276 108,555,276
Current and other accounts - - - -
Total assets of Window Takaful Operations 182,748,071 182,748,071 155,881,702 155,881,702
Financial liabilities
Outstanding claims including IBNR 343,523,464 343,523,464 230,153,423 230,153,423
Insurance / reinsurance payables 10,052,115 10,052,115 13,868,183 13,868,183
Other creditors and accruals 75,371,099 75,371,099 67,085,270 67,085,270
Total Liabilities of Window Takaful operations 41,427,199 41,427,199 34,992,514 34,992,514

36.9.2 Fair value hierarchy

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial asset or financial liability is categorized is determined on
the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified in their entirety into only one of the three levels.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized:
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As at December Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
31,2024
Rupees
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments at fair value through profit or
loss/ held for trading 579,215,152 579,215,152 - -
Available for sale investments 620,882,762 303,366,598 317,516,164 -
1,200,097,914 882,581,751 317,516,164 -
As at December Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
31,2023
Rupees
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments at fair value through profit or
loss/ held for trading 353,498,462 353,498,462 - -
Available for sale investments 486,376,208 157,353,767 329,022,441 -
839,874,670 510,852,229 329,022,441 -

36.9.3

36.9.4

36.9.5

Transfers during the year

During the year ended December 31, 2024:

- There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements

- There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value measurements

Valuation techniques

Fair value of investments classified as held to maturity is assessed using level 2 inputs usually closing market price
as per rates prescribed by Financial Market Association of Pakistan in respect of GOPIS by using PKRYV rates at

reporting date per certificates multiplied by the number of certificates held.

Fair value of available for sale investments is determined using level 1 inputs i.e., quoted market prices of listed
securities / NAVs of open end funds.

Fair value of Investments at fair value through profit or loss - held for trading is determined using level 1 inputs i.e.,
quoted market prices of listed securities / NAVs of open end funds.

For level 2 investments at fair value through profit or loss - held for trading, the Company uses the closing market price
as per rates prescribed by Financial Market Association of Pakistan in respect of GOPIS by using PKRYV rates at
reporting date per certificates multiplied by the number of certificates held.

Capital Management
The management's policy is to maintain a strong capital base for the confidence of stakeholders and to sustain future
development of the business. The management closely monitors the return on capital along with the level of

distributions to ordinary shareholders. The Company meets minimum paid up capital requirements as required by
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31,
2024

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

December 37,

2023
37. STATEMENT OF SOLVENCY —— Rupees

Assets
Property and equipment 104,759,877 87,159,556
Intangible assets - -
Investments
Equity securities and mutual funds 1,200,097,914 839,874,670
Debt securities 70,080,623 70,092,591
Term deposits 43,508,514 42,628,618
Insurance / Reinsurance receivables 642,361,902 537,186,737
Loans and other receivables 4,575,855 4,268,074
Reinsurance Recoveries against outstanding claims 271,629,962 176,420,765
Deferred Commission Expense 94,842,909 95,312,664
Prepayments 228,208,543 195,135,974
Cash and bank 102,206,082 108,555,276
Total Assets of window takaful operations - Operator's Fund 182,748,071 155,881,702

2,945,020,252  2,312,516,627

In-admissible assets as per following clauses of section 32(2) of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000

Clause (d) loan to employees 2,854,740 1,512,750
Clause (h) Insurance / Reinsurance receivable 461,512,523 372,555,483
Clause (k) bank deposits related to guarantees 546,227 546,227
Clause (g) shares in related party 12,770,431 12,221,513
Clause (s) investment in shares 521,886,792 251,335,214
Clause (s) immovable property 2,142,187 2,380,207
Clause (u)-(i) vehicles 76,036,478 78,613,758
Clause (u)-(ii) office equipments and computers 6,147,471 3,334,513
Clause (u)-(iii) furniture fixtures 8,105,617 1,244,273
Total of in-admissible assets 1,092,002,466 723,743,939
Total Admissible Assets 1,853,017,786 1,588,772,688

Total Liabilities
Underwriting provisions

Outstanding claims including IBNR 343,523,464 230,153,423
Unearned premium reserves 489,493,362 440,170,615
Unearned commission income 33,682,692 39,285,465
Insurance / Reinsurance payables 192,164,335 216,603,821
Unclaimed dividend 6,847,173 4,531,819
Other creditors and accruals 79,862,274 71,576,445
Deferred taxation 126,464,055 30,143,866
Income Tax liabilities 59,124,328 22,637,371
Total Liabilities window takaful operations - Operator's Fund 41,427,199 34,992,514
1,372,588,882 1,090,095,339
Total Net Admissible Assets 480,428,904 498,677,349
Minimum Solvency Requirement (higher of following) 150,000,000 150,000,000
Method A - U/s 36(3)(a) 150,000,000
Method B - U/s 36(3)(b) 109,299,158
Method C- U/s 36(3)(C) 87,034,998
Excess in Net Admissible Assets over Minimum Requirements 330,428,904 348,677,349

iRR) RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

38. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Company has contributory provident fund scheme for benefit of all its permanent employees under the title of
“Reliance Insurance Company Limited - Employees Contributory Provident Fund”. The Fund is maintained by the
Trustees and all decisions regarding investments and distribution of income etc. are made by the Trustees
independent of the Company.

38.1 The Trustees have intimated that the size of the Fund at year end was Rs.130.283 million (2023: Rs.114.079 million).

2024 2023
Audited Audited
Rupees in Percentage Rupees in Percentage
000' % 000 %
Size of the fund - total assets 130,283 114,079
Fair value of investments 50,021 38.39% 103,047 90.33%
The breakup of fair value of investment in
provident fund is as follows:

Government securities 35,699 71.37% 31,828 30.89%
Open end mutual fund 13,451 26.89% 70,738 68.65%
Shares 871 1.74% 481 0.47%

38.2 The above investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the requirement of Section 218 of
the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

39. EVENTS AFTEER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Subsequent to the year end, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 27th March, 2025 has announced bonus
shares at 51% (December 31, 2023: Nil) amounting to Rs.339,343,540 and cash at Nil (December 31, 2023: 10%
Rs.66,537,949). The Board has also approved transfer of Rs.Nil million (December 31, 2023: Rs. 90,000,000) to
general reserve from unapproporiated profit. These financial statement of the year ended December 31, 2024 do not
include the effect of appropriations which will be accounted for subsequent to the year end.

EEDEE o

40. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

As at December 31 190 190
Average no. of employees during the year 190 187
41. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purpose of better
presentation and comparison.

42, GENERAL
The figures in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.
43. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements have been authorized for issue on 27th March, 2025 by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

AhMany Zia ZakariaE Ghulam Haider A. Razak Ahmed

Irfan Zakaria Bawany
Chairman Director Director Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive & Managing Director

Karachi: 27th March, 2025
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE TAKAFUL RULES,
2012 AND SHARIA RULES AND PRINCIPLES

FOR THE YEAR 31ST DECEMBER 2024

The financial arrangements, contracts and transactions, entered into by Reliance Insurance Company Limited — Window
Takaful Operations (the Operator) for the year ended 31 December 2024 are in compliance with the Takaful Rules, 2012 and the
Sharia Rules and Principles determined by the Shariah Advisor of the Operator, (Sharia Rules and Principles).

Further, we confirm that:

e The Operator has developed and implemented all the policies and procedures in accordance with the Takaful Rules, 2012
and rulings of the Shariah Advisor along with a comprehensive mechanism to ensure compliance with such rulings and
Takaful Rules, 2012 in their overall operations. Further, the governance arrangements including the reporting of events and
status to those charged with relevant responsibilities, such as the Audit Committee / Shariah Advisor and the Board of
Directors have been implemented;

e The Operator has imparted trainings / orientations and ensured availability of all manuals / agreements approved by Shariah
Advisor / Board of Directors to maintain the adequate level of awareness, capacity and sensitization of the staff,
management;

e Allthe products and policies have been approved by Shariah Advisor and the financial arrangements including investments
made, policies, contracts and transactions, entered into by Window Takaful Operations are in accordance with the polices
approved by Shariah Advisor; and

e The assets and liabilities of Operator are segregated from the Reliance Insurance Company Limited other assets and
liabilities, at all times in accordance with the provisions of the Takaful Rules, 2012.

This has been duly confirmed by the Shariah Advisor of the Operator.

A. Razak Ahmed
Chief Executive & Managing Director

Karachi: 27th March, 2025
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Karachi-74200
Pakistan

INDEPENDENT REASONABLE ASSURANCE REPORT TO THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE MANAGEMENT'S STATEMENT OF
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SHARIAH PRINCIPLES

Introduction

We were engaged by the Board of Directors of Reliance Insurance Company Limited ("the Company") to report on
the annexed Statement of Compliance (the Statement) with the Shariah Principles of the Window Takaful
Operations (Takaful Operations) of the Company, as set out in the annexed Statement prepared by the
management for the year ended December 31, 2024, with the Takaful Rules, 2012, in the form of an independent
reasonable assurance conclusion about whether the Statement presents fairly the status for the year ended
December 31, 2024, of compliance of the Takaful Operations with the Takaful Rules, 2012, in all material respects.

Applicable Criteria

The criteria against which the subject matter information (the Statement) is assessed comprise of the provisions
of Takaful Rules, 2012, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Responsibilities of the Management

The management of the Company is responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls
relevant to the preparation of the Statement that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
It also includes ensuring the overall compliance of the Takaful Operations with the Takaful Rules, 2012 and other
applicable laws and regulations.

The management of the Company is also responsible for preventing and detecting fraud and for identifying and
ensuring that the Takaful Operations comply with laws and regulations applicable to its activities. It is also
responsible for ensuring that the management, where appropriate, those charged with governance, and personnel
involved with the Takaful Operations compliance with the Takaful Rules, 2012 are properly trained, systems are
properly updated and that any changes in reporting encompass all significant business units.

Limitations

A system of internal control, because of its nature, may not prevent or detect all instances of non-compliance with
Takaful Rules, 2012, and consequently cannot provide absolute assurance that the objective of compliance with
Takaful Rules, 2012, will be met. Also, projection of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods is subject to
the risk that the controls may become inadequate or fail.

Our Independence and Quality Management

The firm applies International Standard on Quality Management 1 “Quality Control for Firms That Perform Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information, or Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements” and
accordingly maintains a comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures
regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory
requirements.

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics for Chartered
Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, which is founded on fundamental
principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care, confidentiality and professional
behavior.

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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Our responsibilities and summary of work performed

Our responsibility is to examine the annexed statement prepared by management and to report thereon in the form
of an independent reasonable assurance conclusion based on the evidence obtained. We conducted our
engagement in accordance with International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000 (Revised),
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information issued by the
International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. That standard requires that we plan and perform our
procedures to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annexed statement presents fairly the status of
compliance of the Takaful Operations with the Takaful Rules, 2012, in all material respects.

The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of non-compliances with
the Takaful Rules, 2012, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, we have considered internal controls relevant to the preparation of the
Statement in order to design assurance procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purposes of expressing a conclusion as to the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over the preparation
of the Statement. Our engagement also included assessing the appropriateness of the compliance with Shariah
Principles, the suitability of the criteria used by the management in preparing the Statement in the circumstances
of the engagement, evaluating the appropriateness of the methods, policies and procedures, and models used in
the preparation of the Statement and the reasonableness of estimates made by the management and evaluating
the overall presentation of the Statement. Reasonable assurance is less than absolute assurance.

As part of this engagement, we have not performed any procedures by way of audit, review or verification of the
Statement nor of the underlying records or other sources from which the Statement was extracted.

The procedures performed included:

o Evaluated the systems, procedures and practices in place with respect to the Takaful operations in
compliance with the Takaful Rules, 2012 and Shariah advisor's guidelines;

° Evaluated the governance arrangements including the reporting of events and status relating to Takaful
Operations to those charged with relevant responsibilities, such as the Audit Committee / Shariah Advisor
and the Board of Directors;

° Tested transactions relating to Takaful operations, using an appropriate sample, to assess compliance of
tested transactions carried out in compliance with the laid down procedures and practices including the
regulations relating to Takaful operations as laid down in Takaful Rules, 2012;

o Reviewed the Statement to assess whether it is prepared in accordance with Shariah Principles of Takaful
Rules, 2012; and

° In performing our assurance procedures, necessary guidance on Shariah matters was provided by
independent Shariah scholar.

Conclusion
Our conclusion has been formed on the basis of, and is subject to, the matters outlined in this report. We believe
that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our conclusion. In our

opinion, the annexed statement, for the year ended December 31, 2024, presents fairly the status of compliance
of the Takaful Operations with the Takaful Rules, 2012, in all material respects.

P— N

Karachi: 07th April, 2025 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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SHARI'AH ADVISOR’S REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024

All praise and thanks are due to Allah Almighty, by whose blessing Reliance Insurance Co. Ltd. Window Takaful
Operations (RIC WTO) has successfully completed its eight year of Takaful operations.

Being a Shari’ah Advisor of Reliance Insurance Co. Ltd. Window Takaful Operations it is my responsibility to
ensure that the Participant membership documents, underwriting procedures, Re-Takaful Arrangements, and
financial activities related to the Participants and stakeholders should be compliant as per Shari’ah rulings.

On the other hand it is the responsibility of RIC Takaful Operator’s management to follow the Takaful Rules, 2012
and guidelines set by the Shari’ah Advisor and to take prior approval of Shari’ah Advisor for all policies and
services being offered by RIC (Window Takaful).

In order to have an independent assessment of the Shari’ah governance and compliance environment of the
operator, and the conformity of Takaful Operations with Takaful Rules, 2012, an external and internal audit have
been conducted.

In my opinion and to the best of my understanding based on explanations provided by the Operator and audit
reports of the External and internal auditors, blows are the findings:

° Underwriting, investments and financial activities undertaken by the Operator for the year of ended 31
December, 2024 were in accordance with Takaful Rules, 2012 and guidelines issued by me in the capacity
of Shariah Advisor.

° Appropriate accounting policies and basis of measurement have been consistently applied in preparation of

the financial statements of “Participant Takaful Fund (Wagf Fund)” and “Operator Fund”.

° The Operator found performing its duties to its level best by following Shariah guidelines and through
consolation with me where needed.

° Any cases which were required to be consulted in accordance with the Shariah and Takaful Rules have been
discussed and duly resolved.

| concluded my report with the words that Allah Almighty grant Reliance Insurance Co. Ltd. Window Takaful
Operations (RIC WTO) remarkable success and help the entire team at every step and keep away from every
hindrance and difficulty.

&

e

Mufti M Farhan Farooq
Shari’ah Advisor

Reliance Insurance Co. Ltd.
Window Takaful Operations

Karachi: 27th March, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS)

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of RELIANCE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED- WINDOW
TAKAFUL OPERATIONS (“the Operator”) as at December 31, 2024, which comprise the statement of financial
position of Operator's fund and Participants’ takaful fund as at December 31, 2024, the profit and loss account,
the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in Operator's fund and Participants’ takaful
fund and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of
the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position of Operator's fund and Participants’ takaful fund, the profit and loss account, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in Operator's fund and Participants takaful fund and the cash
flow statement together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of
Operator’s affairs as at December 31, 2024 and of the profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in
Operator's fund and Participants’ takaful fund and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Operator in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Reports Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Insurance Ordinance, 2000
and, Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Operator’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Operator’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of
an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Operator’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Operator’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Operator to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Operator as required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000
and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position of Operator's fund and Participants’ takaful fund, the profit and loss
account, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in Operator's fund and
Participants’ takaful fund and the cash flow statement together with the notes thereon have been drawn
up in conformity with the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Companies Act, 2017 (XXI of 2017), and are in
agreement with the books of account;

C) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose
of the Operator’s business; and;

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Zulfikar Ali Causer.

KARACHI M. N\

DATED: 7th April, 2025 BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
UDIN: AR202410067favipTVEr

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION -
WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

ASSETS
Investment

Mutual funds
Takaful / re-takaful receivables
Deferred wakala fee
Receivable from PTF
Accrued investment income
Retakaful recoveries against outstanding claims
Deferred commission expense
Taxation-payment less provision
Prepayments
Cash at bank
TOTAL ASSETS

FUND AND LIABILITIES
FUNDS ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Operator's Fund (OPF)
Statutory Fund
Unappropriated profit

(NIei = December 31,
2024

Surplus on revaluation of available for sale of investments

Total Operator's Funds

Participants' Takaful Fund (PTF)
Seed money
Accumulated surplus

Deficit on revaluation of available for sale of investments

Balance of Participants' Takaful Fund

LIABILITIES

PTF underwriting provisions
Outstanding claims including IBNR
Unearned contribution reserve
Reserve for unearned retakaful rebate

Unearned wakala fee

Takaful / Retakaful payable

Other creditors and accruals
Taxation-payment less provision

Deferred taxation-net

Payable to OPF

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

16
14
15

17
11
12

13

Operator's Retakaful Fund

Participant's Retakaful Fund

December 3],

December 31,
2024

December 3],

2023 2023
(Rupees)
115,594,166 99,313,468 11,023,835 27,800,999
- - 140,196,734 106,124,638
- - 23,824,137 21,182,249
43,064,791 34,807,391 - -
- 68,976 68,630 369,191
- - 14,618,156 45,932,517
10,849,277 7,811,311 - -
3,219,143 - - -
517,500 508,500 37,044,691 20,767,464
9,503,194 18,372,057 13,308,725 41,386,451
182,748,071 155,881,703 240,084,908 263,563,509
50,000,000 50,000,000 - -
91,275,268 70,826,412 - -
45,604 62,777 - -
141,320,872 120,889,189 - -
- - 500,000 500,000
- - 89,884,828 87,696,055
- - (98,293) -
= - 90,286,535 88,196,055
- - 24,768,866 61,498,945
- - 71,568,823 52,955,619
= - 6,849,805 3,638,252
- - 103,187,494 118,092,816
23,824,137 21,182,249 - -
- - 139,497 19,234,111
17,581,602 12,530,930 3,406,591 3,233,136
- 1,260,875 - -
21,460 18,459 - -
- - 43,064,791 34,807,391
41,427,199 34,992,513 149,798,373 175,367,454
182,748,071 155,881,703 240,084,908 263,563,509

The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

A

Irfan Zakaria Bawany
Chairman

Karachi: 27th March, 2025

Director
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Ghulam Haider
Chief Financial Officer

A. Razak Ahmed
Chief Executive & Managing Director




PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

December 31, December 31,
Note 2024 2024

Rupees

PARTICIPANT'S TAKAFUL FUND
Contributions earned 88,480,068 66,840,771
Less: Contributions ceded to retakaful (54,215,768) (52,660,361)
Net contributions revenue 14 34,264,300 14,180,410
Retakaful rebate earned 15 7,815,916 10,246,206
Net underwriting income 42,080,216 24,426,616
Net claims - reported / settled - IBNR 16 (36,380,745) (26,627,884)
Other direct expenses 19 (5,711,818) (2,194,668)
Deficit before investment income (12,347) (4,395,936)
Investment income 20 3,386,339 7,735,447
Less: Modarib’s share of investment income (1,185,219) (3,094,179)
Surplus transferred to accumulated surplus 2,188,773 245,332
OPERATOR'S FUND
Wakala fee 17 49,980,610 44,560,512
Commission expense 18 (20,568,940) (17,739,340)
General, administrative and management expenses 22 (17,980,119) (17,618,108)

11,431,551 9,203,064
Modarib's share of PTF investment income 21 1,185,219 3,094,179
Investment income 20 19,071,357 18,301,407
Direct expenses 23 (1,616,280) (1,427,280)
Profit before taxation 30,071,847 29,171,370
Taxation 24 (9,622,991) (8,459,697)
Profit after taxation 20,448,856 20,711,672

The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Ghulam Haider
Chief Financial Officer

A. Razak Ahmed
Chief Executive & Managing Director

Irfan Zakaria Bawany AhMany Zia ZakariaE

Chairman Director Director

Karachi: 27th March, 2025
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
December 31, December 3],
2024 2023

Rupees

PARTICIPANTS' FUND
Surplus for the year 2,188,773 245,332
Other comprehensive loss:
Unrealised loss on available-for-sale investments (98,293) -
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,090,480 245,332
OPERATOR'S FUND
Profit after taxation 20,448,856 20,711,672
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealised gain on available-for-sale investments-net of tax 45,603 40,093
Reclassification adjustments relating to available-for-sale investments disposed

of during the year-net of tax (62,776) -

(17,173) 40,093

Total comprehensive income for the year 20,431,683 20,751,765

The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Irfan Zakaria Bawany AhnMany Zia ZakariaE Ghulam Haider A. Razak Ahmed

Chairman Director Director Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive & Managing Director

Karachi: 27th March, 2025
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OPERATOR'S FUND
AND PARTICIPANTS' TAKAFUL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Operator's Fund
Statutory Unappripriated | Unrealized gain on
Fund profit revaluation of Total
available-for-sale
investments
-net
Rupees
Balance as at January 1, 2023 50,000,000 50,114,740 22,684 100,137,424
Profit for the year - 20,711,672 - 20,711,672
Other comprehensive income - - 40,093 40,093
Balance as at December 31, 2023 50,000,000 70,826,412 62,777 120,889,189
Profit for the year - 20,448,856 - 20,448,856
Other comprehensive loss - - (17,173) (17,173)
Balance as at December 31, 2024 50,000,000 91,275,268 45,604 141,320,872
Participants' Fund
Seed Accumulated | Unrealized gain on
Money Surplus revaluation of Total
available-for-sale
investments
-net
Rupees
Balance as at January 01, 2023 500,000 87,450,723 - 87,950,723
Surplus for the year - 245,332 - 245,332
Balance as at December 31, 2023 500,000 87,696,055 - 88,196,055
Surplus for the year - 2,188,773 - 2,188,773
Other comprehensive loss - - (98,293) (98,293)
Balance as at December 31, 2024 500,000 89,884,828 (98,293) 90,286,535

The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Irfan Zakaria Bawany AhnMany Zia ZakariaE A. Razak Ahmed

Ghulam Haider
Chairman Director Director Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive & Managing Director

Karachi: 27th March, 2025
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

OPERATING CASH FLOWS

a) Takaful activities

Contribution received

Retakaful contribution paid

Claims / benefits paid

Retakaful and other recoveries received
Commission paid

Retakaful rebate received

Wakala fee received

Wakala fee paid

Modarib share received

Modarib share paid

Net cash generated from / (used in) takaful activities

b) Other operating activities

Income tax paid

General and other expenses paid

Other operating receipts

Net cash (used in) other operating activities

Total cash (used in) / generated from all operating activities

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Profit / return received

Dividend received

Proceeds from investments

Payments for investments

Total cash generated from investing activities

Total cash (used in) / flow from all activities
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Reconciliation to profit and loss Account
Operating cash flows

Dividend income

Other investment income

Increase in assets other than cash

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities

Profit after tax / Surplus for the year

Attributed to:
Operator's Fund
Participants' Takaful Fund

Operator’'s Fund

Participant’s Takaful Fund

(Rupees)
- - 138,371,312 120,274,747
- - (104,957,137) (66,410,476)
- - (117,638,552) (32,019,782)
- - 75,842,089 14,680,481
(23,606,906) (19,332,003) - -
- - 11,027,469 10,694,018
45,000,000 41,000,000 - -
- - (45,000,000) (41,000,000)
550,317 1,143,039 - -
- - (550,317) (1,143,039)
21,943,411 22,811,036 (42,905,136) 5,075,949
(14,103,009) (8,800,506) - -
(19,087,899) (19,045,387) (5,711,817) (2,194,668)
4,533,172 2,307,616 173,455 866,188
(28,657,736) (25,538,277) (5,538,362) (1,328,480)
(6,714,325) (2,727,241) (48,443,498 3,747,469
4,118,572 1,402,282 2,283,380 2,891,904
14,940,526 17,002,848 1,403,521 4,756,053
- - 28,000,000 -
(16,213,636) (14,452,460) (11,321,129) (4,042,646)
2,845,462 3,952,670 20,365,772 3,605,311
(3,868,863) 1,225,430 (28,077,726) 7,352,780
13,372,057 12,146,627 41,386,451 34,033,671
9,503,194 13,372,057 13,308,725 41,386,451
(6,714,325) (2,727,241) (48,443,498) 3,747,469
15,021,761 17,002,848 1,403,521 4,756,053
4,049,596 1,298,559 1,982,819 2,979,394
14,523,509 13,254,123 21,676,850 57,095,043
(6,431,685) (8,116,617) 25,569,081 (68,332,627)
20,448,856 20,711,672 2,188,773 245,332
20,448,856 20,711,673 - -
- - 2,188,773 245,332
20,448,856 20,711,672 2,188,773 245,332

The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

A

Irfan Zakaria Bawany
Chairman

Karachi: 27th March, 2025

Director
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AhMany Zia ZakariaE

Director

e

Ghulam Haider

Chief Financial Officer

A. Razak Ahmed

Chief Executive & Managing Director




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2.2

23

2.4

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Reliance Insurance Company Limited (the Company or the Operator) was incorporated in Pakistan in 1981 as a public
limited company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) to carry on general insurance
business. The Operator was allowed to work as Window Takaful Operator (the Operator) on 25 May 2016 by Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under SECP Takaful Rules, 2012 to carry on General Window Takaful
Operations in Pakistan. The Operator is listed at Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal office of the Operator
is located at 96-A, Sindhi Muslim Co-operative Housing Society, Karachi, Pakistan.

For the purpose of carrying on the takaful business, the Operator has formed a Waqf / Participant Takaful Fund
(PTF) on May 30, 2016 under the Waqgf Deed. The Waqgf Deed governs the relationship of Operator and Participants
for management of takaful operations.

These financial statements have been prepared in line with the format issued by the SECP through General Takaful
Accounting Regulations, 2019 and SECP circular no. 25 of 2015 dated July 9, 2015.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
Statement of compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017, and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, Insurance
Rules, 2017, Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017 SECP Takaful Rules, 2012 and the General Takaful
Accounting Regulations, 2019.

In case requirement differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Act, 2017, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000,
Insurance Rules 2017, Takaful Rules, 2012, General Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019 shall prevail.

Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless stated otherwise.
Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is also the functional currency of the Operator.
Temporary exemption from IFRS 17 and IFRS 9

Pursuant to the requirements of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan SRO 1715 (I) / 2023 dated 21
November 2023 IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”, is applicable to the companies engaged in insurance / takaful and
re-insurance / re-takaful business from financial years commencing on or after 01 January 2026.

IFRS 17, replaces IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts”. The new standard will apply to all entities that issue insurance and
reinsurance contracts, and to all entities that hold reinsurance contracts. This standard requires entities to identify
contracts and its terms and to assess whether they meet the definition of an insurance contract or includes
components of an insurance contract. Insurance contracts are required to account for under the recognition /
derecognition of IFRS 17. Companies subject to the requirement of SRO 1715 will also be required to adopt
requirements of IFRS 9 from the date of transition. On initial application of IFRS 17, comparative information for
insurance contracts is restated in accordance with IFRS 17, whereas comparative information for related financial
assets might not be restated in accordance with IFRS 9 if the insurer is initially applying IFRS 9 at the same date as
IFRS 17.

SECP through its S.R.0.506(1)/2024 has directed that the applicability period of optional temporary exemption from
applying IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” as given in para 20A of IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts” is extended for annual
periods beginning before 01 January 2026, subject to fulfilling the same conditions as are prescribed by para 20B of
IFRS 4.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

a)

b)

25

12

SECP vide letter no. ID/MDPRD/IFRS-17/2021/176 dated 15 June 2021 initiated a four-phase approach towards
implementation of IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”. The first three phases now stand completed and Phase 4 are
currently under progress.

The tables below set out the fair values as at the end of reporting year and the amount of change in the fair value
during that year for the following two groups of financial assets separately:

financial assets with contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal
and interest ("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding, excluding any financial asset that meets the definition of held
for trading in IFRS 9, or that is managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and

all other financial assets:

Fair value of financial assets as at December 31, 2024 and change in fair value during the year.

e | e | o
Rupees

Financial assets that do not meet the SPPI criteria

Equity Securities - Available for sale

Opening fair value 99,313,468 27,800,999 127,114,467
Net addition/delection during the year - net 16,213,635 (16,678,871) (465,236)
Impairment during the year - (98,293) (98,293)
Increase in fair value 67,063 - 67,063

115,594,166 11,023,835 126,618,001

Carrying value of all other financial assets approximates to their fair values since these either have short term maturity
or are frequently repriced.

Standards, amendments and interpretations that are effective during the current year
The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended December 31, 2024. These

standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or did not have
significant impact on the financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective date (annual periods
beginning on or after)

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -
Supplier finance arrangements January 01, 2024

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-lessee
subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions January 01, 2024

Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of
liabilities as current or non-current January 01, 2024

Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non-current
liabilities with covenants January 01, 2024
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

During the year, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) has withdrawn Technical Release 27 ‘|AS
12, Income Taxes (Revised 2012)’ and issued the ‘IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes
and Final Taxes’ (the Guidance). Accordingly, in accordance with the Guidance, the Company has changed its
accounting policy to recognise minimum and final taxes as ‘Levy’ under IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets” which were previously being recognised as ‘Income tax’. However, there is no impact on
the financial statements of prior periods.

2.6 Standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on
or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not
relevant to the Operator's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Operator's financial
statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective date (annual periods
beginning on or after)

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -
Amendments regarding the classification and measurement of financial instruments January 01, 2026

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments regarding the
classification and measurement of financial instruments January 01, 2026

Amendmends to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' -
Lack of Exchangeability January 01, 2026

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Amendments regarding
nature-dependent electricity contracts that are often structured as power purchase
agreements (PPAs) January 01, 2026

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments regarding nature-
dependent electricity contracts that are often structured as power purchase
agreements (PPAs) January 01, 2026

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs and IASs. January 01, 2026

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has been issued by IASB effective
from July 01, 2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP)

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by IASB effective from January
01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP)

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by IASB effective from January
01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP)

IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2023. However SECP has notified the timeframe for the adoption of IFRS - 17 which will be
adopted by January 01, 2026.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the requirements of accounting standards as applicable
in Pakistan requires the Operator to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The judgments, estimates and
assumptions are based on historical experience, current trends and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the estimates about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

4.1

The estimates / judgments and associated assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to the
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumption and estimates are
significant to this financial information, or judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are as
follows:

Notes
- Contribution deficiency reserve 4.7
- Takaful / Re-takaful receivables 410
- Outstanding claims including IBNR and re-takaful recoveries 4.18
against outstanding claims.
- Classification of investments 4.15
- Impairment of assets 4.16

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

The material accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless stated otherwise.

Takaful Contracts

Takaful contracts are based on the principles of wakala. The takaful contracts so agreed usually inspire concept
of tabarru (to donate for benefit of others) and mutual sharing of losses with the overall objective of eliminating
the element of uncertainty.

Contracts under which the Participant Takaful Fund (PTF) accepts significant takaful risk from another party (the
participant) by agreeing to compensate the participant if a specified uncertain future event (the takaful event)
adversely affects the participant are classified as takaful contracts. Once a contract has been classified as takaful
contract, it remains a takaful contract. Takaful risk is significant if a takaful event could cause the PTF to pay
significant benefits due to the happening of the takaful event compared to its non happening Once a contract has
been classified as a takaful contract, it remains a takaful contract for the remainder of its lifetime, even if the
takaful risk reduces significantly during the period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expired.

The operator underwrite non-life takaful contracts that can be categorized into following main categories:
a) Fire and property

Fire and property takaful contracts mainly compensate the participants for damage suffered to their
properties or for the value of property lost. Participants who undertake commercial activities on their
premises could also receive compensation for the loss of earnings caused by the inability to use the
covered properties in their business activities. These contracts are generally one year contracts except
some contracts that are of three months period.

b) Marine, aviation and transport

Marine takaful covers the loss or damage of vessels, cargo, terminals, and any transport or property by
which cargo is transferred, acquired, or held between the points of origin and final destination. These
contracts are generally for three months period.

c) Motor

Motor takaful provides protection against losses incurred as a result of theft, traffic accidents and against
third party liability that could be incurred in an accident. These contracts are generally one year contracts.

d) Miscellaneous

All other various types of takaful contracts are classified in miscellaneous category which includes mainly
engineering, terrorism, personal accident, workmen compensation, travel and products of financial
institutions etc. These contracts are normally one year takaful contracts except some engineering takaful
contracts that are of more than one year period, whereas normal travel takaful contracts expires within one
month.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

These takaful contracts are provided to all types of customers based on assessment of takaful risk by the
Operator. Normally personal takaful contracts e.g. vehicle, travel, personal accident, etc. are provided to individual
customers, whereas, takaful contracts of fire and property, marine, aviation and transport, accident and health and
other commercial line products are provided to commercial organizations.

Contribution

For all the takaful contracts, contributions / cover notes issued including administrative surcharge received /
receivable under a policy / cover note are recognised as written from the date of attachment of the risk to the
policy / cover note and over the period of contract from inception to the expiry of policy. Where contributions for a
policy are payable in installments, full contribution for the duration of the policy is recognised as written at the
inception of the policy and related assets set up for contributions receivable at a later date. Contributions are
stated on gross basis and exclusive of taxes and duties levied on contributions.

Commission expense

Commission expense incurred in obtaining and recording policies is deferred and recognised in profit and loss
account as an expense in accordance with the pattern of recognition of contribution revenue by applying 1/365
method.

Wakala fee

The Operator manages the general takaful operations for the Participants and charges Wakala fee at 35% (2023 :
40%) of the gross contribution on all classes of business except Motor business which is at 30% (2023 : 40%).
Wakala fee under a policy is recognized on the same basis on which related revenue is recognized. Unexpired
portion of Wakala fee is recognized as a liability of OPF and an asset of PTF.

Modarib Fee

The Operator manages the participants' investment as Modarib and charge 35% (2023 : 40%) of the investment /
deposit income earned by the Participants' Takaful Fund as Modarib's share.

Reserve for unearned contribution

The portion of contribution written relating to the unexpired period of coverage is recognized as unearned
contribution by the Company. The unearned portion of contribution income is recognized as a liability. The liability
is calculated by applying 1/365 days method.

Contribution deficiency reserve

At each financial statement date, liability adequacy tests are performed separately for each class of business to
ensure the adequacy of the unearned contribution liability for that class. It is performed by comparing the expected
future liability, after retakaful, from claims and other expenses, including retakaful expense, wakala and other
underwriting expenses, expected to be incurred after financial statement date in respect of policies in force at
financial statements date with the carrying amount of unearned contribution liability. Any deficiency is recognised
by establishing a provision (contribution deficiency reserve) to meet the deficit.

The expected future liability is estimated with reference to the experience during the expired period of the
contracts, adjusted for significant individual losses which are not expected to recur during the remaining period of
the policies and expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable.

The movement in the contribution deficiency reserve is recognised as an expense or income in the profit and loss
account for the year.

The expected ultimate net claim ratios for the unexpired periods of policies in force at financial statements date for

each class of business is as follows:
2024 2023

Rupees
-Fire and property 35.0% 40.0%
-Marine aviation and transport 27.5% 27.5%
-Motor 65.0% 57.5%
-Miscellaneous 45.0% 45.0%
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.1

4.12

4.13

Retakaful contracts

Contracts entered into by the Operator with retakaful operator under which the Operator arranges to cede takaful
risks of PTF assumed during normal course of the business and according to which the PTF is compensated for
losses on takaful contracts issued by the Operator are classified as retakaful contracts held.

Retakaful contribution is recognised as an expense at the time the retakaful is ceded. Commission on retakaful
cessions are recognised in accordance with the policy of recognizing contribution revenue.

Retakaful assets represent balances due from retakaful operators and retakaful recoveries against outstanding
claims. Retakaful recoveries are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are in
accordance with the retakaful contracts. Retakaful liabilities represent balances due to retakaful operators, are
primarily contributions payable for retakaful contracts, and are recognised at the same time when retakaful
contributions are recognised as an expense.

Retakaful assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expired.

An impairment review of retakaful assets is performed at each financial statement date. If there is an objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, the Operator reduces the carrying amount of the retakaful asset to its
recoverable amount and recognises that impairment loss in the profit and loss account.

Receivables and payables related to takaful contracts

Receivables and payables relating to takaful contracts are recognized when due. These include contribution due
but unpaid, contribution received in advance, contribution due and claims payable to takaful contract holders.
These are recognized at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given less provision for impairment, if any.

Allowance for impairment in contribution receivables is estimated on a systematic basis after analyzing the
receivables as per their ageing.

Takaful / Re-takaful receivables

Receivables under takaful contracts are recognized when due, at the fair value of the consideration receivable less
provision for doubtful debts, if any. If there is objective evidence that the receivable is impaired, the Operator
reduces the carrying amount of the receivable accordingly and recognizes that impairment loss in the profit and
loss account.

Re-takaful recoveries against outstanding claims

Claims recoveries against outstanding claims from the re-takaful operator and salvage are recognized as an asset
at the same time as the claims which give rise to the right of recovery are recognized as a liability and are measured
at the amount expected to be received.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Operator that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Operator
other components. All operating segments’ results are reviewed regularly by the Operator key management to
make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete
financial information is available.

The Operator has four primary business segments for reporting purposes namely, fire and property damage,
marine, motor and miscellaneous. The nature and business activities of these segments are disclosed in note 4.1.

Assets, liabilities and capital expenditures that are directly attributable to segments have been assigned to them
while the carrying amount of certain assets used jointly by two or more segments have been allocated to segments
on a reasonable basis. Those assets and liabilities, which cannot be allocated to a particular segment on a
reasonable basis, are reported as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank in saving accounts.
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4.14
4.14.1

4.14.11

4.14.1.2

4.14.2

4.14.3

4.15
4.15.1

4.15.1.2

4.16

Revenue recognition
Participant Takaful Fund (PTF)
Contribution

The revenue recognition policy for contributions is given under note 4.2.
Rebate from retakaful operators

Rebate from retakaful operators is deferred and recognised as revenue in accordance with the pattern of recognition
of the retakaful contribution to which it relates.

Operator’s Participant Fund (OPF)
The revenue recognition policy for wakala fee is given under note 4.4
Investment Income PTF / OPF

- Profit on bank deposits is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the effective yield.
- Dividend income is recognised when the Operations' right to receive the payment is established.
- Gain / loss on sale of investments is included in profit and loss account

Investments
Recognition

All investments are initially recognised at fair value of the consideration given and include transaction costs. All
purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market
convention are accounted for at the trade date. Trade date is the date when the Operator commits to purchase or sell
investments.

Measurement
Available for sale

At the time of acquisition, investments which are intended to be held for an undefined period of time but may be
sold in response to the need for liquidity or changes in interest rates are classified as availablefor-sale.

Subsequent to initial measurement, these are remeasured at fair value. Surplus / deficit on revaluation from one
reporting date to other is taken to other comprehensive income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. On
derecognition or impairment of available-for-sale investments, the cumulative gain or loss account previously
reported in other comprehensive income is transferred to profit and loss account for the period within Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Whereas, any reversal in impairment is taken in Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Held to maturity

Investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity where the Company has positive intent and
ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity subsequently, these are measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method and taking any discount or premium on acquisition.

Held for trading

Investments which are acquired principally for the purposes of generating profit from short term fluctuation in price
are classified as held-for-trading. subsequent to initial recognition, these are remeasured at fair value. Gains or
losses on investments on remeasurement of these investments are recognized in profit and loss account or the
revenue account as the case may be.

Impairment of assets

The management assesses at each reporting date whether there is an objective evidence that the financial assets
or a group of financial assets is impaired. The carrying value of assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
such asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.
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4.17

4.18

4.19
4.19.1

4.19.2

4.20

In the case of equity securities classified as 'available-for-sale', a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is considered as an objective evidence of impairment. In case of impairment of
available-for-sale equity securities, the cumulative loss previously recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income is removed therefrom and included in the profit and loss account. Impairment losses recognised in the
profit and loss account on equity securities are only reversed when the equity securities are derecognised.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the Company intends to either
settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR)

A liability for outstanding claims is recognised in respect of all claims incurred up to the financial statement date
which is measured at the undiscounted value of expected future payments. Provision for outstanding claims include
amounts in relation to claims reported but not settled, claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and expected claims
settlement costs.

Retakaful recoveries against outstanding claims are recognised as an asset and measured at the amount expected
to be received.

The provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is made at the financial statements date. IBNR claim have
been estimated using Expected Loss Ratio (ELR) methodology.

Levy and Income tax

Levy

The Company accounts for minimum and final tax levied under Section 113 and other applicable sections of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (ITO), using a hybrid approach in compliance with relevant IFRSs.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the profit and loss
account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in the statement of
comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in the statement of comprehensive income
respectively.

a) Current tax

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income determined in accordance with the prevailing law for
taxation of income and is calculated using enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation after taking into
account available tax credits and rebates, if any. The charge for the current taxation also includes adjustments
where considered necessary, relating to prior years which arise from assessments framed / finalised during the
year or required by any other reason.

b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the statement of financial postion liability method for all temporary differences
between the amounts attributed to assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax recognised is based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted at the financial statement date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

The taxation of Operators’ Fund is made while including in the Operator’s results as a whole and accordingly
taxation has been recorded.

Management expenses

Expenses allocated to PTF represent directly attributable expenses and these are allocated to various revenue
accounts on equitable basis. Expenses not directly allocable to PTF are charged to OPF.
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4.21

4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

Claims

Claims are charged to PTF as incurred whether reported or not based on estimated liability for compensation
owed under the takaful contracts. It includes claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and
settlement of claims, a reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries and any adjustments to claims
outstanding from previous years.

All claims incurred up to the statement of financial position date is measured at the undiscounted value of the
expected future payments. The claims are considered to be incurred at the time of the incident giving rise to the
claim except as otherwise expressly indicated in a takaful contract.

Creditors and accruals

Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to
be paid in future for the goods and / or services received, whether or not billed to the Operator.

Takaful surplus

Takaful surplus attributable to the participants is calculated after charging all direct costs and setting aside various
reserves. Allocation to participants, if applicable, is made after adjustment of claims paid to them during the year.

Defined contribution plan

The Operator operates funded contributory provident fund (defined contribution plan) for all permanent employees.
Equal contributions are made by the Operator and the employees at the rate 8.33% of basic salary, to the fund.

Contingencies

Contingencies are disclosed when the Operator has possible obligation that arises from past event and whose
existence will be confirmed only by occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of Operator, or a present obligation that arises from past event but is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of recourse embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the
obligation or, when amount of obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingencies are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current estimate.
Qard-e-Hasna

Qard-e-Hasna is provided by OPF to PTF in case of deficit or to fulfil cash flow requirements.

INVESTMENTS - MUTUAL FUNDS

Operator’s Fund - available-for-sale

2023
Cost 'T:Z\';Zf:t/ Carrying Value Cost “g?g{l'i’;?gr’]‘t/ Carrying Value
Rupees
Al-Hamra Islamic Money Market Fund 68,286,123 - 68,286,123 59,072,857 - 59,072,857
HBL Islamic Money Market Fund - - - 40,151,239 - 40,151,239
Al-Hamra Daily Dividend Fund - - - 8,135 - 8,135
HBL Islamic Savings Fund Plan-1 47,240,980 - 47,240,980 - - -

115,527,103 - 115,527,103 99,232,231 - 99,232,231

Surplus on revaluation - - 67,063 - - 81,237
115,527,103 - 115,594,166 99,232,231 - 99,313,468
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5.2 Participants’ Takaful Fund - available-for-sale

2023

Cost mg:zi/ri;?j:t/ Carrying Value Cost l":)ﬁfg\ilrig?ggt/ Carrying Value
Rupees
ABL Islamic Cash Fund 11,122,128 (98,293) 11,023,835 27,800,999 - 27,800,999

6. TAKAFUL / RETAKAFUL RECEIVABLES

Operator's Fund Participant's Fund

2024 2023 2024 2023
Rupees
Due from takaful participant holders - - 79,063,735 60,361,168
Due from other takaful / re-takaful operators - - 61,132,999 45,763,470

- - 140,196,734 106,124,638

7. RECEIVABLE FROM (PTF) / PAYABLE TO (OPF)

Wakala fee 39,739,140 32,116,642 39,739,140 32,116,642
Modarib fee 3,325,651 2,690,749 3,325,651 2,690,749
43,064,791 34,807,391 43,064,791 34,807,391

8. DEFERRED TAXATION

Unrealised gain on available-for-sale
investments (21,460) (18,459) - -

8.1 Reconciliation of deferred taxation

Opening balance (18,459) 5,100 - -
Credit to other comprehensive income (3,001) (28,559) - -
(21,460) (18,459) - -

9. PREPAYMENTS
Prepaid retakaful contribution ceded - - 37,044,691 20,767,464
Miscellaneous expenses 517,500 508,500 - -
517,500 508,500 37,044,691 20,767,464

10. CASH & BANK

Saving accounts 9,503,194 13,372,057 13,308,725 41,386,451
10.1 The rate of return and loss sharing accounts held with Islamic banks during the year range from 9.50% to 18.50%
per annum (2023: 12% to 16%).
11. TAKAFUL / RETAKAFUL PAYABLE
Re-takaful payable - - 139,497 19,234,111

The Operator has co-takaful and re-takaful arrangements with various takaful operators and a domestic re-takaful
operators. Under the above arrangements, the receivable and payable balances originate mainly due to
contributions collected or claims settled by the lead operators on behalf of other cooperators, and in case of
re-takaful, the contribution ceded to and claims recoverable from the re-takaful operator under the respective
contracts. As per the prevailing industry practices, settlements of balances under co-takaful arrangements are done
between the respective takaful operators in normal course of business.
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The Operator believes that the current balances of co-takaful and re-takaful reflected in the records of the Operator
are based on the underlying contracts and transactions supported by appropriate evidence.

In this regard, the Operator exchanged balance information with various co-takaful based on significance of the

balances and the re-takaful. This information corroborates the balance position of the Operator in all material
respects.

12. OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

Operator's Fund

Participant's Fund

2024 2023 2024 2023
Rupees

Agents commission payable 17,135,611 12,250,570 - -
Federal excise duty / sales tax 23,911 51,370 3,406,591 3,233,136
Federal insurance fee - - - -
Accrued expenses 416,280 227,280 - -
Others 5,800 1,710 - -

17,581,602 12,530,930 3,406,591 3,233,136

13.

14.

15.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no contingencies and commitments as at reporting date (2023: Nil)

NET CONTRIBUTION REVENUE

Written Gross Contributions

Less: Wakala Fee

Contribution Net of Wakala fee

Add : Unearned contributions reserve opening
Less: Unearned contributions reserve closing
Contributions earned

Less:

Re-takaful contribution ceded

Prepaid retakaful contribution ceded - opening
Prepaid retakaful contribution ceded - closing
Retakaful expense

Net contribution

RE-TAKAFUL REBATE EARNED

Retakaful rebate / commission received
Add: Unearned re-takaful rebate / commission opening
Less: Unearned re-takaful rebate / commission closing

Note

17

Participant’s Takaful Fund

2024 2023
Rupees
157,073,882 125,504,553
(49,980,610) (44,560,512)
107,093,272 80,944,041
52,955,619 38,852,349
(71,568,823) (52,955,619)
88,480,068 66,840,771
70,492,994 57,805,375
20,767,465 15,622,451
(37,044,691) (20,767,464)
54,215,768 52,660,361
34,264,300 14,180,410
11,027,469 10,694,018
3,638,252 3,190,441
(6,849,805) (3,638,252)
7,815,916 10,246,206
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Participant’s Takaful Fund

2024 2023
Rupees
16. TAKAFUL BENEFITS/ CLAIMS EXPENSE

Benefits / Claims Paid 117,638,552 32,019,782
Add : Outstanding benefits / claims including IBNR closing 24,768,866 61,498,945
Less : Outstanding benefits / claims including IBNR opening (61,498,945) (18,033,223)
Claims expense 80,908,473 75,485,504
Less : Re-takaful and other recoveries received 75,842,089 14,680,481
Add : Re-takaful and other recoveries in respect

of outstanding claims closing 14,618,156 45,932,517
Less: Re-takaful and other recoveries in respect

of outstanding claims opening (45,932,517) (11,755,378)
Re-takaful and other recoveries revenue 44,527,728 48,857,620
Net claims expense 36,380,745 26,627,884

16.1 Benefits / claim development

The following table shows the development of claims over a period of time on gross basis. For each class of business
the uncertainty about the amount and timings of claims payment is usually resolved within a year.

Accident year 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Total
Rupees in ‘000’

Estimate of ultimate claims cost:

At the end of accident year 18,565 3,608 10,536 44,411 17,770 94,890
One year later 3,624 652 4,457 6,352 - 15,085
Two years later 178 345 132 - - 655
Three years later 120 173 - - - 293
Four years later 119 - - - - 119

Current estimate of cumulative claims 120 311 7,290 91,151 43,312 142,184

Cumulative payment to date (1) (138) (7,158)  (84,799) (25,542) (117,638)

Liability recognized in the financial position 119 173 132 6,352 17,770 24,546

Liability in respect of prior years 223

Total liability recognized in balance sheet 24,769

Participant’s Takaful Fund

2024 2023
Rupees
17. WAKALA FEE
Gross wakala fee 52,622,498 50,201,821
Deferred wakala expense - opening 21,182,249 15,540,940
Deferred wakala expense - closing (23,824,137) (21,182,249
49,980,610 44,560,512

17.1 The Operator manage the general takaful operations for the participants and charges wakala fees for its services.
Wakala fee is charged at 35% (2023 : 40%) for fire and property damage, marine, miscelleneous and 30% (2023 :
40%) for motor.
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Participant’s Takaful Fund

2024 2023
Rupees
18. COMMISSION EXPENSE
Commission paid or payable 23,606,906 19,332,001
Deferred commission expense - opening 7,811,311 6,218,650
Deferred commission expense - closing (10,849,277) (7,811,311)
20,568,940 17,739,340
19. OTHER DIRECT EXPENSES
Co-insurance service charges / others 5,711,818 2,194,668

19.1 These expenses represents service charges directly incurred in Participants' Fund.

Operator’s Fund Participant's Fund
2024 2023 2024 2023
Rupees
20. INVESTMENT INCOME

Income from mutual funds available-for-sale 15,021,761 17,002,848 1,403,521 4,756,053

Capital gain on redemption of mutual funds 3,526,376 - - -
Profit on bank deposits 523,220 1,298,559 1,854,684 2,979,394

Other income - - 128,135 -
19,071,357 18,301,407 3,386,339 7,735,447

21. MODARIB FEE

The Operator manage the participants' investments as a Modarib and charge 35% (2023: 40%) Modarib's share of
the investment income earned by PTF.

Operator’s Fund

Note 2024 2023
Rupees
22. GENERAL, ADMINISTRATIVE AND MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

Employee benefit cost 221 5,920,752 5,587,002
Vehicle running expenses 635,100 300,000
Computer software maintenance 2,043,000 2,034,000
Outsourcing expense 9,215,903 8,507,173
Bank charges 11,719 9,660
Other 153,645 1,180,273

17,980,119 17,618,108

22.1 This includes Rs. 0.041 million (2023: Rs. 0.038 million) contribution for employees’ provident fund.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 k1)




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Operator’s Fund

Note 2024 2023
Rupees
23. DIRECT EXPENSES
Employees benefit cost 1,200,000 1,200,000
Auditor's remuneration 231 416,280 227,280
1,616,280 1,427,280
23.1  Annual audit fee 165,444 139,165
Half year review fee 220,000 71,280
Sind sales tax 30,836 16,835
416,280 227,280
24. TAXATION
For the year
Current 9,622,991 8,459,697
9,622,991 8,459,697
241 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
Accounting profit before tax 30,071,847 29,171,370
Tax rate 29% 29%
Tax on accounting profit 8,720,836 8,459,697
Effect of super tax 902,155 -
Total average effective tax rate 9,622,991 8,459,697
25. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
Chief Executive Directors Executives
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Rupees
Managerial remuneration - - - 3,109,500 2,250,000
- - - 3,109,500 2,250,000
Number of person - - - 1 1
26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties comprise of directors, major shareholders, key management personnel, associated companies,
subsidary company, and entities with common directors and employee retirement benefit funds. The transactions with
related parties are carried out at commercial terms and conditions except for compensation to key management
personnel which are on employment terms. The transactions and balances with related parties during the year other

than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows.
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Rupees

Transactions during the year
Associated companies

Contribution underwritten 43,075,548 40,219,030

Contribution collected 53,991,905 44,742,920
Key management personnel

Remuneration and other benefits 3,109,500 2,250,000
Employees’ funds

Contribution to provident fund 40,752 37,752
Balances as at the year end
Associated companies
Contribution due but unpaid 59,868,060 42,122,280

SEGMENT INFORMATION

December 31, 2024

. Marine
Participant’s Takaful Fund Fweﬁg;c;%erty aviation & Motor Miscellaneous Total
transport
Rupees

Gross written contributions 88,249,610 19,422,906 47,067,202 2,334,164 157,073,882
(inclusive of Administrative surcharge)
Wakala fees (28,076,279) (6,805,588) (14,234,744) (863,999) (49,980,610)
Takaful contributions earned 75,858,455 19,162,296 41,228,906 2,211,021 138,460,678
Takaful contributions ceded to

re-takaful (37,051,797) (10,125,764) (5,432,140) (1,606,067) (54,215,768)
Net takaful contribution 10,730,379 2,230,944 21,562,022 (259,045) 34,264,300
Retakaful Rebate 5,626,812 2,328,926 (485,127) 345,305 7,815,916
Net underwriting income 16,357,191 4,559,870 21,076,895 86,260 42,080,216
Takaful claims (58,274,210) (448,508) (22,003,881) (181,874) (80,908,473)
Takaful claims recovered from re-takaful 45,409,928 (836,634) (246,803) 201,237 44,527,728
Net claims (12,864,282 (1,285,142) (22,250,684) 19,363 (36,380,745)
Other direct expense (2,630,864) (612,307) (2,426,951) (41,696) (5,711,818)
(Deficit) / Surplus before investment income 862,045 2,662,421 (3,600,740) 63,927 (12,347)
Net Investment income 3,386,339
Less: Modarib’s share of investment income (1,185,219)
Surplus transferred to accumulated surplus 2,188,773
Corporate segment assets 99,352,759 23,135,318 91,646,838 1,527,234 215,662,150
Corporate unallocated assets 24,422,758
Total Assets 240,084,908
Corporate segment liabilities 65,902,123 15,345,991 60,790,673 1,013,037 143,051,824
Corporate unallocated liabilities 6,746,548
Total Liabilities 149,798,373
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December 31, 2024

. Marine
Operator’s Fund Flredirﬁ;o%erty aviation & Motor Miscellaneous Total
9 transport
Rupees

Wakala fee 28,076,279 6,805,588 14,234,744 863,999 49,980,610
Commission expenses (12,823,442) (4,402,603) (3,070,423) (272,472) (20,568,940)
Management expenses (8,281,641) (1,927,468) (7,639,751) (131,255) (17,980,115)

6,971,196 475,517 3,524,570 460,272 11,431,555
Modarib share of PTF Investment Income 1,185,219
Investment income 19,071,357
Direct expenses (1,616,280)
Profit before tax 30,071,851
Taxation (9,622,991)
Profit after tax 20,448,860
Corporate segment assets 24,785,967 5,771,669 22,863,537 381,006 53,802,179
Corporate unallocated assets 128,945,891
Total Assets 182,748,071
Corporate segment liabilities 10,984,259 2,557,798 10,132,307 168,848 23,843,212
Corporate unallocated liabilities 17,583,987
Total liabilities 41,427,199

December 31, 2023
) Marine
Participant’s Takaful Fund Flred& property aviation & Motor Miscellaneous Total
amage transport
Rupees

Gross written Contributions 69,018,883 17,357,939 36,996,686 2,131,045 125,504,553
(inclusive of Administrative surcharge)
Wakala fees (25,861,729) (6,334,393) (11,702,915) (661,475) (44,560,512)
Takaful contributions earned 64,654,322 15,835,982 29,257,289 1,653,690 111,401,283
Takaful contributions ceded to re-takaful (36,375,960) (11,449,997) (3,755,976) (1,078,428) (52,660,361)
Net takaful contributions 2,416,633 (1,948,408) 13,798,398 (86,213) 14,180,410
Re-takaful Rebate 7,508,636 2,604,748 (99,039) 231,861 10,246,206
Net underwriting Income 9,925,269 656,340 13,699,359 145,648 24,426,616
Takaful claims (51,328,328) (5,908,923) (17,456,416) (791,837) (75,485,504)
Takaful claims recovered from re-takaful 40,118,200 4,716,959 3,526,044 496,417 48,857,620
Net claims (11,210,128) (1,191,964) (18,930,372) (295,420) (26,627,884)
Other direct expense (1,056,531) (163,868) (952,776) (21,493) (2,194,668)
(Deficit) before investment income (2,341,390) (699,492) (1,183,789) (171,265) (4,395,936)
Net Investment income 7,735,447
Less: Modarib’s share of investment income (3,094,179)
Surplus transferred to accumulated surplus 245,332
Corporate segment assets 93,396,499 14,485,833 84,224,586 1,880,549 193,987,467
Corporate unallocated assets 69,576,041
Total Assets 263,563,509
Corporate segment liabilities 81,571,525 12,651,775 73,560,873 1,642,452 169,426,625
Corporate unallocated liabilities 5,940,829
Total Liabilities 175,367,454
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December 31, 2023
) Marine
Operator’s Fund Flredinrz;o%erty aviation & Motor Miscellaneous Total
g transport
Rupees
Wakala fee 25,861,729 6,334,393 11,702,915 661,475 44,560,512
Commission expenses (11,761,339) (2,982,064) (2,790,464) (205,471) (17,739,340)
Management expenses (8,344,087) (2,247,065) (7,004,160) (22,795) (17,618,107)
5,756,302 1,105,263 1,908,291 433,209 9,203,065
Mudarib share of PTF Investment Income 3,094,179
Investment income 18,301,407
Direct expenses (1,427,280)
Profit before tax 29,171,371
Taxation (8,459,697)
Profit after tax 20,711,673
Corporate segment assets 19,221,644 2,981,285 17,334,001 387,030 39,923,960
Corporate unallocated assets 115,957,743
Total Assets 155,881,703
Corporate segment liabilities 10,206,195 1,582,985 9,203,905 205,503 21,198,588
Corporate unallocated liabilities 13,793,925
Total Liabilities 34,992,513
28. MOVEMENT IN INVESTMENTS .
Available for sale
Operator’'s Participant’'s
Fund Takaful Fund
Rupees
As at 1st January, 2023 84,797,357 23,758,353
Additions 14,452,460 4,042,646
Fair value gain (excluding net realised gain) 63,651 -
As at 31 December 2023 99,313,468 27,800,999
Additions 16,213,636 11,321,129
Disposal (sale and redemptions) - (28,000,000)
Fair value net gains / loss (excluding net realised gain) 67,062 (98,293)
As at 31 December 2024 115,594,166 11,023,835
29. MANAGEMENT OF TAKAFUL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
29.1 Takaful risk

The principal risk that is faced under takaful contracts is the possibility that the covered event occurs, the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claims i.e. the frequency and severity of claims and that the actual claims
and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of the takaful liabilities. By the very nature of the takaful
contract, this risk is random and therefore unpredictable. The objective of the Operator is to ensure that sufficient
reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The Operator manages these risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate retakaful arrangements and
proactive claims handling. The underwriting strategy aims to minimise takaful risks with a balanced mix and spread
of business classes and by observing underwriting guidelines and limits. The Operator underwrites non-life takaful
contracts that can be categorised into fire and property damage, marine, aviation and transport, motor and
miscellaneous contracts. These classes of takaful are generally regarded as short-term takaful contracts where
claims are normally intimated and settled within a short time span, usually one year. This helps to mitigate takaful
risk.
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29.1.1

29.1.2

29.1.3

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria. For example, the Operator has the
right not to renew individual contracts, it can impose deductibles and it has the right to reject the payment of a
fraudulent claim. For large risks, particularly in property segment of business, risk inspections are carried out
before accepting the risks. Similarly, in case of large risks, annual renewals are also preceded by on-site surveys.
Where needed, risk mitigation measures are identified and communicated to the clients to improve the risk to an
acceptable level.

Retakaful arrangements in place include treaty and facultative arrangements, on proportional and nonproportional
basis and also include catastrophe cover. The effect of such retakaful arrangements is that the PTF may not suffer
ultimate net takaful losses beyond the PTF’s risk appetite in any one year.

The Operator’s arrangement of retakaful is diversified such that it is neither dependent on a single retakaful
operator nor the operations of the Operator are substantially dependent upon any single retakaful contract. The
Operator obtains retakaful cover only from companies with sound financial health.

Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors like political violence, environmental and
economical, atmospheric disturbances, natural disasters, concentration of risks, civil riots etc. The Operator
manages these risks through the measures described above. The Operator has limited its exposure to
catastrophic and riot events by use of retakaful arrangements.

The Operator monitors concentration of takaful risks primarily by class of business. The table below sets out the
concentration of the claims and contribution liabilities (in percentage terms) by class of business at financial
statement date:

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claims payment

Claims on general takaful contracts are payable on a claim occurrence basis. The PTF is liable for all covered events
that occur during the term of the takaful contract including the event reported after the expiry of the takaful contract
term.

An estimated amount of the claim is recorded immediately on the intimation to the operations. The estimation of the
amount is based on management judgment or preliminary assessment by the independent surveyor appointed for
this purpose. The initial estimates include expected settlement cost of the claims.

There are several variable factors which affect the amount and timing of recognized claim liabilities. The operations
takes all reasonable measures to mitigate the factors affecting the amount and timing of claim settlements. However,
uncertainty prevails with estimated claim liabilities and it is likely that final settlement of these liabilities may be
significantly different from initial recognized amount.

Process used to decide on assumptions

The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to result in
neutral estimates of the most likely or expected income. The nature of the business makes it very difficult to predict
with certainty the likely outcome of any particular claim and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim
is assessed on a separate case to case basis with due regard to the claim circumstances, information available from
surveyors and historical evidence of the size of similar claims. Core estimates are reviewed regularly and are updated
as and when new information is available.

The principal assumption underlying the liability estimation of IBNR and Contribution Deficiency Reserves is that the
PTF's future claim development will follow similar historical pattern for occurrence and reporting. The management
uses qualitative judgment to assess the extent to which past occurrence and reporting pattern will not apply in
future. The judgement includes external factors e.g. treatment of one-off occurrence claims, changes in market
factors, economic conditions, etc.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of
settling claims already notified to the Operator, in which case information about the claim event is available. IBNR
provisions are initially estimated at a gross level and a separate calculation is carried out to estimate the size of
re-takaful recoveries. The estimation process takes into account the past claims reporting pattern and details of
reinsurance programs.

The details of estimation of outstanding claims (including IBNR) are given under note 4.18.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

29.1.4 Sensitivity analysis

The risks associated with the takaful contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables with complicate
quantitative sensitivity analysis. The Operator makes various assumptions and techniques based on past claims
development experience. This includes indications such as average claims cost, ultimate claims numbers and
expected loss ratios. The Operator considers that the liability for claims recognised in the statement of financial
position is adequate. However, actual experience may differ from the expected outcome.

The claim liabilities are sensitive to the incidence of covered events and severity / size of claims. As the Operator
enters into short term takaful contracts, it does not assume any significant impact of changes in market conditions
on unexpired risks. However, some results of sensitivity testing are set out below, showing the impact on profit of
PTF net of re-takaful.

10% increase in loss Underwriting results Participants' takaful fund
2024 2024 2023
Rupees
Net
Fire & property damage (292,171) (965,172) (292,171) (965,172)
Marine, aviation and transport (246,066) (122,424) (246,066) (122,424)
Motor (449,573)  (439,849) (449,573) (439,849)
Miscellaneous (27,261) (29,197) (27,261) (29,197)
Total (1,015,071) (1,556,643) (1,015,071) (1,556,643)
) Underwriting results Participants' takaful fund
10% decrease in loss 2024 2024 2023
Rupees
Net
Fire & property damage 292,171 965,172 292,171 965,172
Marine, aviation and transport 246,066 122,424 246,066 122,424
Motor 449,573 439,849 449,573 439,849
Miscellaneous 27,261 29,197 27,261 29,197
Total 1,015,071 1,556,643 1,015,071 1,556,643

29.1.5 Concentration of risk
To optimise benefits from the principle of average and law of large numbers, geographical spread of risk is of
extreme importance. There are a number of parameters which are significant in assessing the accumulation of risk
with reference to the geographical location, the most important of which is risk survey.

Risk surveys are carried out on a regular basis for the evaluation of physical hazards associated with the insured
property.

The adequate event limit is a multiple of the treaty capacity or the primary recovery from excess of loss treaty, which
is very much in line with the risk management philosophy of the Company.

Re-takaful ceded does not relieve the Operator from its obligation towards participants and as a result the Operator
remains liable for the portion of outstanding claims covered through re-takaful to the extent that re-takaful operator
fails to meet the obligation under the re-takaful agreements.

The Operator minimizes its exposure to significant losses by obtaining re-takaful arrangements from a number of
re-takaful operators, who are dispersed over several geographical regions.

The concentration of risk by type of contracts based on single risk with maximum exposure is summarised below:
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29.2

29.2.1

29.2.1.1

29.2.1.2

29.2.1.3

Gross sum insured Re-takaful Net Amount

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Rupees in ‘000’

Fire and property 93,633,855 72,566,826 52,060,649 41,356,164 41,573,206 31,210,662
Marine, aviation and transport 32,320,742 27,495,479 22,311,790 20,381,577 10,008,952 7,113,902
Motor 3,360,653 2,823,556 - 3,360,653 2,823,556

Miscellaneous 135,834 145,645 101,876 109,234 33,959 36,411
129,451,084 103,031,506 74,474,315 61,846,975 54,976,770 41,184,531

Financial risk

The Operator is exposed to a variety of financial risks: market risk (comprising profit rate risk, and other price risk),
liquidity risk and credit risk in relation to the financial statements on its statement of financial position. The
Operator’s overall risk management seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Operator’s financial
performance of such risk.

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Operator’s risk
management framework. There are Board Committees and Management Committees for developing risk
management policies and its monitoring.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprise of profit rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk. The
Operator manages the market risk exposures by following internal risk management policies.

Foreign Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Operator, at present is not exposed to currency risk as majority of the transactions are carried out in Pakistan
Rupees.

Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all
similar financial instruments traded in the market.

Maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities

Maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities of Operators fund and Participants takaful fund.
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Operators fund & Participants fund

Financial assets

Investment mutual funds

Takaful / Re-takaful receivables

Receivable from PTF

Accrued investment income

Re-takaful recoveries against outstanding claims
Cash at bank

Financial liabilities

Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR)
Takaful / Re-takaful payables

Other creditors and accruals

Payable to OPF

On-balance sheet sensitivity gap total
yield / mark-up rate risk
Sensitivity gap

Operators fund & Participants fund

Financial assets

Investment mutual funds

Takaful / Re-takaful receivables

Receivable from PTF

Accrued investment income

Re-takaful recoveries against outstanding claims
Cash at bank

Financial liabilities

Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR)
Takaful / Re-takaful Payables

Other Creditors and Accruals

Payable to OPF

On-balance sheet sensitivity gap total
yield / mark-up rate risk
Sensitivity gap

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Profit / mark-up bearing Non-Profit / mark-up bearing Total
Vit i | Vet fer T sup o | ety wtin ety ] ot
Rupees
- - - 126,618,001 - 126,618,001 126,618,001
- - - 140,196,734 - 140,196,734 140,196,734
- - - 43,064,791 - 43,064,791 43,064,791
- - - 68,630 68,630 68,630
- - - 14,618,156 - 14,618,156 14,618,156
22,811,919 - 22,811,919 - - - 22,811,919
22,811,919 - 22,811,919 324,566,312 - 324,566,312 347,378,231
- - - 24,768,866 - 24,768,866 24,768,866
- - - 139,497 - 139,497 139,497
- - - 20,988,193 - 20,988,193 20,988,193
- - - 43,064,791 - 43,064,791 43,064,791
- - - 88,961,347 - 88,961,347 88,961,347
22,811,919 - 22,811,919 235,604,965
22,811,919 - 22,811,919 235,604,965
2023
Profit / mark-up bearing Non-Profit / mark-up bearing Total
ety i [ Wbty ster | sup o | Vol il el o] ot
Rupees
- - - 127,114,467 - 127,114,467 127,114,467
- - - 106,124,638 - 106,124,638 106,124,638
- - - 34,807,391 - 34,807,391 34,807,391
- - - 438,167 438,167 438,167
- - - 45,932,517 - 45,932,517 45,932,517
54,758,508 - 54,758,508 - - - 54,758,508
54,758,508 - 54,758,508 314,417,180 - 314,417,180 369,175,688
- B - 61,498,945 - 61,498,945 61,498,945
- - - 19,234,111 - 19,234,111 19,234,111
- - - 15,764,066 - 15,764,066 15,764,066
- . N 34,807,391 - 34,807,391 34,807,391
- - - 131,304,513 - 131,304,513 131,304,513
54,758,508 - 54,758,508 183,112,667
54,758,508 - 54,758,508 183,112,667
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Sensitivity analysis - profit rate risk

Profit rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to change in the market profit rate.
The profit based assets as on the statement of financial position date aggregates to Rs.22.811 million (2023: Rs.
54.758 million) as disclosed in note 29.2.1.3 above. There are no fixed rate financial instruments as on the balance
sheet date. An increase or decrease in profit rates by 100 basis points has the effect of Rs. 0.22 million (2023:
Rs.0.55 million) on profit before tax.

29.2.2  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Operations will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Operaor approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the operation's reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of
financial liabilities based on the remaining period at the reporting date.

Over one year

Within one year to five years Over five years Total
Rupees
Financial liabilities
Outstanding claims including IBNR 24,768,866 - - 24,768,866
Takaful / Retakful payables 139,497 - - 139,497
Other creditors and accruals 20,988,193 - - 20,988,193
45,896,556 - - 45,896,556
2023
Within one year Ci\ée]:i\?enieﬁzr Over five years Total
Rupees
Financial liabilities
Outstanding claims including IBNR 61,498,945 - - 61,498,945
Takaful / Retakful payables 19,234,111 - - 19,234,111
Other creditors and accruals 15,764,066 - - 15,764,066
96,497,122 - - 96,497,122

RICL - WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

29.2.3 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk, which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge
its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The operations attempts to control credit risk by
monitoring credit exposures by undertaking transactions with a large number of counter parties in various
industries and by continually assessing the credit worthiness of counter parties.

Concentration of credit risk

The bank balances and investment in mutual fund represents low credit risk as they are placed with reputed
financial institutions with strong credit ratings.

The management monitors exposure to credit risk in contribution receivable from participants and amount due
from co-takaful operators and re-takaful operators through regular review of credit exposure. The amount due

from co-takaful and re-takaful operators represents low credit risk as they have strong credit ratings and have
sound financial stability.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, as specified below:

2024 2023

Rupees
Receivable from PTF 43,064,791 34,807,391
Accrued investment income 68,630 438,167
Takaful / Re-takaful receivable 140,196,734 106,124,638
Re-takaful recoveries against outstanding claims 14,618,156 45,932,517
Cash at bank 22,811,919 54,758,508

220,760,230 242,061,221

The credit quality of Operators bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:

Rating Rating
Short term Long term agency
Banks
Meezan Bank Limited Al+ AAA VIS
MCB Islamic Bank Limited A1 A+ PACRA
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited Al+ AA VIS
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Re-takaful Risk

Re-takaful ceded does not relieve the Participants' Takaful Fund from its obligation towards participants and, as a
result, the Participants' Takaful Fund remains liable for the portion of outstanding claims covered through
re-takaful to the extent that re-takaful operators fails to meet the obligation under the re-takaful agreements.

To minimise its exposure to significant losses from re-takaful companies insolvencies, the Operator obtains
re-takaful Companies ratings from a number of re-takaful operators, who are dispersed over several geographical
regions.

An analysis of all re-takaful assets recognised by the rating of the entity from which it is due are as follows:

Takaful / Re-takaful Prepaid
Rating Re-takaful _recoveries re-takaful 2024 0003
receivables |2gainst outstanding| contribution
claims ceded
Rupees
A or above 60,985,489 14,113,848 35,882,208 80,491,922 109,356,129
BBB 147,510 504,308 1,162,483 1,814,301 3,107,322
61,132,999 14,618,156 37,044,691 82,306,223 112,463,451

29.3 Fund management
The operator's objectives when managing capital or to safeguard operator's ability to continue as going concern
in order to provide returns for operator or participants and to offer benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
amount of return paid to operators or to participants may be adjusted.

29.4 Fair value of financial instruments

The operator has not disclosed the fair value of these items because their carrying amounts are a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

Fair value is an amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable
willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently, differences may arise between the carrying values and
the fair value estimates.

The operator measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized:
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As at December

31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Rupees
Financial assets measured at fair value
Available for sale investments 126,618,001 - 126,618,001 -
126,618,001 - 126,618,001 -
As at December
31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Rupees
Financial assets measured at fair value
Available for sale investments 127,114,467 - 127,114,467 -
127,114,467 - 127,114,467 -
2024 2023
30. STATEMENT OF SOLVENCY - PTF Rupees
ASSETS
Investments-Mutual funds 11,023,835 27,800,999
Takaful / re-takaful receivables 140,196,734 106,124,638
Deferred wakala fee 23,824,137 21,182,249
Accrued investment income 68,630 369,191
Retakaful recoveries against outstanding claims 14,618,156 45,932,517
Prepayments 37,044,691 20,767,464
Cash at bank 13,308,725 41,386,451
Total Assets 240,084,908 263,563,509
In-admissible assets as per following clauses of
section 32(2) of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000
Contribution due since more than three months 65,381,165 34,524,048
Total of in-admissible assets 65,381,165 34,524,048
Total Admissible Assets 174,703,743 229,039,461
Liabilities
Underwriting provisions
Outstanding claims including IBNR 24,768,866 61,498,945
Unearned contribution reserves 71,568,823 52,955,619
Reserve for unearned retakaful rebate 6,849,805 3,638,252
Takaful / Re-takaful payable 139,497 19,234,111
Other Creditors and Accruals 3,406,591 3,233,136
Payable to OPF 43,064,791 34,807,391
Total Liabilities 149,798,373 175,367,454
Total net admissible assets 24,905,370 53,672,007
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30.1 In the absence of any specific guidance, "prepaid re-takaful contribution ceded" has been treated as admissible
asset for the purposes of this statement.

31. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purpose of better
presentation and comparison.

32. GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.
33. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statement have been authorized for issue on 27th March, 2025 by the Board of Directors of the
Operator.

Irfan Zakaria Bawany
Chairman Director Director Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive & Managing Director

AhMany Zia ZakariaE Ghulam Haider A. Razak Ahmed

Karachi: 27th March, 2025
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Head Office

“Reliance Insurance House”
181-A, Sindhi Muslim Co-operative
Housing Society,

Karachi.

Mr. A. Razak Ahmed
Chief Executive & Managing Director

Mr. Ghulam Haider
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Faraz Abdul Razak
Company Secretary & Complaince Officer

Mr. M.A. Hannan Shadani
Senior Vice President (underwriting)

Mr. Muhammad Siddique
Assistant Vice President (Claims)

Mr. Najamullah Khan
Senior Vice President (Head of Takaful)

Mr. Muhammad Kashif Wadiwala
Shariah Complaince Officer

Mr. Ghulam Mujaddid
Vice President (Accounts)

Mr. Abdul Rahim Patni
Assistant Vice President (Reinsurance)

Mr. Muhammad Saleem Memon

Assistant Vice President (Investment/shares)

Mr. Muhammad Masood Ali
Assistant Vice President (I.T. Deptt.)

Mr. Muhammad Masood Alam
Chief Manager (Administration)

Mr. Muhammad Naveed Jan
Chief Manager

South Zone Offices & Branches

Business Plaza Branch
407, 4th floor, Business Plaza,
Off. I.I.Chundrigar Road, Karachi.

Tarig Road Branch

Room No. A-2 & A-3,

1st Floor, Rahat Jo Daro,

Plot No.172/L, Block-2, PECHS,
Main Tariq Road, Karachi.

Namco Centre Branch
1-A, 5th Floor, Campbell Street,
Karachi.

Land Mark Plaza Branch

405, 4th Floor, Land Mark Plaza,
Off. I. I. Chundrigar Road,
Karachi.

M. A. Jinnah Road Branch
101, Japan Plaza,
M. A. Jinnah Road, Karachi.

Hyderabad Branch
1st Floor, Al-Falah Chamber,
Tilak Road, Hyderabad.

Sukkur
Minara Road, Sukkur.

Mr. Asif Igbal
Asstt. Vice President

Mr. Zafar A. Pasha
Executive Vice President

Mr. Igbal Umer Bawany
Vice President

Mr. Muhammad Reza Rajani
Sr. Vice President

Mr. Rizwan Ahmed Khan
Branch Manager

Mr. Abdullah Ahmed
Regional Manager

Mr. Anees Memon
Resident Representative

PABX
Fax
E-mail
Web

Direct
Extension

Direct
Extension
Extension

Direct
Extension

Direct
Extension

Direct
Extension

Extension

Extension

Direct
Extension

Extension

Extension

Direct
Extension

Extension

Ph
Fax

Ph

Fax

Ph
Fax

Ph
Fax

Ph
Fax

Ph
Fax

Ph
Cell

(021)
(021)

(021)
(021)

(022)
(022)

(071)

34539415-17
34539412
reli-ins@cyber.net.pk.
ric-re@cyber.net.pk.
www.relianceins.com

34539413, 34539414
204

34539409
203
209

34304068
212

34550403
208

34557079
201

216
205
34539411
215
214
202
34539411

206
208

32419581, 32419582
32421314, 32421317

34527806, 34532427
34525376, 34322642
34522829

32624504, 32624427
32624783

32628777, 32628778
32628779

32727076, 32729961
32722601

2615774
2623029

5622619

0300-3138090
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OFFICES

North Zone Offices & Branches

Zonal Office, Lahore (North Zone)
4th Floor, Gardee Trust Building.
No.2, Napier Road, Lahore.

Regional Office, Lahore
90-A/3, 1st Floor, Canal Park,
Gulberg-Il, Lahore.

Gulberg Branch
House No.17-A, Block-E/1,
Gulberg-lll, Lahore.

Al-Rehman Branch
54/2, Lawrance Road,
Lahore.

Eden Centre Branch (Unit )
321, Eden Centre,

43 Ghausal Azam Road,
(Jail Road), Lahore.

Garden Town Branch
321, Eden Centre,

43 Ghausal Azam Road,
(Jail Road), Lahore.

Empress Tower Branch
Room No.18,1st Floor,
Empress Tower,

46 Empress Road, Lahore.

Gujranwala Branch
Office No. 3, Block-A,
Trust Plaza, G. T. Road,
Gujranwala.

Guijrat Branch

Marhaba Tower (Top Floor)
Opp. Ram Piary Mahal
Near Fawara Chawk, Guijrat.

Faisal Complex Branch
3rd Floor, Faisal Complex,
Bilal Road, Civil Lines, Faisalabad.

Taj Plaza Branch

P-63, First Floor, Taj Plaza,
Ashraf Hardware,

Kotwali Road, Faisalabad.

United Plaza Branch
3,3rd Floor, United Plaza,

Shamsabad, Murree Rd. Rawalpindi.

Peshawar Branch

T-3 & 4, Bilour Shopping Plaza,
3rd Floor, Saddar Road, .
Peshawar Cantt.

Regional Office Multan

1st Floor, 5-Commercial Plaza,
Opp. Civil Hospital, Abdali Road,
Multan.

Hasilpur Branch
27-B, 1st Floor, Main Bazar,
Hasilpur.

Sialkot Branch

Room No.4 & 5, 1st Floor,
Mughal Plaza, Kutchery Road,
Sialkot.

Gojra Branch
P-132, Post Office Road,
Gojra.

Sahiwal Branch
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Mr. Syed Mohsin Bukhari
Assistant Vice President

Mr. Muhammad Shafi Anjum

Senior Vice President

Mr. Asim Arshad
Branch Manager

Mrs. Shahnaz Akhtar
Branch Manager

Mr. Muhammad Ahmed
Resident Representative

PABX

Direct
Fax

Ph
Fax
Ph

Fax

Ph

Fax

Ph
Fax

Ph
Fax

Ph
Fax

Ph
Fax

Ph

Ph
Fax
Ph

Fax

Ph
Fax

Ph
Fax

Ph
Fax

Ph
Fax

Ph
Fax

Ph
Fax

Cell

(053)

(046)
(046)

37239063, 37353292
37234255, 37351353
37354689
37312526

35761077, 35761078
35763446, 35763447
35761235

35752245, 35752989
35751971, 35756557
35756217
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37423613
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Proxy Form

I/we of

being a Member of Reliance Insurance Company Limited holding ordinary shares, HEREBY
APPOINT of another member of the Company, failing
him/her of as my/our proxy in my/our absence to

attend and to vote and act for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on

Wednesday 30 April, 2025 and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand(s) this day of 2025.

- - - - Revenue
(Signature of Witness 1) (Signature of Witness 2) Stamp
Name of Witness: Name of Witness:

CNIC CNIC
Address: Address:
(Name in Block Letters) Signature of Shareholder
Folio No.
Notes:
1. The Member is requested:
(@) To affix Revenue stamp at the place indicated above;
(b)  Tosign in the same style of signature as is registered with the company.
(c)  To write down his/her Folio Number
2. For the appointment of the above proxy to be valid this instrument of proxy must be received at the
Head office at 181-A, Reliance Insurance House, Sindhi Muslim Cooperative Housing Society Karachi
at least 48 hours before the time fixed for the Meeting.
3. Any alteration made in this instrument of proxy should be initiated by the person who signs it.
In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote whether in person or by the proxy
will be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders, and for this purpose seniority will
be determined by the order in which the names stand in the Register of Members.
5. The Proxy must be a Member of the Company.

For CDC Account Holders / Corporate Entities

In addition to the above, the following requirements have to be met:
(i)  The proxy form must be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be
mentioned on the form.
(i)  Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and of the Proxy must be furnished with
the proxy.
(iii)  In case of corporate entities, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney and specimen signature
must be submitted (Unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy forms.
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